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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
Dear Shareholder
The Pick n Pay Stores Limited Group (Group) presents to you the results for our 2022 financial period through
our summarised audited Group annual financial statements. The audited Group annual financial statements
were approved by the Board on 16 May 2022.
The 2022 audited Group annual financial statements were prepared under the supervision of Pick n Pay’s
Chief Finance Officer, Lerena Olivier CA (SA), and were audited by our duly appointed external auditors,
Ernst & Young Inc.
This publication contains the detailed notice of our 54th annual general meeting (AGM) to be held at 08:30 on
Tuesday, 26 July 2022 at Pick n Pay Office Park, 101 Rosmead Avenue, Kenilworth, 7708, Cape Town. In addition,
to ensure that you have the documentation needed to inform voting at our 2022 AGM, we have included the
remuneration report in this publication.
Our AGM will be conducted entirely by electronic communication. Please refer to the important details
relating to registration, participation and voting at the AGM set out on page 3 and again from page 82 under
the heading Electronic Participation. To attend the meeting, register online at https://meetnow.global/za with
our transfer secretary, Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited (Computershare). We would
appreciate if shareholders could register by no later than close of business on Friday 22 July 2022 to allow
Computershare to process the requisite formal documents for attendance at the AGM.
If you are unable to participate in the AGM, you may vote by proxy. Instructions on how to participate via proxy
are contained in the enclosed Notice of AGM and the form of Proxy. Should you have any questions, please
contact me or the Computershare offices.
Our 2022 integrated annual report will be posted on the Company’s website, www.picknpayinvestor.co.za, by
close of business on 24 June 2022. If you would prefer to receive a printed copy, please contact me.
Yours sincerely
Debra Muller
Company Secretary
demuller@pnp.co.za
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Electronic participation
Shareholders or their duly appointed proxies who wish to participate in the AGM via electronic communication
(participants) must follow the instructions for registration, attendance and participation set out below. The
electronic participation form can be found as an insert in the Notice of AGM.
a.

Registration to attend the AGM
(i)

Register online by no later than 08:30 on Tuesday 26 July 2022 using the online registration portal at
https://meetnow.global/ZA to, among other things, allow the Transfer Secretary to arrange the
participation of the shareholder at the AGM.

(ii)

Register via email by no later than 08:30 on Tuesday 26 July 2022 by making a written application
to participate either in person or via electronic communication, by email to proxy@computershare.co.za
in order for the Transfer Secretary to, among other things, arrange such participation for the
shareholder at the AGM.

(iii) Apply to Computershare by delivering the duly completed participation form to:
a.

First Floor, Rosebank towers, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank 2196; or

b.

Posting it to Private Bag X9000, Saxonwold, 2132 (at the risk of the participant);

so as to be received by Computershare by no later than 08:30 on Tuesday, 26 July 2022.
NOTE: Shareholders wishing to participate in and/or vote at the AGM after 08:30 on Tuesday
26 July 2022 may still register after this time provided however, that for those shareholders to participate
in and/or vote at the AGM, those shareholders must be verified and registered (as required in terms of
section 63(1) of the Companies Act) by uploading their relevant verification documentation as more
fully set out under Identification on page 82 before the commencement of the AGM.
b.

Computershare will first validate such requests and confirm the identity of the shareholder in terms of
section 63(1) of the Companies Act. If the request is validated, further details will be provided on using the
electronic communication facility to participate electronically in the AGM.

c.

The Company will, by email, inform participants who duly notified Computershare by no later than 08:30 on
Tuesday, 26 July 2022 of the relevant details through which participants can participate electronically.

d.

The cost of electronic participation in the AGM is for the expense of the participant and will be billed
separately by the participant’s own service provider.

e.

The participant acknowledges that the electronic communication services are provided by third parties
and indemnifies the Company against any loss, injury, damage, penalty or claim arising in any way from the
use of possession of the electronic services, whether or not the problem is caused by any act or omission
on the part of the participant or anyone else. In particular, but not exclusively, the participant acknowledges
that he/she will have no claim against the Company, whether for consequential damages or otherwise,
arising from the use of the electronic services or any defect in it or from total or partial failure of the
electronic services and connections linking the participant via the electronic services to the AGM.

f.

The Company cannot guarantee there will not be a break in electronic communication that is beyond
its control.

By order of the Board
Debra Muller
Company Secretary
Cape Town
23 June 2022
Pick n Pay Stores Limited
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Progress in a disrupted year
KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
Group turnover
Gross profit margin
Trading expenses
Net finance costs
Profit before tax and capital items (PBT) 1
Pro forma PBT2
Pro forma PBT2 – South Africa
Basic earnings per share (EPS) 1
Headline earnings per share (HEPS) 1
Pro forma HEPS 2
Total dividend per share
1

2

3

52 weeks to
52 weeks to
27 February 2022 28 February 2021
FY22
FY21
R97.9 billion
18.8%
R18 014.7 million
R1 150.4 million
R1 807.7 million
R1 978.0 million
R1 859.0 million
253.34 cents
262.59 cents
289.64 cents
221.15 cents

R93.1 billion
19.8%
R17 294.8 million
R1 233.6 million
R1 554.2 million
R1 583.4 million
R1 435.3 million
202.52 cents
229.31 cents
235.42 cents
179.74 cents

%
change
5.2
4.2
(6.7)
16.3
24.9
29.5
25.1
14.5
23.0
23.0

Profit before tax and capital items (PBT), basic earnings per share and headline earnings per share (HEPS) include non-cash
hyperinflation net monetary adjustments recognised in respect of the Group’s investment in its associate in Zimbabwe, under
the requirements of IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies (IAS 29).
Pro forma PBT and pro forma HEPS exclude non-cash hyperinflation net monetary adjustments related to the Group’s investment
in its associate in Zimbabwe (Rest of Africa segment) and, in FY22, include R145.2 million (R104.5 million net of tax) of business
interruption insurance proceeds received post year-end in respect of the civil unrest in July 2021 (South Africa segment), which
results in a pro forma adjustment for the 52 weeks ended 27 February 2022. Pro forma HEPS is the Group’s dividend driver.
For further information on pro forma PBT, HEPS and constant currency information, users are referred to Appendix 1 and
Appendix 3 of the Summarised Group Annual Financial Statements for the 52 weeks ended 27 February 2022.

Result summary
The Group delivered a resilient performance across
the year despite the considerable negative impact
of the civil unrest of July 2021, and some continuing
restrictions on trading associated with the Covid-19
pandemic. Group turnover increased by 5.2%, despite
an estimated R2.7 billion in lost sales arising from store
closures as a result of the civil unrest, and the trading
restrictions on liquor mainly in the first half of the year.
A quarterly breakdown of trading performance set
out below demonstrates the considerable impact of
the civil unrest on Group operations. More positively,
it also shows the Group’s stronger underlying trading
momentum both before and after this disruption.
The Group’s gross profit and operating margins
reflect the significant impact of the lost sales and
earnings, with the majority of the losses associated
with the unrest covered under the Group’s programme
of insurance. Pro forma profit before tax and
capital items (including R145.2 million of insurance
recoveries received post year-end) increased 24.9%
at a Group level – and by 29.5% in the Group’s South
Africa segment – under some of the most difficult
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circumstances in the Group’s history. The Board has
declared a final dividend of 185.35 cents per share,
bringing the total FY22 dividend to 221.15 cents
per share, up 23.0% in line with pro forma headline
earnings per share.
Over the course of the year, the Group made progress
against a number of its strategic priorities. The
refurbishment of key Pick n Pay Select supermarkets,
serving our most affluent customers, resulted in
a gain in customers. Pick n Pay Clothing delivered
market-leading sales growth and increased its market
share across a number of key categories. The Group’s
on-demand online grocery offer was relaunched as
Pick n Pay asap!, resulting in significant growth in the
second half of the year.
Project Future, the Group’s modernisation and cost
savings programme delivered targeted cost savings
of R1.0 billion over the past two years. This was crucial
in mitigating the impact of other cost escalations
over the course of the year – particularly in security
and insurance costs as a result of the civil unrest –
and has allowed for sustained investment into lower
prices for customers and a strengthened marketing
campaign.

Highlights from the year include:
• The Group’s extraordinary recovery from the
civil unrest in July 2021 – rapidly restoring
damaged infrastructure and re-opening stores,
and mounting a major humanitarian response to
provide essential food and groceries to affected
communities
• The resilience of the Group’s underlying sales
performance – driven by the value offered by
Pick n Pay Value and Boxer supermarkets
• Stronger customer growth from 40 refurbished
Pick n Pay Select supermarkets
• Cost discipline and operational efficiency,
enabled the Group to offer lower prices and
deeper promotions, with selling price inflation
restricted to 2.9% against CPI Food of 6.2%
• Project Future contained like-for-like trading
expense growth below like-for-like sales growth
in a highly disrupted environment
• Sustained market share gains from Pick n Pay
Clothing, with sales growth of 21.0%
• Pick n Pay’s Smart Shopper loyalty programme
driving loyalty penetration to 80% of Pick n Pay
sales and recognised as the most used loyalty
programme in South Africa
• Relaunch of the Group’s on-demand grocery
offer as Pick n Pay asap!, delivering year-on-year
growth of over 300% since August 2021
• Careful management of working capital and
capital investment underpinned strong liquidity,
with the Group’s cost of borrowing down 6.7%
• Growth in the Group’s store estate – with 139
new stores across all formats

Strategic plan
The Group will separately present details of
its Strategic Plan immediately after the FY22
Financial Results presentation at 10:30am on
Tuesday, 17 May 2022 (webcast link:
www.corpcam.com/PNP17052022). Presentation
materials will be published on the Group’s website
at www.picknpayinvestor.co.za.

Detailed review of financial and
operational performance
Sales and earnings impact of civil
unrest
The outbreak of civil unrest across KwaZulu-Natal
and parts of Gauteng in July 2021 was one of the
worst episodes in the country’s democratic history.
212 Pick n Pay and Boxer stores, and two Pick n Pay
distribution centres, were damaged and looted
during the violence, and a further 551 stores were
closed on a precautionary basis to safeguard staff
and customers.
The Group is strongly represented in terms of store
numbers in KwaZulu-Natal and Gauteng, and 37% of
its estate was closed at the height of the civil disorder.
16 of the affected stores (nine Pick n Pay and seven
Boxer) currently remain closed. These stores are
located in severely damaged shopping centres, with
the reinstatement of each store dependent on the
restoration of the centre as a whole.
The Group recovered R958.7 million of material
damage losses under its SASRIA riot insurance
covers in FY22, including R627.8 million of stock
losses and R210.5 million of property damage,
alongside increased operating costs.
Alongside the material damage suffered, the Group
estimates that the unrest resulted in approximately
R1.8 billion of lost sales in FY22. The Group’s
related business interruption (loss of profits) claims
remain open, as not all of the affected stores have
re-opened for trade. The Group has provided business
interruption insurers with interim submissions
setting out the earnings lost as a result of the unrest
up to and including end October 2021. The Group
received interim payments of R145.2 million from
business interruption insurers in respect of these
submissions in March 2022 (post year-end). These
recoveries have not been accounted for in the Group’s
FY22 results in line with the technical requirements
of International Financial Reporting Standards. The
Group has presented pro forma profit before tax and
pro forma headline earnings per share metrics which
include these insurance proceeds relating to FY22
received after year-end. Pro forma headline earnings
per share is the Group’s dividend driver. Please refer
to Appendix 1 for further information. The balance of
lost earnings is expected to be recovered in FY23,
once insurers have completed the assessment of
the full and final business interruption claim. The
recoveries in FY23 will mitigate to some extent the
increase in trading expenses expected as a result of
the unrest.
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Review of operations

Turnover
Group sales increased 5.2% to R97.9 billion (FY21: R93.1 billion), with like-for-like sales growth of 4.5%.
The Group’s South Africa segment (96.6% of Group sales) increased sales by 5.1% to R94.5 billion, with like-forlike sales growth of 4.4%. Selling price inflation was contained at 2.9% against CPI Food of 6.2%.
The underlying strength and resilience of the Group’s trading performance is evidenced by a quarter-by-quarter
analysis of sales growth:

Group sales growth

Q1
13 weeks
ended
30 May 2021

Q2
13 weeks
ended
29 Aug 2021

Q3
13 weeks
ended
28 Nov 2021

Q4
13 weeks
ended
27 Feb 2022

FY22
52 weeks
ended
27 Feb 2022

+9.0%

-0.7%

+4.9%

+7.4%

+5.2%

• The Group delivered a solid start to FY22,
growing sales by 9.0% in the first quarter, a
positive recovery against a prior year base highly
disrupted by Covid-19 measures.

and combination offers. Pick n Pay Value stores
outperformed the balance of the Pick n Pay estate
in terms of sales growth, sales densities, on-shelf
availability and waste.

• The impact of the civil unrest, combined with
the loss of liquor trade, was most evident in the
second quarter of the year, with sales growth
falling to -0.7%. The civil unrest was particularly
damaging to the Group, as it struck at the heart
of our high-performing value business, with
significant damage to a large number of Boxer
and Pick n Pay Value stores.

The Group also strengthened its offer in the
more affluent segment of the market through
the refurbishment of 40 supermarkets under its
Pick n Pay Select plan. These stores have a modern
and innovative design and layout and carry over 400
new own brand and imported products, focused on
high-quality fresh meat, produce and bakery lines,
health and wellness, plant-based meal solutions,
and added-convenience products.

• Sales growth recovered to 4.9% in quarter three as
a result of the extraordinary efforts to re-open over
180 damaged stores over July to November 2021
– notwithstanding a shortage of point of sale and
other critical store infrastructure – supported by the
successful execution of Black Friday promotions.
• The Group’s trading momentum accelerated in
the final quarter of the year, with sales growth
increasing to 7.4%. Q4 was underpinned by a strong
festive trading period, with sales up 9% in the three
weeks leading into and including Christmas.

Greater clarity in the Group’s
supermarket offer
Boxer – the Group’s discount format – delivered an
outstanding performance. Boxer provides customers
with a clear customer value proposition across a tight
range of essential food and groceries and provides
exceptional value through its simple and highly
effective operating model. The Group’s long-term plan
recognises the importance and potential of the Boxer
brand in the South African market and targets 200
new Boxer stores over the next three years.
Over the course of the year, the Group made further
important strides in ensuring that its Pick n Pay
Value supermarkets provide an aspirational but
affordable destination for middle and lower-income
customers. The Group reduced the range in these
stores, streamlined the operating model and
delivered more targeted promotions, including bulk
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One of the priorities of the Group’s new Strategic Plan
will be to build on the progress made in differentiating
the Pick n Pay customer offer in recent years.

Strong performance from Pick n Pay
Clothing
The Group’s clothing division made excellent
progress, with sales growth of 21.0% year-on-year.
The strong performance was driven by solid market
share gains across a number of women’s, men’s and
childrenswear categories, for the fourth consecutive
year. On a two-year compound annual growth basis,
clothing sales have increased by 11.7%. The division’s
solid performance reflects its clear customer value
proposition and highly efficient operating model, built
on the principle of providing high-quality wardrobe
essentials at incredible prices. Local sourcing
represents 40% of total clothing sales. It has provided
the opportunity for exciting collaborations with local
designers and entrepreneurs, while reducing order
lead times and maintaining high levels of availability.
Online clothing sales increased 233% year-on-year,
including through the Group’s strategic partnership
with online retail platform Zando. The Group added 22
net new clothing stores this year. Pick n Pay clothing
is a strategic priority for the Group, and the offer will
continue to expand through new stand-alone clothing
stores (66 planned for FY23), additional space in
supermarkets, and a growing online offer.

Strengthened omnichannel offer
The Group’s online on-demand grocery offer was
relaunched in August 2021 as Pick n Pay asap!.
Following the relaunch, the service has delivered
year-on-year growth of over 300%. Significant
enhancements to the mobile app and the
in-store picking interface have simplified the user
experience, including navigation, ordering and
checkout and have led to notable improvements in
the reliability and speed of the service, with product
availability maintained at over 95%. Pick n Pay
asap! is now available in 392 supermarkets and
liquor stores. On-demand grocery retail is only one
element of the Group’s omnichannel proposition,
which includes its traditional scheduled delivery
service, a Click n Collect service and an online
clothing offer.
The Group’s combined online offer has delivered
compound annual growth of 72.5% over two years.
The Group believes that online grocery sales will
continue to expand in South Africa and intends
to grow its omnichannel offer and presence
significantly. Details of how this will be achieved are
set out in the Group’s Strategic Plan.

Some recovery in the Group’s highly
disrupted liquor business
Group liquor sales increased 57.2% year-on-year.
The Group lost a further 66 liquor trading days
this year (FY21: 209 days) as a result of Covid-19
trading restrictions, with an estimated R0.9 billion
in lost sales (FY21: R2.5 billion). The Group added 42
net new liquor stores this year (32 Pick n Pay and
10 Boxer). We are working closely with suppliers
to restore volumes, including through strong
promotions and improved on-shelf availability.

Store estate
The July civil unrest disrupted the Group’s opening
programme, with resources diverted to repairing
and re-opening damaged stores. Despite this, the
Group made good progress against its FY22 target,
opening 102 Pick n Pay stores across all formats
(57 company-owned and 45 franchise), 34 new
Boxer stores, and three new TM Supermarkets in
Zimbabwe.
In addition, the Group improved the overall quality of
its estate with the closure of 49 under-performing
stores, and the conversion of seven Pick n Pay
franchise stores to company-owned stores, and
two Pick n Pay company-owned stores to Boxer.
The Group will continue to leverage the flexibility of
its operating model in order to tailor its store estate
to best meet customer needs.

Gross profit
Gross profit remained flat at R18.4 billion, with a
reduction in the gross profit margin to 18.8% of
turnover (FY21: 19.8%). This contraction in gross
profit reflects the significant impact of the civil
unrest, in particular stock losses of R627.8 million,
and increased supply chain costs of R68.0 million.
These losses have been recovered through the
Group’s programme of insurance, and recoveries
have been recognised within “other income” in line
with International Financial Reporting Standards.
The Group invested close to R800 million in lower
prices across 400 key food and grocery lines in
Pick n Pay. This strategic programme of price
investment has enhanced Pick n Pay’s price
competitiveness and is an important step forward
in improving its price perception among consumers.
The Group also strengthened its promotions across
both Pick n Pay and Boxer to assist hard-pressed
customers and drive a recovery in sales volumes
following the civil unrest. The Group’s Smart
Shopper loyalty programme is an increasingly
important lever in Pick n Pay’s marketing and pricing
strategy, with loyalty customers receiving the
lowest Smart Prices and best deals, driving loyalty
participation to close to 80% of sales.
Smart Shopper is the most used loyalty programme
in South Africa and with ten years of customer
data provides the Group with unrivalled market
insights, invaluable in shaping our customer value
proposition and tailoring personalised promotions.

Undisrupted gross profit
margin – prior year
Better buying and supply
chain efficiency
Strategic investment in
lower prices
Undisrupted gross profit
margin
Impact of trade
disruptions:
Civil unrest
Covid-19 trading
restrictions
Reported gross profit
margin

FY22
%

FY21
%

20.1

19.7

0.3

0.9

(0.8)

(0.5)

19.6

20.1

(0.8)

–

–

(0.3)

18.8

19.8

The Group’s price investment has been funded
through a combination of better buying (driven in part
by strong volume growth in Boxer), improved supply
chain efficiency, and other cost savings delivered
under the Group’s Project Future programme –
including reduced shrink and waste, tighter working
capital management, increased staff productivity,
and lower logistics costs.
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The Group’s central supply chain remains an important
efficiency lever in the successful execution of the
second phase of Project Future. The development
of Pick n Pay’s new Eastport distribution centre in
Gauteng – in partnership with Fortress REIT Limited
(Fortress) – began in July 2021. Eastport will replace
the Group’s Longmeadow distribution centre and is
on track to open in March 2023. The facility, at just
over 150 000m2, will be 45% larger than Longmeadow
and – with 50% more capacity and enhanced systems
and layout – targeting a 12% decrease in the costper-case per delivered over the next 5 years. The
Eastport DC will complete Pick n Pay’s supply chain
centralisation in Gauteng and will support the Group’s
growth ambitions for the next 15 years. The Group
will purchase 60% of the Eastport facility from
Fortress on completion of the development in FY24,
at a projected value of R1.2 billion, and will enter into
a long-term lease for the 40% balance. The capital
investment will be funded through highly costeffective long-term debt already secured from a local
funding partner.
Boxer plans to begin construction on its second
distribution centre in Gauteng by the end of May 2022.
This distribution centre will add 30 000m2 of capacity,
and ultimately service more than 100 stores. It will open
early in FY24 and is an important element of Boxer’s
accelerated growth strategy. In addition, Boxer is
currently extending its existing facility in Gauteng by a
further 5 000m2 to a total size of 19 000m2.

Other income
Other income of R2.5 billion includes insurance
recoveries of R748.2 million in respect of losses
suffered as a result of the civil unrest. Further
detail is provided below. Other income, excluding the
insurance recoveries, increased 11.1% to R1.8 billion.
Franchise fee income – the Group’s royalty fee
income earned on franchise point of sale turnover,
increased 3.8% to R428.3 million. The moderate
increase reflects the combined impact of the
Covid-19 liquor restrictions and the civil unrest on
our franchise partners – notwithstanding a strong
recovery in the second half of the year – as well as
the conversion of 41 franchise supermarkets and
liquor stores to company-owned Pick n Pay and
Boxer stores over the past two years.
Operating lease income – decreased 18.9% year-onyear, from R142.5 million to R115.6 million, reflecting
the impact of conversions of franchise stores to
company-owned stores, as well as the impact the
civil unrest had on income received from in-store
kiosks and other retail tenants.
Commissions and other income – this broad category
of income includes income from value-added services
and all other commission and incentive income not
directly related to the sale of inventory. Commissions
and other income increased 18.3% year-on-year
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to R1.2 billion, with a solid recovery in all services
disrupted by Covid-19 restrictions in the prior period.
Income from value-added services – grew 25.0%
year-on-year, with solid performances across travel
and event ticketing, store vouchers and banking
and insurance services. Providing a secure and
convenient platform for banking and other financial
transactions is an increasingly important part of the
Group’s value-added offer. The Group processed
74.8 million cash withdrawals this year with a value
of R39.8 billion, facilitated 5.1 million local and
cross-border money transfers, extended the reach
of TymeBank to 3.6 million Pick n Pay and Boxer
customers, and introduced mini Standard Bank kiosks
into 27 of its Pick n Pay Supermarkets. Customers are
now able to renew their vehicle licence discs in over
500 Pick n Pay supermarkets – with close to 50 000
registered customers since the launch of the service
in January 2022. The Group provides an important
service in the monthly distribution of South African
Social Security Agency (SASSA) grants through its
Pick n Pay and Boxer supermarkets and in September
2021 were the first retailers to be selected as
collection points for the South African government’s
Social Relief of Distress (SRD) grant.

Insurance recoveries
The Group incurred material damage losses (stock,
assets and other costs) of R958.7 million as a result
of the July 2021 civil unrest. The Group recovered
these losses in full in FY22 under its SASRIA riot
insurance covers. Of these recoveries, R748.2 million
have been recorded within other income (the value
of stock and other costs recovered), with the
balance related to items of a capital nature. Further
information is provided in note 14 to the summarised
financial information. The Group’s business
interruption (loss of profits) claims remain open, as
16 of the damaged stores have not yet re-opened
for trade. The Group provided business interruption
insurers with interim submissions setting out the
earnings lost as a result of the unrest up to and
including end October 2021. The Group received
interim payments of R145.2 million from insurers in
respect of these interim submissions in March 2022
(post year-end).

Trading expenses
Trading expenses increased 4.2% year-on-year
(2.4% like-for-like) to R18.0 billion. Excluding onceoff staff costs in the prior year of R250 million, likefor-like trading expenses increased by 4.0%. Strong
cost discipline – particularly driven by greater staff
productivity and operational efficiency – contained
like-for-like expense growth below that of likefor-like sales growth, notwithstanding significant
cost pressures directly related to the civil unrest,
including the cost of heightened security measures,
the reinstatement of insurance covers, and essential
repairs and maintenance.

Employee costs – decreased 1.5% to R7.8 billion over
the period (-3.8% like-for-like). Employee costs in the
prior year included R250 million of once-off costs
– R200 million arising from a voluntary severance
programme and other strategic staff restructuring
decisions, and an appreciation bonus of R50 million
paid to frontline staff during the Level 5 Covid-19
lockdown last year. Excluding the impact of these
once-off costs, employee costs increased just 1.7%
year-on-year, reflecting the realisation of significant
staff productivity and efficiency benefits under the
Group’s Project Future programme and a reduction in
share-based payment costs.
Occupancy costs – increased 9.7% to R2.7 billion
(5.2% like-for-like), driven primarily by an escalation
in security costs after the civil unrest, with stronger
security measures implemented across the Group’s
estate, particularly in respect of key supply chain
infrastructure. In addition, the Group reinstated its
riot covers post the unrest, at significant cost. The
cost of security and insurance are expected to remain
elevated, with the reduced insurance capacity related
to riot risk in South Africa considered a risk for all
businesses. The Group is focused on reducing cash
property rentals (excluding IFRS 16) as a percentage
of turnover and has worked closely with landlords to
secure fair and reasonable rentals and escalation terms
which can sustain mutual growth over the long term.
Operations costs – increased 9.4% to R4.5 billion
(6.3% like-for-like), largely driven by increased repairs
and maintenance costs – due in part to structural
repairs necessitated by the civil unrest, and in part by
the resumption of a standard programme of repairs
and maintenance at store level, deferred last year
as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. The increase
in the Group’s operating costs also reflects higher
electricity tariffs in the second half of the year, and
the cost of load shedding in South Africa – including
the cost of running and maintaining diesel generators
(exacerbated by the higher cost of fuel). The Group
continues to enforce stringent health and hygiene
protocols as result of the Covid-19 pandemic,
repeating the majority of the related costs incurred in
the prior year.
The Group’s Project Future initiatives have delivered
strategic savings in combined depreciation and
amortisation charges – up just 1.5% year-on-year
(excluding IFRS 16 right-of-use assets). Savings have
been achieved through the careful management
of capital investment, a more targeted repairs and
maintenance programme and a move away from
software ownership to strategic software service
providers. While these savings have been partially
off-set by an increase in repairs and maintenance
and professional fees, this has been an important
area of cost control and efficiency gains.

Merchandising and administration costs – increased
7.8% year-on-year to R3.0 billion (12.2% like-for-like),
driven by the Group’s deliberate investment in a
strengthened marketing campaign this year, to drive
the recovery in sales volumes post the Covid-19
pandemic and the civil unrest. The Group has made
good progress in strengthening its voice in the
market and in improving Pick n Pay’s price perception,
but there is still more to do, which remains a priority
under the Group’s new Strategic Plan.
The Group’s year-on-year increase in trading expenses
also reflects the impact of its store conversion
programme, with the conversion of 41 franchise stores
into company-owned stores over the past two years.
The conversion programme has added operating costs
for the Group – particularly for its Boxer business – but
is driving greater investment returns through improved
sales growth and operating margins.
Project Future, supported by extensive internal and
external benchmarking, has identified further significant
and quantifiable opportunities for cost savings and
efficiency gains across the Group’s procurement, supply
chain, store operations and support office structures.
The Group is seeking R3.0 billion in cost savings over
the next three years. Execution of this second phase
of Project Future will be crucial to addressing cost
pressures across the value chain and to ensure the
Group is able to deliver on its promise of better value
for customers. Further details will be provided in the
presentation of the Group’s Strategic Plan.

Net finance costs
Net finance costs, including implied interest charges
under IFRS 16, decreased 6.7% year-on-year to
R1.1 billion.
Net funding interest – the Group maintained high levels
of liquidity over the year, through disciplined control
over capital investment, operating costs and working
capital. The Group’s cost of net bank funding decreased
23.8% year-on-year, from R94.6 million to R72.1 million,
supported by underlying like-for-like improvements in
working capital, lower average interest rates over the
year and the strategic investment of surplus funds into
high-yield money market funds.
Lease interest – implied net interest charges under
IFRS 16 decreased 4.1% year-on-year to R1.1 billion,
with ongoing stability in the Group’s broad lease
portfolio. Combined IFRS 16 implied interest and
depreciation charges are up 4.7% year-on-year,
reflecting the Group’s focus on reducing its cash
cost of occupancy.
South Africa has returned to a cycle of interest
rate hikes, with the South African Reserve Bank
(SARB) steadily increasing interest rates over the
past six months to contain headline consumer price
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inflation within its target range of 3% – 6%. The
SARB increased interest rates by 50 basis points
from November 2021 to January 2022. The Russian
invasion of Ukraine has further fuelled global and
domestic inflation concerns, driving large increases
in the prices of commodity products, including
wheat and cooking oil. SARB implemented a further
25 basis point increase in March 2022, with further
increases, estimated at around 100 – 125 basis
points, expected over the balance of the 2022
calendar year. The Group will actively manage the
impact on its cost of funding, through an optimal mix
of short-term and longer-term funding.

Rest of Africa segment
The Group’s Rest of Africa segment contributed
R4.5 billion of segmental revenue, up 5.1% on last
year. Segmental revenue increased 8.4%1 in constant
currency terms, and 10.8% on a like-for-like basis.
The Rest of Africa division delivered pro forma profit
before tax and capital items of R119.0 million (before
the application of hyperinflation accounting) down
R29.1 million (-19.6%) on last year.
The Group operates franchise operations across
Botswana, eSwatini, Namibia and Lesotho. These
businesses have demonstrated resilience over the
course of the Covid-19 pandemic, notwithstanding
increasingly difficult trading conditions across
southern Africa. The Group opened its first Pick n Pay
Express store in Namibia this year, alongside one new
clothing store in eSwatini and one supermarket and
one liquor store in Botswana – the first new stores in
the region in five years.
In partnership with AG Leventis, Pick n Pay opened
a small supermarket in Lagos, Nigeria in March 2021.
This pilot store had a challenging start as a result
of Covid-19 trading restrictions. The store’s sales
performance has improved as restrictions have
eased, and as brand awareness has grown, and the
initiative continues to provide the Group with valuable
learnings in the region, at limited risk. The Group’s
approach to investment in Nigeria remains cautious.
Zambia – lower earnings in the Rest of Africa
segment was largely attributable to the persistently
difficult trading conditions in Zambia, particularly
over the first half of the year. Stronger sales growth
in the region was driven by high levels of inflation,
which also resulted in significant cost and margin
pressure. Underlying volume growth remained weak
over the first half of the year, exacerbated by the
economic impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.
The team delivered an encouraging recovery in
the second half of the year, supported by strong
promotions over the festive season and a revitalised
fresh meat and produce offer. The Group countered
1

inflationary cost pressures through improved
operating efficiency and tight working capital
management, with a meaningful reduction in stock
cover, alongside improvements in in-store execution
and on-shelf availability.
The Group opened one new store and closed four
under-performing stores in Zambia over the year.
The management team progressed in its efforts to
reduce rental costs, working closely with landlords to
introduce a greater level of variable turnover-based
rentals, and reduce its exposure to US dollar-based
rentals. The political and economic environment
stabilised post the elections held in August 2021, and
the Group expects trading conditions to improve in
FY23, driven by a firmer local kwacha currency, lower
levels of inflation and the stronger copper price.
Zimbabwe – TM Supermarkets (TM), the Group’s
49%-owned associate in Zimbabwe, delivered another
resilient sales and earnings performance. Sustained
market share gains drove underlying volume growth
up 23.5% year-on-year, supported by the successful
refurbishments of our Newlands, Zengeza and Makoni
stores. Earnings in local currency grew 95.8% year-onyear, as the management team countered inflationary
cost pressures with highly-disciplined cost and
working capital management. The local Zimbabwe
dollar weakened significantly over the second half
of the year and, as a result, the Group’s share of TM’s
operating profits (trading result) fell to R96.7 million,
from R109.2 million last year, on translation to the
South African rand. The Group recognised a non-cash
net monetary loss on the revaluation of TM assets and
liabilities of R25.1 million (FY21: R29.2 million) under the
provisions of hyperinflation accounting in Zimbabwe,
which is excluded from pro forma headline earnings per
share, the Group’s main dividend driver.
Investment in TM
Supermarkets
27 February 28 February
2022
2021
Rm
Rm
Opening balance
Share of TM’s earnings,
excluding net monetary
adjustments
Hyperinflation accounting
– net monetary
adjustments
Dividends received
Foreign translation
recorded in equity
Impairment on fair value
assessment
Closing balance

69.7

50.4

96.7

109.2

(25.1)
(20.1)

(29.2)
-

(0.8)

20.9

(14.4)

(81.6)

106.0

69.7

For further information on pro forma constant currency disclosures, users are referred to Appendix 1 of the Summarised
Group Annual Financial Statements for the 52 weeks ended 27 February 2022
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The Group re-assessed the fair value of its investment
in TM Supermarkets at R106.0 million, from
R69.7 million last year. The increase in the value of the
investment recognises TM’s strong underlying FY22
operating performance, high levels of liquidity in the
business, minimal exposure to foreign debt and the
successful remittance of R20.1 million of dividends to
South Africa.
TM added three new stores during the year, including
its first Pick n Pay Express store, taking its store
footprint to 64 stores in Zimbabwe (56 supermarkets,
one Pick n Pay Express and seven liquor stores) with 32
stores trading under the Pick n Pay brand.

Profit before tax and capital items (PBT)

Profit before tax
and capital items
(PBT)

FY22
Rm

FY21
Rm

% change

1 807.7

1 554.2

16.3%

Capital losses
The Group incurred capital losses of R46.2 million this
year, against a R145.9 million charge in the prior year.
Net capital losses include R85.5 million related to
the sale, closure or impairment of under-performing
stores, a net capital gain of R53.7 million on the
recovery of insured assets at replacement value,
and a R14.4 million impairment loss on the Group’s
assessment of the fair value of its investment in
TM Supermarkets (please refer to note 7 for further
information). Net capital losses are added back in
the calculation of headline earnings and pro forma
headline earnings.

Tax

Non-cash
hyperinflation
net monetary
loss1

25.1

29.2

Comparable PBT 1

1 832.8

1 583.4

145.2

-

Pro forma PBT 2

1 978.0

1 583.4

24.9%

South Africa
Rest of Africa

1 859.0
119.0

1 435.3
148.1

29.5%
(19.6%)

Insurance
recoveries
received post
year-end

to note 9 for further information on the Group’s
segmental performance and to Appendix 1 for further
information relating to pro forma PBT.

15.8%

1

In line with normal Group practice, comparable PBT
excludes all non-cash hyperinflation net monetary
adjustments recognised in respect of the Group’s
investment in its associate in Zimbabwe, under
the requirements of IAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies (IAS 29).

2

Pro forma PBT and pro forma HEPS exclude all non-cash
hyperinflation net monetary adjustments related to the
Group’s investment in its associate in Zimbabwe and, in
FY22, include R145.2 million (R104.5 million net of tax) of
business interruption insurance proceeds received post
year-end in respect of the civil unrest. Refer to Appendix 1.

Pro forma PBT increased 24.9% year-on-year to
R1 978.0 million. The Group’s resilient earnings
performance against a backdrop of significant trade
and operational disruption over the past two years is
testament to targeted improvements in the Pick n Pay
and Boxer customer offer, alongside sustained cost
and operational discipline under the Group’s Project
Future modernisation programme. The strength of the
Group’s FY22 performance is particularly evidenced
by the results of its South African segment, with
pro forma PBT up 29.5% year-on-year. Please refer

The Group’s effective tax rate of 31.1% is in line with
last year (FY21: 31.3%) and reflects lower levels of
profitability in operations outside of South Africa.
The Group expects its tax rate to remain above
South Africa’s statutory tax rate of 28.0% for the
foreseeable future.

Earnings per share
Pro forma headline earnings per share (HEPS) – is
the primary measure in determining the Group’s
dividend pay-out ratio. Pro forma HEPS includes
R145.2 million of business interruption insurance
proceeds (R104.5 million net of tax) received in
March 2022 (post year-end) related to the July 2021
civil unrest.
In line with normal Group practice, pro forma HEPS
also excludes the Group’s share of non-cash
hyperinflation accounting remeasurements in TM
Supermarkets and all impairment losses and other
capital items. Pro forma HEPS increased by 23.0%
year-on-year to 289.64 cents per share. Please
refer to Appendices 1 and 3 for further detail.
Headline earnings per share (HEPS) – does not
recognise the insurance proceeds received
after year-end and includes the Group’s share of
non-cash hyperinflation accounting remeasurements
in TM Supermarkets, in line with the technical
requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards. All related impairment losses and other
capital items are excluded in the calculation of HEPS,
which increased by 14.5% to 262.59 cents per share.
Earnings per share (EPS) – does not recognise
insurance proceeds received after year-end
and includes the Group’s share of non-cash
hyperinflation remeasurements in TM Supermarkets
and all items of a capital nature. EPS increased by
25.1% to 253.34 cents per share.
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Detailed review of financial
position
The Group has consistently executed a phased longterm turnaround plan, with the initial stages designed
to stabilise the business and improve operational
effectiveness, followed by plans to enhance the
customer offer and drive long-term sustainable
growth. Notwithstanding the impact of severe
disruption over the past two years, the Group’s
liquidity remains strong, reflecting the success of its
long-term plan, and the achievement of sustainable
investment returns within carefully considered risk
parameters. The Group’s balance sheet provides a
solid foundation from which to accelerate strategic
investment.

Net funding and liquidity
The Group manages its operating and working capital
requirements through short-term and cost-effective
ZAR-denominated funding facilities. The Group has
drawn down approximately two thirds of its available
borrowing facilities to protect against potential
short-term market liquidity risks as a result of the
Covid-19 pandemic and civil unrest. Surplus funds
have been invested in high-yield money market
accounts. In addition, the Group has extended
shorter-dated debt into six-month and 12-month
funding.

The Group’s maintained its net cash position,
which reduced by R348.4 million year-on-year to
R25.3 million, reflecting the cash impact of the trade
disruptions over the year, alongside an expanded
capital investment programme and strategic
inventory investments at year-end. The Group
has utilised its supply chain finance programme –
borrowings on the platform increased to R403.1 million
– to take advantage of early settlement discounts
from suppliers where the cost of the Group’s funding
is less than the supplier incentive income received.
The Group’s liquidity position is strong, supported by
careful management of capital and operational spend.
The Group’s new Strategic Plan will set out to deliver
more ambitious change in order to deliver long-term
growth. The Group will continue to work closely
with strategic funders to ensure that its short and
long-term borrowings remain within targeted risk
parameters, that it does not place the business or
its stakeholders at any undue risk, and that capital
investments generate sustainable investment
returns ahead of the Group’s weighted average cost
of capital.

Working capital
Inventory

27 February
2022
Rm

28 February
2021
Rm

Cash balances

1 425.3

1 915.1

Cash investments
Cost-effective
overnight funding

5 000.0

3 500.0

(2 800.0)

(1 951.4)

Net cash and cash
equivalents

3 625.3

3 463.7

(1 650.0)

(1 640.0)

Inventory at R8.3 billion increased 15.1% on last year.
The increase was primarily driven by R900 million
of strategic stock buy-ins at year-end – including
investment into essential food and grocery
products ahead of anticipated price increases,
alongside investment into certain clothing and
general merchandise lines to protect against delays
experienced in global supply chains. Excluding
strategic investment, inventory increased 2.6%
year-on-year, with the addition of a net 72 new
company-owned stores and increased levels of
centralisation across our Boxer business. The Group
continued to work closely with suppliers to tailor its
customer offer across its estate – and delivered
further progress in reducing duplicate, slow moving
and uneconomic lines in the business.

(1 950.0)

(1 450.0)

Trade and other receivables

Net funding position

One to three-month
funding
Six to 12-month
funding
Net cash
Working capital –
invoice financing
facility

25.3

373.7

(403.1)

(241.2)

Net funding position

(377.8)

132.5
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Trade and other receivables (current and non-current)
increased by 10.3% on last year to R4.3 billion.
The Group’s net franchise debt increased 7.7%
year-on-year to R3.9 billion. The increase reflects
extended payment terms provided to franchisees
affected by the civil unrest, largely secured by
insurance receivables and repaid post the financial

year-end. The Group worked closely with its franchise
partners to rebuild and re-open its damaged franchise
estate as quickly as possible and provided support
in quantifying insurance claims and expediting
recoveries. At the time of publication, seven of the 58
damaged stores remain closed. The Group expects all
affected franchise stores to re-open, except for one
smaller market store. The Group converted seven
franchise stores (FY21: 34) to company-owned
stores during the period, targeting improved trading
densities and store profitability going forward.

Shareholder distribution

The Group wrote off R82.3 million of irrecoverable
debt during the year (FY21: R130.2 million) and has
reduced its impairment provision to 4.7% of the
value of the debtors’ book (FY21: 5.0%). The Group is
confident in the quality of its debtors’ book and in the
prudence of its impairments, supported by the agility
of its franchise partners in navigating the operational
challenges of the past two years.

In summary

Trade creditors
Trade and other payables increased by 7.1% on last
year to R13.1 billion, notwithstanding the impact of
strategic inventory buy-ins at year-end. The Group
continues to unlock gross profit margin benefits
through cash and early settlement discounts,
with the cost-effective use of its supply chain
financing programme and has made good progress in
improving its working capital efficiency through the
rationalisation of supplier payment days.

Capital investment
The Group invested R2.1 billion in capital projects this
year, delivering solid progress against its FY22 growth
ambitions, notwithstanding the redirection of capital
spend to restore distribution and store infrastructure
in KwaZulu-Natal and Gauteng. Capital commitments
at year-end of R0.4 billion are in respect of projects
planned for FY22 that were delayed into next year as
a result of the civil unrest. Capital investment included
R715.4 million on new stores, R888.5 million on
refurbishments and R530.2 million in the maintenance
and expansion of supply chain capability and systems
infrastructure and technology.
The Group will accelerate and expand its capital
investment programme to deliver its new Strategic
Plan – with a FY23 capital investment target of
R3.5 billion. The investment targets a stronger and
expanded Pick n Pay customer value proposition
(R1.7 billion); an acceleration in the roll-out of our Boxer
estate (R1.4 billion) and R400 million into systems and
digital innovation. In addition, the Group will invest
R500 million in supply chain equipment at the new
Pick n Pay Eastport distribution centre in FY23, ahead
of its scheduled opening in FY24.

The Board declared a final dividend of 185.35 cents
per share. This brings the total FY22 dividend to
221.15 cents per share, up 23.0% on last year in line with
the increase in Group’s pro forma headline earnings per
share, maintaining a dividend cover of 1.3 times related
earnings. The dividend will be paid on 6 June 2022,
please refer to the dividend declaration included with
this announcement for further information.

The Group is proud of the achievements of our
colleagues across the Pick n Pay and Boxer businesses
over the past year. Our operations recovered very
rapidly from the violence in July 2021. This was vital in
restoring consumer confidence. The Group also made
progress on improving its customer offer, and the
efficiency of its operations. We have entered the FY23
year with good trading momentum, delivering sales
growth of 9.9% over the first eight weeks of FY23.
Looking to the future, our management team has
developed a strong Strategic Plan to bring Pick n Pay
closer to the customer and accelerate the progress
of our key growth engines, including the expansion
of our Boxer, Clothing and Omnichannel businesses.
As part of the Strategic Plan, the Group will seek
to unlock further operating efficiencies through
Project Future Phase 2. This Strategic Plan will
be presented to investors and other stakeholders
immediately after publication and presentation of
these financial results.
Greater efficiency will be key in a year when the Group
expects to see potentially significant inflationary and
other cost pressures. These are already evident in the
operating environment, and reflect both international
factors - in particular the invasion of Ukraine and its
consequences - and local factors, including higher
insurance and security costs following the civil
unrest, and costs required to mitigate the impact
of load shedding. The Group will therefore guide
that stakeholders should not expect immediate
returns from its Strategic Plan, but should expect an
acceleration from FY24, as the benefits from the plan
materialise.
Gareth Ackerman
Chair

Pieter Boone
Chief Executive Officer

16 May 2022
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PRO FORMA EARNINGS PERFORMANCE
The table alongside presents the Group’s earnings performance on a pro forma basis.
The financial result for the 52 weeks ended 27 February 2022 was impacted by the civil unrest which occurred
in parts of South Africa in July 2021. Many stores were closed for trade, resulting in significant business
interruption (loss of profits). For further information on the impact of the civil unrest, refer to the review of
operations. The Group’s related business interruption claims remain open, as not all affected stores have reopened for trade as at the date of this report. During the financial period under review, the Group provided
business interruption insurers with interim claims submissions setting out the earnings lost as a result of
the unrest up to and including October 2021. The Group received payments of R145.2 million from business
interruption insurers in respect of these submissions in March 2022 (post year-end).
In line with technical requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards, these business interruption
insurance recoveries have not been accounted for in the Group’s 2022 financial results. These insurance
recoveries directly relate to the losses suffered by the Group during the 2022 financial year. The Group
has therefore presented its earnings performance for the current period on a pro forma basis, including the
insurance proceeds received post year-end.
In addition, in line with normal Group practice, the Group has excluded hyperinflation net monetary adjustments
from earnings for the current and prior periods under review in respect of the Group’s investment in associate
attributable to IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies (IAS 29).
Refer to Appendix 1 for further information.
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Insurance
recoveries
received
post
year-end* Pro forma
52 weeks to 52 weeks to 52 weeks to
52 weeks to
27 February 27 February 27 February
28 February
2022
2022
2022
% of
%
2021
% of
Rm  
Rm
Rm   turnover change
Rm   turnover
Turnover
Cost of merchandise sold
Gross profit

97 872.8
(79 476.7)
18 396.1

–
–
–

97 872.8
(79 476.7)
18 396.1

18.8

(0.1)

93 078.8
(74 657.1)
18 421.7

Other income
Franchise fee income
Operating lease income
Commissions and other income
Insurance recoveries*
Trading expenses
Employee costs
Occupancy
Operations
Merchandising and administration

2 505.1
428.3
115.6
1 213.0
748.2
(18 014.7)
(7 836.3)
(2 662.1)
(4 535.1)
(2 981.2)

145.2
–
–
–
145.2
–
–
–
–
–

2 650.3
428.3
115.6
1 213.0
893.4
(18 014.7)
(7 836.3)
(2 662.1)
(4 535.1)
(2 981.2)

2.7
0.4
0.1
1.3
0.9
18.4
8.0
2.7
4.6
3.1

67.6
3.8
(18.9)
18.3
–
4.2
(1.5)
9.7
9.4
7.8

1 580.9
412.7
142.5
1 025.7
–
(17 294.8)
(7 959.0)
(2 427.1)
(4 144.4)
(2 764.3)

18.6
8.6
2.6
4.5
3.0

145.2

3 031.7

3.1

12.0

2 707.8

2.9

–
–
–

(1 150.4)
(21.4)
(1 129.0)

1.2
–
1.2

(6.7)
(61.7)
(4.1)

(1 233.6)
(55.9)
(1 177.7)

1.3
0.1
1.3

96.7

–

96.7

(11.4)

109.2

1 832.8

145.2

1 978.0

24.9

1 583.4

(25.1)
1 807.7
(46.2)

–
145.2
–

(25.1)
1 952.9
(46.2)

(29.2)
1 554.2
(145.9)

241.8

–

241.8

(21.4)

(273.6)

(42.9)

Trading profit

2 886.5

Net finance costs
Net funding
Leases
Share of associate’s earnings excluding
net monetary adjustments*
Profit before tax before capital
items excluding net monetary
adjustments*
Share of associate’s hyperinflation
net monetary loss*
Profit before tax before capital items*
Loss on capital items
Profit/(loss) on sale of assets
and insurance recoveries on
scrapping of assets*
Loss from impairments and
scrapping of assets*
Impairment loss on investment
in associate

(1 150.4)
(21.4)
(1 129.0)

–

(273.6)

(14.4)

–

(14.4)

Profit before tax
Tax
Profit for the period
South Africa operating segment
Turnover
Profit before tax before capital
items

1 761.5
(547.0)
1 214.5

145.2
(40.7)
104.5

1 906.7
(587.7)
1 319.0

Rest of Africa operating segment
Total segmental revenue
Profit before tax before capital
items excluding net monetary
adjustments*

94 535.2
1 713.8

145.2

4 481.7

5.2

2.0

1.7
0.4
0.2
1.1

1.7

(81.6)
1.9
0.6
1.3

35.4
33.2
36.4

1 408.3
(441.2)
967.1

94 535.2

5.1

89 919.2

1 859.0

29.5

1 435.3

4 481.7

5.1

4 264.1

119.0

119.0

(19.6)

148.1

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
Headline earnings per share
Diluted headline earnings per share

Cents
253.34
252.43
262.59
261.65

Cents
253.34
252.43
262.59
261.65

25.1
25.6
14.5
15.0

Cents
202.52
200.93
229.31
227.51

Pro forma headline earnings per share*
Pro forma headline earnings per share
Pro forma diluted headline earnings
per share

Cents
262.59

Cents
27.05

Cents
289.64

23.0

Cents
235.42

261.65

26.94

288.59

23.6

233.57

*

19.8

1.5
0.5
1.0

Profit before tax and capital items, headline earnings, headline earnings per share (HEPS) and diluted headline earnings per share
(DHEPS) includes hyperinflationary net monetary adjustments in respect of the Group’s investment in associate under the requirements
of IAS 29. In order to present the underlying operating performance of the Group on a comparable basis, the share of associate’s
earnings has been separately disclosed between components including and excluding hyperinflation net monetary adjustments, and
the Group has included insurance proceeds received post year-end relating to civil unrest. The Group has therefore presented pro forma
profit before tax before capital items, pro forma headline earnings, pro forma HEPS and pro forma DHEPS, which excludes non-cash
hyperinflation net monetary adjustments and includes insurance proceeds related to civil unrest received post year-end. Refer to
Appendix 1 and note 14 for further information.
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Pick n Pay Stores Limited
Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa
Registration number: 1968/008034/06
ISIN: ZAE000005443
JSE share code: PIK

DIVIDEND DECLARATION
Tax reference number: 9275/141/71/2
Number of shares in issue: 493 450 321
Notice is hereby given that the directors have declared a final gross dividend (number 108) of 185.35 cents per
share out of income reserves.
The dividend declared is subject to dividend withholding tax at 20%.
The tax payable is 37.07 cents per share, resulting in shareholders who are not exempt from dividends tax with
a net dividend of 148.28 cents per share.

Dividend dates
The last day of trade in order to participate in the dividend (CUM dividend) will be Tuesday, 31 May 2022.
The shares will trade EX dividend from the commencement of business on Wednesday, 1 June 2022 and the
record date will be Friday, 3 June 2022. The dividends will be paid on Monday, 6 June 2022.
Share certificates may not be dematerialised or rematerialised between Wednesday, 1 June 2022 and Friday,
3 June 2022, both dates inclusive.
On behalf of the Board of directors
Debra Muller
Company Secretary
16 May 2022
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GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the period ended

Note

52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

Revenue

2

100 902.4

95 108.6

Turnover
Cost of merchandise sold

2

97 872.8
(79 476.7)

93 078.8
(74 657.1)

18 396.1
2 505.1

18 421.7
1 580.9

428.3
115.6
1 213.0
748.2

412.7
142.5
1 025.7
–

(18 014.7)

(17 294.8)

(7 836.3)
(2 662.1)
(4 535.1)
(2 981.2)

(7 959.0)
(2 427.1)
(4 144.4)
(2 764.3)

2 886.5
524.5
(1 674.9)
71.6

2 707.8
448.9
(1 682.5)
80.0

1 807.7
(46.2)

1 554.2
(145.9)

241.8
(273.6)
(14.4)

(21.4)
(42.9)
(81.6)

Profit before tax
Tax

1 761.5
(547.0)

1 408.3
(441.2)

Profit for the period

1 214.5

967.1

Gross profit
Other income
Franchise fee income
Operating lease income
Commissions, dividend and other income
Insurance recoveries

2
2
2
2

Trading expenses
Employee costs
Occupancy
Operations
Merchandising and administration
Trading profit
Finance income
Finance costs
Share of associate's earnings

2
3
7

Profit before tax before capital items
Loss on capital items
Profit/(loss) on sale of assets and insurance recoveries on
scrapping of assets
Loss from impairments and scrapping of assets
Impairment loss on investment in associate

7

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement in retirement scheme assets
Tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

25.4

7.8

35.3
(9.9)

10.9
(3.1)

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

16.2

12.5

Foreign currency translations
Movement in cash flow hedge
Tax on items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

19.0
(0.2)
(2.6)

28.4
(16.9)
1.0

Total comprehensive income for the period
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
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4
4

1 256.1

987.4

Cents

Cents

253.34
252.43

202.52
200.93

GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note

As at
27 February
2022
Rm

As at
28 February
2021
Rm

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Net investment in lease receivables
Deferred tax assets
Investment in associate
Loans
Retirement scheme assets
Investment in insurance cell captive
Operating lease assets
Trade and other receivables
Current assets
Inventory
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Net investment in lease receivables
Right-of-return assets

7
11
8

8

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Share capital
Treasury shares
Retained earnings
Other reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve
Total equity

5
6

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Deferred revenue
Bank overdraft and overnight borrowings
Borrowings
Current tax liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

11

Total equity and liabilities
Number of ordinary shares in issue – thousands
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue – thousands
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue – thousands
Net asset value (property value based on directors' valuation) – cents per share

5.1
4.2
4.2

987.1
7 150.5
9 588.9
2 069.0
822.5
106.0
85.9
122.0
47.4
7.9
106.5
21 093.7

1 006.0
6 642.6
10 050.6
2 134.1
912.7
69.7
59.2
82.7
32.7
11.0
166.7
21 168.0

8 277.3
4 207.6
6 425.3
319.1
21.5
19 250.8

7 193.3
3 743.7
5 415.1
277.1
19.3
16 648.5

40 344.5

37 816.5

6.0
(702.1)
4 717.3
(8.6)
(296.9)
3 715.7

6.0
(873.4)
4 573.5
(6.6)
(313.3)
3 386.2

13 656.5
–
13 656.5

14 312.6
10.1
14 322.7

13 065.2
2 431.4
385.1
2 800.0
4 003.1
279.8
7.7
22 972.3

12 198.8
2 046.8
353.3
1 951.4
3 331.2
218.6
7.5
20 107.6

40 344.5

37 816.5

493 450.3
479 389.3
481 128.4
827.1

493 450.3
477 524.8
481 304.5
769.9
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the period ended

At 1 March 2020
Total comprehensive income for
the period
Profit for the period
Foreign currency translations
Movement in cash flow hedge
Remeasurement in retirement
scheme assets

Share
capital
Rm

Treasury
shares
Rm

Retained
earnings
Rm

Other
reserves
Rm

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve
Rm

6.0

(961.7)

4 303.2

5.3

(342.7)

3 010.1

–

–

974.9

(16.9)

29.4

987.4

–
–
–

–
–
–

967.1
–
–

–
–
(16.9)

–
29.4
–

967.1
29.4
(16.9)

–

–

7.8

–

–

7.8

Total
equity
Rm

Other reserve movements

–

–

–

5.0

–

5.0

Transactions with owners

–

88.3

(704.6)

–

–

(616.3)

–

–

(934.7)

–

–

(934.7)

–
–

88.3
–

(88.3)
318.4

–
–

–
–

–
318.4

6.0

(873.4)

4 573.5

(6.6)

(313.3)

3 386.2

–

–

1 239.9

(0.2)

16.4

1 256.1

–
–
–

–
–
–

1 214.5
–
–

–
–
(0.2)

–
16.4
–

1 214.5
16.4
(0.2)

–

–

25.4

–

–

25.4

Other reserve movements

–

–

–

(1.8)

–

(1.8)

Transactions with owners

–

171.3

(1 096.1)

–

–

(924.8)

–
–

–
(114.2)

(959.6)
–

–
–

–
–

(959.6)
(114.2)

–
–

285.5
–

(285.5)
149.0

–
–

–
–

–
149.0

6.0

(702.1)

4 717.3

(8.6)

(296.9)

3 715.7

Dividends paid
Net effect of settlement of
employee share awards
Share-based payments expense
At 28 February 2021
Total comprehensive income for
the period
Profit for the period
Foreign currency translations
Movement in cash flow hedge
Remeasurement in retirement
scheme assets

Dividends paid
Share purchases
Net effect of settlement of
employee share awards
Share-based payments expense
At 27 February 2022
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the period ended

Note

52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

Cash flows from operating activities
Trading profit
Adjusted for dividend income
Adjusted for non-cash items
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Amortisation on intangible assets
Share-based payments expense
Lease adjustments
Movement in operating lease assets
Movement in retirement scheme assets
Fair value and foreign exchange adjustments

2 886.5
–
3 391.5
1 216.0
1 979.9
123.4
149.0
(42.4)
3.1
(4.0)
(33.5)

2 707.8
(40.0)
3 404.7
1 187.3
1 793.0
131.9
318.4
(91.2)
2.0
(3.1)
66.4

Cash generated before movements in working capital
Movements in working capital
Movements in trade and other payables and deferred revenue
Movements in inventory and right-of-return assets
Movements in trade and other receivables

6 278.0
(563.6)
898.2
(1 074.2)
(387.6)

6 072.5
591.5
998.1
(645.9)
239.3

Cash generated from trading activities
Other interest received
Other interest paid
Interest received on net investment in lease receivables
Interest paid on lease liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Dividends received
Dividends paid
Tax paid
Cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in intangible assets
Investment in property, plant and equipment
Purchase of operations
Proceeds on disposal of intangible assets
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Insurance proceeds on capital items
Principal net investment in lease receipts
Lease incentives received
Loans repaid
Loans advanced
Cash utilised in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Principal lease liability payments
Borrowings raised
Repayment of borrowings
Share purchases
Cash (utilised in)/generated from financing activities

5 714.4
300.1
(341.0)
203.7
(1 364.4)
4 512.8
20.1
(959.6)
(403.9)
3 169.4

6 664.0
240.4
(296.3)
205.9
(1 519.4)
5 294.6
57.1
(934.7)
(425.2)
3 991.8

(88.1)
(1 990.1)
(55.7)
4.0
135.9
210.5
251.6
52.0
14.8
(41.5)
(1 506.6)

(81.2)
(1 204.0)
(199.5)
0.7
14.7
–
254.4
42.8
34.9
(7.5)
(1 144.7)

(2 059.8)
6 020.4
(5 348.5)
(114.2)
(1 502.1)

(1 677.0)
7 540.3
(5 144.1)
–
719.2

160.7
3 463.7
0.9
3 625.3

3 566.3
(102.7)
0.1
3 463.7

6 425.3
(2 800.0)

5 415.1
(1 951.4)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Foreign currency translations
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Consisting of :
Cash and cash equivalents
Overnight borrowings

12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION
for the period ended 27 February 2022

1

Basis of preparation and accounting policies
The summarised Group financial statements for the period ended 27 February 2022 are prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the JSE Listings Requirements for abridged reports, and the
requirements of the Companies Act, as applicable to summarised financial statements. The Listings
Requirements require abridged reports to be prepared in accordance with the framework concepts and
the measurement and recognition requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, and the
Financial Pronouncements, as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, and to also, as a
minimum, contain the information required by IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.
The summarised Group annual financial statements do not include all the information required by IFRS
for full financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the 2022 audited Group annual
financial statements. The accounting policies applied in the preparation of the audited Group annual
financial statements, from which the summarised Group annual financial statements were derived, are in
terms of IFRS and are consistent with those applied in the financial statements for the 52 weeks ended
28 February 2021. Amendments to IFRS 16 regarding the practical expedient allowed for rent concessions
received as a result of Covid-19 have been extended to 30 June 2022. The Group has continued to
apply this practical expedient. During the period, the Group recognised rent concessions of R13.1 million
(2021: R54.9 million), all of which were recorded in the statement of comprehensive income.
These summarised Group financial statements are themselves not audited, but are extracted from audited
information. The audited Group annual financial statements were audited by Ernst & Young Inc., who
expressed an unmodified opinion thereon. Refer to Appendix 4 for an extraction of the key audit matters
included in the auditor’s report, and refer to note 14 for an extraction of the relevant notes to the Group
annual financial statements, to which those key audit matters relate. The audited Group annual financial
statements and the auditor’s report thereon are available for inspection at the Company’s (Pick n Pay
Stores Limited) registered office.
The directors take full responsibility for the preparation of these summarised Group annual financial
statements and the correct extraction of financial information from the underlying audited Group annual
financial statements.
These summarised Group annual financial statements have been prepared by the Finance Division under
the supervision of the Chief Finance Officer, Lerena Olivier CA(SA).
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52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

2

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers
Turnover
Franchise fee income
Commissions and other income

99 514.1

94 477.2

97 872.8
428.3
1 213.0

93 078.8
412.7
985.7

Insurance recoveries (note 14)

748.2

–

Operating lease income

115.6

142.5

Dividend income from investment in insurance cell captive*
Finance income
Bank balances and investments
Trade receivables and other
Net investment in lease receivables

–

40.0

524.5

448.9

268.9
50.7
204.9

201.7
38.7
208.5

100 902.4

95 108.6

Revenue from contracts with customers is further disaggregated into geographical regions. Refer to
note 9.
* Reserves declared out of the insurance cell captive in the prior year was offset by a corresponding decrease in the fair value
of the investment insurance cell captive recorded within trading expenses.

52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

3

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

Finance costs
Lease liabilities
Borrowings and other

1 333.9
341.0

1 386.2
296.3

1 674.9

1 682.5

Pick n Pay Stores Limited
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52 weeks to
52 weeks to
27 February
28 February
2022
2021
Cents per share Cents per share

4

Basic, headline and diluted earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
Headline earnings per share
Diluted headline earnings per share

4.1

253.34
252.43
262.59
261.65

202.52
200.93
229.31
227.51

Rm

Rm

Reconciliation between basic and headline
earnings
Profit for the period – basic earnings for the period
Adjustments:
(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Tax effect of profit/(loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss from impairments and scrapping of property, plant and equipment
Tax effect of loss from impairments and scrapping of property, plant
and equipment
Loss from impairments and scrapping of intangible assets
Tax effect of loss from impairments and scrapping of intangible assets
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets
Tax effect of impairment loss on right-of-use assets
Impairment loss on investment in associate
Insurance recoveries on scrapping of assets due to civil unrest
Tax effect of insurance recoveries on scrapping of assets due to civil unrest
Headline earnings for the period

1 214.5

967.1

44.4

127.9

(31.6)
3.5
209.1

21.4
(6.0)
18.1

(48.7)
7.9
(0.1)
56.6
(15.1)
14.4
(210.5)
58.9

(5.1)
10.7
(3.0)
14.1
(3.9)
81.6
–
–

1 258.9

1 095.0

000’s

000’s

493 450.3
479 389.3
481 128.4

493 450.3
477 524.8
481 304.5

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (excluding treasury shares)
Dilutive effect of share awards

479 389.3
1 739.1

477 524.8
3 779.7

Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares

481 128.4

481 304.5

For pro forma headline earnings per share and pro forma diluted
headline earnings per share, refer to the Appendix 3.

4.2 Number of ordinary shares
Number of ordinary shares in issue
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (excluding treasury shares)
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares
Reconciliation of weighted average number of ordinary shares to
diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares:

Any outstanding restricted shares granted in terms of the Group’s executive restricted share plan
that have not yet met required performance hurdles, have no dilutive impact on the weighted average
number of shares in issue.
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52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

5 Share capital
5.1 Ordinary share capital
Authorised
800 000 000 (2021: 800 000 000) ordinary shares of 1.25 cents each

10.0

10.0

6.0

6.0

000’s

000’s

Treasury shares (note 6)
Shares held outside the Group

13 224.8
480 225.5

15 268.6
478 181.7

Total shares in issue at end of period

493 450.3

493 450.3

Issued
493 450 321 (2021: 493 450 321) ordinary shares of 1.25 cents each

The number of shares in issue is made up as follows:

The Company can issue new shares to settle the Group’s obligations under its employee share schemes,
but issues in this regard are limited, in aggregate, to 5% of total issued share capital or 24 672 516
(2021: 24 672 516) shares. To date, 15 743 000 (2021: 15 743 000) shares have been issued, resulting in
8 929 516 (2021: 8 929 516) shares remaining for this purpose.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared, and are entitled to one vote
per share at meetings of the Company.
Certain ordinary shares are stapled to B shares and are subject to restrictions upon disposal. Refer to
note 5.2.
52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

5.2 B share capital
Authorised
1 000 000 000 (2021: 1 000 000 000) unlisted, non-convertible,
non-participating, no par value B shares

–

–

Issued
259 682 869 (2021: 259 682 869) unlisted, non-convertible,
non-participating, no par value B shares

–

–

B shares are stapled to certain ordinary shares and cannot be traded separately from each other.
Stapled ordinary shares, together with B shares, are subject to restrictions upon disposal.
The holders of B shares are entitled to the same voting rights as holders of ordinary shares, but are not
entitled to any rights to distributions by the Company or any other economic benefits. Refer to note 5.1.
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6

52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

873.4
114.2
(285.5)

961.7
–
(88.3)

702.1

873.4

000’s

000’s

At beginning of period
Shares purchased during the period
Shares forfeited during the period pursuant to employee share schemes
Shares sold during the period pursuant to the take-up of share options
by employees
Shares delivered to participants of restricted share plan

15 268.6
2 200.0
–

16 115.2
–
696.1

(681.8)
(3 562.0)

(163.4)
(1 379.3)

At end of period

13 224.8

15 268.6

Treasury shares

At beginning of period
Shares purchased during the period
Settlement of employee share awards
At end of period

The movement in the number of treasury shares held is as follows:

7
7.1

Investment in associate
Accounting for investment in associate
The Group has a 49% investment in TM Supermarkets (Pvt) Limited (TM Supermarkets), a private
company incorporated in Zimbabwe, and which operates supermarkets throughout Zimbabwe.
The Group accounts for its investment in associate under the equity method of accounting in accordance
with IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures.
In accordance with the provisions of IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies (IAS 29),
entities operating in Zimbabwe have been assessed to be operating in a hyperinflationary economy.
The equity accounted results of TM Supermarkets included in this Group result have therefore been
prepared in accordance with IAS 29, with the following key accounting principles applied within the results
of TM Supermarkets:
• All previously published financial information was restated to reflect the current buying power of the
Zimbabwe dollar (ZWL$), and
• All assets and liabilities were revalued to reflect current values, which resulted in a non-cash net
monetary adjustment recognised in the statement of comprehensive income of TM Supermarkets.
As the Group’s presentation currency is not that of a hyperinflationary economy, the comparative
information of the Group’s financial results related to TM Supermarkets is not restated. Any
difference between the Group’s share of the TM Supermarkets adjusted equity balance after applying
IAS 29 and the balance previously recorded by the Group as at 28 February 2021 is recognised in other
comprehensive income in the current period, as part of foreign currency translations.

7.2 Exchange rates applied in translating the results of investment in
associate
The share of associate’s income and net asset value of TM Supermarkets have been translated into the
Group’s presentation currency at the closing rate in accordance with the hyperinflationary provisions of
IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.
Effective 1 June 2020, Zimbabwe implemented a formal market-based foreign exchange trading system
to establish formalised trading in ZWL$ with other currencies (referred to as the auction rate). The
intention of this auction rate system is expected to bring transparency and efficiency in the trading of
foreign currency in the economy.

26

picknpay.com

7
Investment in associate (continued)
7.2 Exchange rates applied in translating the results of investment in
associate (continued)
In line with prior period assessments, management assessed that the closing auction rate of 0.12 ZWL$
(2021: 0.18 ZWL$) to the South African rand is not available for immediate settlement, as shortages of
foreign currency results in the official exchange rate not being liquid, and is therefore not an appropriate
rate to use when accounting for the Group’s investment in associate. An estimated exchange rate
of 0.08 ZWL$ (2021: 0.13 ZWL$) to the South African rand was used when translating the result of
TM Supermarkets as at 27 February 2022. Inputs considered in this estimate include the official inflation
rate, the in-country fuel price, the exchange rate applicable to dividends received from the Group’s
investment in associate during the period and trends in the Zimbabwean Retail industry of permanent
discounts being applied to the auction rate to attract settlement in USD.
The table below summarises the exchange rates at which the results of TM Supermarkets have been
translated into South African rand, for the relevant periods under review. The closing ZWL$ to ZAR
exchange rate was calculated using the official USD to ZAR exchange rate divided by the management
estimated USD to ZWL$ exchange rate. For comparative informational purposes, exchange rates based
on the USD to ZWL$ auction rate have also been presented.
1.0 ZWL$ : 1.0 ZAR 1.0 USD : 1.0 ZAR 1.0 USD : 1.0 ZWL$
Closing rates at 27 February 2022
Exchange rates used by management

0.08

15.29

186.00

Auction rate

0.12

15.29

124.00

Exchange rates used by management

0.13

15.08

115.00

Auction rate

0.18

15.08

83.90

Closing rates at 28 February 2021

52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

69.7
71.6

50.4
80.0

96.7
(25.1)

109.2
(29.2)

(0.8)
(14.4)
(20.1)

20.9
(81.6)
–

106.0

69.7

7.3 Reconciliation of investment in associate
At beginning of period
Share of associate’s earnings
Share of associate’s earnings before net monetary adjustments
Share of associate’s hyperinflation net monetary loss
Foreign currency translations
Impairment loss on investment in associate
Dividend declared and received
At end of period

7.4 Impairment of investment in associate
During the period under review, significant judgement was applied by management in determining that
the following impairment indicators of the Group’s investment in associate exist:
• The devaluation and illiquidity of currency in Zimbabwe and the resultant impact on the Zimbabwean
economy – the jurisdiction in which TM Supermarkets trades in,
• Currency shortages and currency devaluation led to high levels of food and other inflation,
• The economy was subjected to increases in Zimbabwe inflation rates as published by the RBZ; and
• The upward valuation of the assets of TM Supermarkets as a result of the application of hyperinflation
accounting in terms of IAS 29.
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7
Investment in associate (continued)
7.4 Impairment of investment in associate (continued)
Impairment reviews were performed and the Group concluded that the carrying value of its investment
in associate exceeded its recoverable amount, resulting in an impairment loss of R14.4 million recognised
by the Group.
The recoverable amount of TM Supermarkets was determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
calculation discounts future cash flow forecasts at an appropriate pre-tax rate that reflects the specific
risks and challenges relating to TM Supermarkets. Management-approved future cash flow forecasts,
over a period of five years, were based on past experience and the expected performance of the retail
market in Zimbabwe. Cash flows beyond this period were extrapolated by applying a nil growth rate. The
pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections was 44.9%.
Management believes that the carrying value of the Group’s investment in associate of R106.0 million is
reflective of the value of its investment in TM Supermarkets and that any reasonable possible change
in key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts are based would not result in any additional
significant impairment losses. Refer to note 7.5.

7.5 Sensitivity analysis
The following tables represent the sensitivity analysis performed by management on the significant
judgements applied in the accounting of the Group’s investment in associate for the 52 weeks ended
27 February 2022.

7.5.1 Exchange rates applied in the translation of the results of the Group’s
investment in associate
If the exchange rate applied by management had been 10% higher or 10% lower, or the auction rate was
applied, with all other variables held constant, the impact on the statement of comprehensive income
and statement of financial position would have been as follows:
Exchange
rate applied by
management
+10%
-10%
Auction rate*
1.0 ZWL$ : 0.07 ZAR 1.0 ZWL$ : 0.08 ZAR 1.0 ZWL$ : 0.09 ZAR 1.0 ZWL$ : 0.12 ZAR
Impact on statement of
comprehensive income
Share of associate’s earnings (Rm)
Impairment on investment in
associate (Rm)
Impact on statement of financial
position
Investment in associate (Rm)
*

28

65.2

71.6

79.7

107.5

13.1

14.4

16.0

21.6

96.4

106.0

117.8

159.0

Calculated by applying the official auction rate of 1 USD to 124 ZWL$.
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7
Investment in associate (continued)
7.5 Sensitivity analysis (continued)
7.5.2 Discount rate applied in the assessment of the recoverable amount of the
Group’s investment in associate
If the discount rate had been 10% higher or 10% lower, with all other variables held constant, the impact on
the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position would have been as follows:
+10%

As reported

-10%

Impact on statement of comprehensive income
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) on investment in
associate (Rm)

35.8

14.4

(22.3)

Impact on statement of financial position
Investment in associate (Rm)

84.6

106.0

142.7

7.5.3 Growth rate applied in the assessment of the recoverable amount of
investment in associate
The sensitivity of the Group’s exposure to the growth rate risk is estimated by assessing the impact of
a reasonable expected movement in the relevant growth rates on our investment in TM Supermarkets.
A sensitivity analysis is not presented as the estimated impact is not considered to be material.
52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

8

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

Trade and other receivables
Gross trade and other receivables

4 521.2

4 110.1

Trade receivables from contracts with customers
Prepayments
Other receivables

4 075.1
121.9
324.2

3 796.6
104.0
209.5

Allowance for impairment losses

(207.1)

(199.7)

Trade receivables from contracts with customers
Other receivables

(155.0)
(52.1)

(156.4)
(43.3)

Net trade and other receivables

4 314.1

3 910.4

Disclosed as:
Non-current
Current

106.5
4 207.6

166.7
3 743.7

Balance at the beginning of the period
Irrecoverable debts written off
Additional impairment losses recognised
Prior allowances for impairment reversed

199.7
(82.3)
92.8
(3.1)

134.3
(130.2)
205.2
(9.6)

At end of period

207.1

199.7

8.1 Allowance for impairment losses
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South Africa
Rm

9

Rest of Africa Total operations
Rm
Rm

Operating segments
52 weeks to 27 February 2022
Total segment revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers (note 2)
Operating lease income (note 2)
Insurance recoveries (note 2)
Finance income (note 2)
Direct deliveries*
Segment external turnover (note 2)
Pro forma profit before tax before capital items**^
Profit before tax before capital items excluding net
monetary adjustment
Insurance proceeds received post year-end^
Profit before tax**
Other information
Statement of comprehensive income
Finance costs (note 3)
Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Profit on sale and insurance recoveries on scrapping
of assets
Loss from impairments and scrapping of property
plant and equipment
Loss from impairments and scrapping of intangible
assets
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets
Impairment loss on investment in associate (note 7)
Share of associate's earnings (note 7)
Statement of financial position
Total assets
Total liabilities
Investment in associate (note 7)
Additions to non-current assets
52 weeks to 28 February 2021
Total segment revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers (note 2)
Operating lease income (note 2)
Finance income (note 2)
Direct deliveries*
Segment external turnover (note 2)
Pro forma profit before tax before capital items**^
Profit before tax **
Other information
Statement of comprehensive income
Finance costs (note 3)
Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets
Impairment loss on investment in associate (note 7)
Share of associate's earnings (note 7)
Statement of financial position
Total assets
Total liabilities
Investment in associate (note 7)
Additions to non-current assets
*

97 521.9
96 163.1
114.9
748.2
495.7
–
94 535.2
1 859.0

4 481.7
3 351.0
0.7
–
28.8
1 101.2
3 337.6
119.0

102 003.6
99 514.1
115.6
748.2
524.5
1 101.2
97 872.8
1 978.0

1 713.8
145.2
1 672.5

119.0
–
89.0

1 832.8
145.2
1 761.5

1 641.3

33.6

1 674.9

1 305.0
1 930.7

34.4
49.2

1 339.4
1 979.9

237.3

4.5

241.8

173.9

35.2

209.1

7.9
53.9
–
–

–
2.7
14.4
71.6

7.9
56.6
14.4
71.6

38 735.1
35 726.1
–
4 328.5

1 609.4
902.7
106.0
105.3

40 344.5
36 628.8
106.0
4 433.8

91 871.6
91 304.7
141.6
425.3
–
89 919.2
1 435.3
1 383.1

4 264.1
3 172.5
0.9
23.6
1 067.1
3 159.6
148.1
25.2

96 135.7
94 477.2
142.5
448.9
1 067.1
93 078.8
1 583.4
1 408.3

1 654.4

28.1

1 682.5

1 278.2
1 754.7
20.1
7.5
10.5
14.1
–
–

41.0
38.3
1.3
10.6
0.2
–
81.6
80.0

1 319.2
1 793.0
21.4
18.1
10.7
14.1
81.6
80.0

36 346.2
33 572.2
–
3 629.4

1 470.3
858.1
69.7
79.3

37 816.5
34 430.3
69.7
3 708.7

Included in segmental revenue, as reviewed by the CODM of the Group, are deliveries made directly to franchisees
by in‑country suppliers, in those countries where the Group does not have a statutory presence. These deliveries do
not qualify as revenue in terms of IFRS but are included in segmental revenue for the purposes of the Group’s review
of operating segments. In those countries where the Group has a statutory presence, including South Africa, direct
deliveries are included in the Group’s reported revenue.
** “Segmental profit before tax” and “segmental pro forma profit before tax before capital items” are reported measures
used for evaluating the performance of the Group’s operating segments. On an overall basis, these metrics equal the
Group’s reported “profit before tax”, and “pro forma profit before tax before capital items”, respectively. These metrics, for
the Rest of Africa segment, comprise the segment’s trading result and directly attributable costs only. No allocations are
made for indirect or incremental costs incurred by the South Africa segment relating to the Rest of Africa segment.
^ Calculated as profit before tax before capital items, excluding the Group’s share of hyperinflation net monetary
adjustments recognised by the Group’s associate as a result of IAS 29 for the current and prior period, and including
insurance recoveries received post year-end of R145.2 million for the current period. Refer to note 14 and the Appendix 1
for further information.
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10 Related party transactions
During the period under review, in the ordinary course of business, certain companies within the Group
entered into transactions with each other. These intergroup transactions and related balances are
eliminated on consolidation. Intergroup transactions are similar to those in the prior year and related
parties remain unchanged from those reported at 28 February 2021.

11

Financial instruments
All financial instruments held by the Group are measured at amortised cost, with the exception of financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss and derivatives designated as hedging instruments, as
set out below:
52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

47.4

32.7

7.7

7.5

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Investment in insurance cell captive – Level 2
Derivative financial instruments (designated as hedging instruments)
Forward exchange contract liabilities – Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data, where it
is available, and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
The carrying value of all other financial instruments approximate their fair value.
There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy during
the period.

12

Purchase of operations
The Group converted seven (2021: 34) franchise stores to company-owned Pick n Pay and Boxer stores,
none of which is individually material to the Group. These acquisitions had no significant impact on the
Group’s results, but are now delivering stronger store sales growth and improved store profitability. The
goodwill arising from these acquisitions represents the value creation that the Group expects to realise
in the future.
52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

Identifiable net assets
Property, plant and equipment
Inventory
Intangible assets

27.9
13.8
–

72.4
21.2
33.0

Total identifiable net assets at fair value

41.7

126.6

Goodwill
Purchase price of acquisitions at fair value
Less: total identifiable net assets at fair value

69.5
(41.7)

296.5
(126.6)

Goodwill acquired

27.8

169.9

Net cash paid in respect of acquisitions
Purchase price of acquisitions at fair value
Less: amounts net settled against trade and other receivables

69.5
(13.8)

296.5
(97.0)

Net cash paid

55.7

199.5

The net assets arising from these acquisitions were as follows:
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52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

1 221.2

383.4

208.3
1 007.1
5.8

3.3
364.3
15.8

2 778.8

2 116.6

110.1
2 418.7
250.0

232.9
1 810.4
73.3

4 000.0

2 500.0

Commitments
Authorised capital expenditure
Contracted for
Property
Furniture, fittings, equipment and vehicles
Intangible assets
Not contracted for
Property
Furniture, fittings, equipment and vehicles
Intangible assets
Total commitments

The above commitments relate to anticipated capital expenditure for the 52 weeks ended 26 February 2023.
In addition, the Group will develop Pick n Pay’s new Eastport distribution centre in Gauteng – in partnership
with Fortress REIT Limited (Fortress). Eastport will replace the Group’s Longmeadow distribution centre
and is anticipated to open during the 2024 financial year. The Group will purchase 60% of Eastport asset
from Fortress on completion of the development, at a projected value of R1.2 billion, and will enter into a
long‑term lease for the 40% balance. This long-term lease results in an estimated R1.4 billion of future
rental payments over a 15 year lease term.

14 Significant event – civil unrest in South Africa
During July 2021, the disruptive effects of civil unrest and looting in parts of South Africa had a significant
impact on the Group’s result for the 52 weeks ending 27 February 2022.
Across the Group, 212 stores were damaged by looting and destruction, with many stores requiring
significant restoration before re-opening. In addition, 2 distribution centres in KwaZulu-Natal were looted
of all inventory and suffered considerable damage to infrastructure. Furthermore, at the height of the
unrest, an additional 551 stores were closed as a precautionary measure to ensure the safety of staff and
customers.
The Group has made significant progress in rebuilding and re-opening stores. Damage to the Pick n Pay’s
distribution network was restored within two weeks, and at the date of this report, only 16 stores remain
closed. These stores are in severely damaged shopping centres, where re-opening depends on the
restoration of the centre as a whole.
The Group suffered material losses to its assets and material disruption to its business operations (loss
of profits) as a result of looted inventory, destruction of infrastructure and lost sales from store closures,
alongside increased operating costs. The result for the period under review includes stock write-off losses,
capital losses related to the scrapping of assets, increased operating costs and related insurance recoveries.
The Group fully recovered material asset losses and related costs during the 2022 financial period under
its SASRIA riot insurance policies.
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14 Significant event – civil unrest in South Africa (continued)
Significant items relating to the civil unrest, recorded in the period under review, is tabled below.
Rm

Impact on statement of comprehensive income:
Cost of sales – inventory written off
Other income – insurance recovery of inventory, increased costs of operations
and business interruption losses
Capital items – insurance recovery of material damages to assets
Capital items – loss of scrapping assets

627.8
748.2
210.5
(156.8)

Contingent asset related to post year-end insurance receipts

145.2

Rm

The Group’s business interruption claims (loss of profits) remain open, as not all affected stores have
re-opened for trade. During the financial period under review, the Group provided business interruption
insurers with interim claim submissions setting out the earnings lost as a result of the unrest up to and
including end October 2021. The Group received interim payments of R145.2 million from business interruption
insurers, in respect of its interim submissions, in March 2022 (post year-end). In line with insurance recovery
recognition criteria as set out by IFRS, these recoveries have not been accounted for in the 2022 financial year,
however, a contingent asset exists at 27 February 2022. At that date, the Group had a right to a possible
asset whose existence would be confirmed by the future settlement of these insurance claims.
Refer to Appendix 1 for pro forma disclosures relating to the Group’s 2022 pro forma financial performance,
taking into account these post year-end insurance recoveries.
This note is an extraction of note 31 of the audited Group annual financial statements for the 52 weeks ended
27 February 2022, and relate to the key audit matter raised by Ernst & Young Inc. in their audit report on the audit of the
2022 Group annual financial statements. Refer to Appendix 4 for further information.

Judgement applied in assessing the virtual certainty of recoverability
of insurance claims
Judgement is required in assessing the virtual certainty of the recoverability of insurance claims, which
is supported by the insurer’s validation of the progress in the claims assessment process and payments
received to date.
Estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
This note is an extraction of note 1.6 of the audited Group annual financial statements for the 52 weeks ended
27 February 2022, and relate to the key audit matter raised by Ernst & Young Inc. in their audit report on the audit
of the 2022 Group annual financial statements. Refer to Appendix 4 for further information. 		
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APPENDIX 1
Pro forma information
Certain financial information presented in these summarised audited Group annual financial statements
constitutes pro forma financial information.

1	Pro forma earnings metrics
The pro forma earnings information, presented in accordance with the JSE Listing Requirements and
the SAICA guide on Pro forma Financial Information, is the responsibility of the Board of directors of
the Group and is presented for illustrative purposes only. Because of its nature, the pro forma earnings
information may not fairly present the Group’s financial position, changes in equity, results of operations
or cash flows. The pro forma earnings information is based on the audited financial information of the
Group for the period ended 27 February 2022 and has been prepared using the accounting policies of the
Group which comply with IFRS and are consistent with those applied in the audited financial information.

Insurance proceeds received post year-end
During the period under review, the Group submitted interim business interruption insurance claims to
its insurers related to losses suffered as a result of the civil unrest which occurred during July 2021 in
parts of South Africa. At 27 February 2022, the Group had potential rights to insurance receivables, the
existence of which would be confirmed on the future settlement of these insurance claims by insurers.
Refer to note 14 of the 2022 summarised audited Group annual financial statements.
Subsequent to year-end, during March 2022, the Group received payments of R145.2 million from
insurers related to these interim business interruption claims. These insurance recoveries directly
relate to the losses suffered by the Group during the 2022 financial year. In management’s view, these
losses and insurance recoveries should be viewed together. Recording the losses in one financial year
and the recoveries in the next financial year does not provide users with an accurate assessment of
the Group’s comparable year-on-year earnings performance. As a result, the Group has presented its
earnings for the current period on a pro forma basis, by including the R145.2 million insurance proceeds
(net of tax, R104.5 million) received post year-end.

Hyperinflation net monetary adjustments
Zimbabwe is classified as a hyperinflationary economy. The equity accounted earnings of the Group’s
investment in associate operating in Zimbabwe is, therefore, accounted for under IAS 29 Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies (IAS 29), with the impact presented below.
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52 weeks to
27 February
2022
Rm

52 weeks to
28 February
2021
Rm

Share of associate’s earnings excluding net monetary adjustments
Share of associate's hyperinflation net monetary loss

96.7
(25.1)

109.2
(29.2)

Reported share of associate's earnings
Impairment loss on investment in associate as a result of hyperinflation
accounting

71.6

80.0

(14.4)

(81.6)

57.2

(1.6)
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Pro forma information (continued)
1	Pro forma earnings metrics (continued)

Reported profit before tax and reported headline earnings include the impact of hyperinflation
accounting attributable to the Group’s investment in associate. In management’s view, this impact of
hyperinflation accounting does not provide stakeholders with an accurate assessment of the Group’s
comparable year‑on‑year earnings performance. As a result, the Group has presented its earnings
for the current and prior period on a pro forma basis, by excluding the Group’s share of associate’s
hyperinflation net monetary loss of R25.1 million (2021: R29.2 million), with no impact on tax. Refer to
note 7 of the summarised audited Group annual financial statements for more information.
The table below presents the key changes to items presented on a pro forma basis:

52 weeks to 27 February 2022
Group
Other income
Trading profit
Profit before tax before capital items
Profit before tax
Tax
Profit for the period
Headline earnings
Rest of Africa operating segment
Profit before tax before capital items

Headline earnings per share
Diluted headline earnings per share

As reported
Rm

Remove
Impact of
IAS 29
Rm

Add insurance
recoveries
received post
year-end
Rm

Pro forma
Rm

2 505.1
2 886.5
1 807.7
1 761.5
(547.0)
1 214.5
1 258.9

–
–
25.1
–
–
–
25.1

145.2
145.2
145.2
145.2
(40.7)
104.5
104.5

2 650.3
3 031.7
1 978.0
1 906.7
(587.7)
1 319.0
1 388.5

93.9

25.1

–

119.0

Cents

Cents

Cents

Cents

262.59
261.65

5.25
5.22

21.80
21.72

289.64
288.59

The Group’s external auditor, Ernst & Young Inc., has issued an independent reporting accountant’s
assurance report on the pro forma adjustments made by the Group (namely, removing the impact of
IAS 29 and adding insurance recoveries received post year-end), which is available for inspection at the
Company’s (Pick n Pay Stores Limited) registered office.

52 weeks to 28 February 2021
Group
Profit before tax before capital items
Headline earnings
Rest of Africa operating segment
Profit before tax before capital items

Headline earnings per share
Diluted headline earnings per share

As reported
Rm

Remove
Impact of
IAS 29
Rm

Rm

1 554.2
1 095.0

29.2
29.2

1 583.4
1 124.2

118.9

29.2

148.1

Cents

Cents

Cents

229.31
227.51

6.11
6.06

235.42
233.57
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Appendix 1

Pro forma information (continued)
2	Constant currency disclosures
Constant currency information constitutes pro forma information. The Group discloses constant
currency information in order to report on the Group’s turnover and the Group’s Rest of Africa segmental
revenue results, excluding the impact of foreign currency fluctuations (collectively the “constant
currency pro forma information”).
The constant currency pro forma information has been presented to illustrate the impact of changes in
the Group’s major foreign currencies, namely the Zambia kwacha and the Botswana pula.
The Group’s turnover growth in constant currency is calculated by translating the prior period local
currency turnover at the current period average exchange rates on a country-by-country basis
and then comparing that against the current period turnover translated at current period average
exchange rates.
The segmental revenue growth in constant currency is calculated by translating the prior period local
currency segmental revenue at the current period average exchange rates on a country-by-country
basis and then comparing that against the current period segmental revenue translated at the current
period average exchange rates.
The average Zambia kwacha exchange rate to the South African rand for the 52 weeks ended
27 February 2022 is 1.27 (2021: 1.18) and the average Botswana pula exchange rate to the South
African rand for the 52 weeks ended 27 February 2022 is 0.75 (2021: 0.69).
The constant currency pro forma information, presented in accordance with JSE Listings Requirements,
is the responsibility of the Board of directors of the Group and is presented for illustrative purposes only.
Because of its nature, the pro forma financial information may not fairly present the Group’s financial
position, changes in equity, results of operations or cash flows.
The Group’s external auditor has issued a reporting accountant’s report on the constant currency
pro forma information, which is available for inspection at the Company’s (Pick n Pay Stores Limited)
registered office.

52 weeks ended 27 February 2022
Group turnover (%)
Rest of Africa segmental revenue (%)
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Increase in
reported
currency

Increase in
constant
currency

5.2
5.1

5.3
8.4

APPENDIX 2
Additional information
Additional information may not represent a defined term under IFRS and, as a result, it may not be comparable
with similarly titled measures reported by other companies. Additional information is the responsibility of the
Board of directors of the Group, is presented for illustrative purposes only and has not been reviewed nor
reported on by the Group’s auditors.

1	Like-for-like turnover and expense growth comparisons
Like-for-like turnover and expense growth comparisons remove the impact of store openings, closures
(including damaged and looted stores closed due to civil unrest) and conversions in the current and
previous reporting periods.

2	Turnover analysis excluding the impact of trade disruptions during the
current reporting period
During the period under review, the Group’s South African operations were significantly impacted by
trade disruptions arising from the civil unrest in KwaZulu-Natal and parts of Gauteng (referred to as civil
unrest); and by the resumption of government imposed trade restrictions on the sale of liquor during the
period (referred to as Covid-19 liquor restrictions). Refer to the Result Summary and note 14 of the 2022
summarised audited Group annual financial statements for further information.

Estimated lost turnover: Civil unrest
Management estimates that the Group lost approximately R1 775 million of turnover during this
reporting period related to the civil unrest from both stores closed due to damage and looting as well
as stores closed preventatively. This estimation is based on approved internal financial budgets per
affected store, and supported by recent turnover trends in the relevant stores. Where it was noted that
turnover transferred to existing operating stores, that positive impact was also taken into account in the
lost turnover assessment, reducing the loss in turnover estimate. Furthermore, these estimations align
to methodologies applied in the Group’s business interruption (loss of profits) insurance claims.

Estimated lost turnover: Covid-19 liquor restrictions
Management estimates that the Group lost approximately R925 million (2021: R2 503 million) of turnover
during the current reporting period as a result of the 66 trading days (2021: 209 trading days) lost on
the resumption of the Covid-19 liquor trading restrictions. This estimation is based on management’s
best estimate of the lost turnover during the restricted trading days, net of the increase in liquor sales
on days surrounding the restricted days. This estimation is based on approved internal financial budgets
per affected store and supported by recent turnover trends in the relevant stores.
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APPENDIX 3
The table below presents the Group’s earnings performance on a pro forma basis.
The Group has presented its earnings on a pro forma basis, by including R145.2 million (R104.5 million net of tax)
in the current year related to insurance proceeds received post year-end, and by excluding hyperinflation net
monetary adjustments attributable to IAS 29 from the current and prior periods. Refer to Appendix 1 for further
information.

%
change

52 weeks to
52 weeks to
27 February
28 February
2022
2021
Cents per share Cents per share

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
Headline earnings per share
Diluted headline earnings per share

25.1
25.6
14.5
15.0

253.34
252.43
262.59
261.65

202.52
200.93
229.31
227.51

Pro forma headline earnings per share
Pro forma headline earnings per share
Pro forma diluted headline earnings per share

23.0
23.6

289.64
288.59

235.42
233.57

Rm

Rm

Reconciliation between basic and headline earnings
Profit for the period – basic earnings for the period
Adjustments:

1 214.5

967.1

44.4

127.9

(31.6)
3.5
209.1
(48.7)
7.9
(0.1)
56.6
(15.1)
14.4
(210.5)
58.9

21.4
(6.0)
18.1
(5.1)
10.7
(3.0)
14.1
(3.9)
81.6
–
–

Headline earnings for the period (note 4)
Adjusted for hyperinflation net monetary loss (note 7)
Adjusted for insurance proceeds received post year-end (note 14)
Adjusted for tax effects of insurance proceeds received post year-end

1 258.9
25.1
145.2
(40.7)

1 095.0
29.2
–
–

Pro forma headline earnings

1 388.5

1 124.2

(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Tax effect of profit/(loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss from impairments and scrapping of property, plant and equipment
Tax effect of loss from impairments and scrapping of property, plant and equipment
Loss from impairments and scrapping of intangible assets
Tax effect of loss from impairments and scrapping of intangible assets
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets
Tax effect of impairment loss on right-of-use assets
Impairment loss on investment in associate
Insurance recoveries on scrapping of assets due to civil unrest
Tax effect of insurance recoveries on scrapping of assets due to civil unrest

The table below presents the Group’s share information
Number of ordinary shares in issue
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (excluding treasury shares)
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
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000’s  
493 450.3
479 389.3
481 128.4

000’s  
493 450.3
477 524.8
481 304.5

APPENDIX 4
These summarised Group annual financial statements are themselves not audited, but are extracted from
audited information. The audited Group annual financial statements were audited by Ernst & Young Inc., who
expressed an unmodified opinion thereon.
The table below, which provides information on the key audit matter applicable to the audit of the Group annual
financial statements, is an extraction of Ernst & Young Inc. audit report and should be read in conjunction with
the full audit report. An extraction of notes to the 2022 audited Group annual financial statements to which the
key audit matter relates to has been included in note 14 of the summarised Group annual financial statements.
The audited Group annual financial statements, and the auditor’s report there on, are available for inspection at
the Company’s (Pick n Pay Stores Limited) registered office.

Extract of Ernst & Young Inc. Report on the Audit of the Pick n Pay Stores
Limited Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements:
Key Audit Matter:
Impact of civil unrest
The extensive civil unrest in parts of KwaZuluNatal and Gauteng affected a total of 112
Pick n Pay stores, 100 Boxer stores and two
Pick n Pay Distribution Centres and resulted in
the Group incurring losses and damages from
looting and destruction.
The impact on the consolidated annual
financial statements of Pick n Pay Stores
Limited was as follows:
•

Insurance proceeds resulted in an increase in
other income of R748.2 million and an increase
in profit on sale of assets and insurance
recoveries on scrapping of property, plant
and equipment of R210.5 million

•

Inventory losses resulted in an increase in
cost of sales of R627.8 million and

•

Scrapping of property, plant and equipment
amounted to R156.8 million.

In addition to the impact of the consolidated
financial statements, significant judgement was
required in assessing whether the insurance
proceeds received as compensation for business
interruption after year end of R145.2 million was
an adjusting or non-adjusting subsequent event.
The civil unrest was a significant event
that occurred during the financial year, the
outcome of which has had a material effect
on the financial position and performance
of the group. Significant auditor attention
was therefore required, and extended audit
procedures were performed.
The civil unrest is therefore considered to be a
matter of most significance to the current year’s
audit and identified as a key audit matter.
The impact of the civil unrest and associated
insurance claims received is disclosed in
note 1.6 and note 31 of the group annual
financial statements for the period ended
27 February 2022.

How the matter was addressed in the audit
Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the following:

Insurance proceeds
•

Together with our technical accounting specialists, we
evaluated the recognition and classification of insurance
income in accordance with the relevant International Financial
Reporting Standards. We audited the amounts recognised and
disclosed by inspection of correspondence with SASRIA and
confirmation of the payments received to banking records.

Inventory losses
•

We obtained an understanding of management’s controls and
processes for identifying, quantifying and impairing damaged
and lost stock through discussion with management and the
loss adjusters.

•

For a sample of affected stores:
» we inspected documentation of inventory counts
performed; and
» agreed the rand value of inventory written off per the count
sheets to the accounting records.

•

We agreed the inventory write-off list to the SASRIA claim. For
fully looted locations, we compared the inventory amount written
off with reference to the pre-looting inventory balance held.

Scrapping of property, plant and equipment
•

For all affected stores and distribution centres we confirmed
that damaged assets were removed from the fixed asset
registers and compared the asset values to scrapped assets
per the accounting records.

•

We recalculated depreciation and impaired carrying values for
a sample of assets written off to ensure arithmetical accuracy.

•

We performed physical verification at a sample of sites to
confirm that assets not scrapped still existed.

Compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards
•

We considered and evaluated the classification of the transactions
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the
relevance and accuracy of additional disclosure provided in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements against the various
relevant International Financial Reporting Standards.
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AN OVERVIEW OF OUR STORE ESTATE
Pick n Pay

Boxer

Owned Franchise
South Africa
Botswana
eSwatini
Lesotho
Namibia
Nigeria
Zambia
Zimbabwe

Supermarkets*
Clothing
Liquor
Build

TM

Owned Associate

Total

854
–
–
–
–
1
21
–

697
13
19
4
40
–
–
–

359
–
9
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
64

1 910
13
28
4
40
1
21
64

876

773

368

64

2 081

338
256
282
–

496
21
256
–

243
–
97
28

57
–
7
–

1 134
277
642
28

The total number of sites where we sell clothing
Hypermarkets

Supermarkets

Stand-alone
clothing stores

Total clothing
sites

21

163

277

461

South African
store formats
Supermarkets

1 007
Clothing

275
Liquor

600
Build

28
Total South
African stores

1 910
*
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asap

on-demand offer serviced from

392 stores

NUMBER OF STORES
Converted 27 February
closures
2022

28 February
2021

Opened

Closed

Converted
openings

830
21
310
235
264
342
208
30
87
17

57
–
14
24
19
34
21
–
12
1

(16)
–
(9)
(3)
(4)
(10)
(5)
(2)
(2)
(1)

7
–
4
–
3
2
2
–
–
–

(2)
–
(2)
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

876
21
317
256
282
368
226
28
97
17

1 172

91

(26)

9

(2)

1 244

Pick n Pay
Supermarkets
Market
Express
Clothing
Liquor

284
38
174
20
242

5
5
7
3
25

(3)
(7)
(3)
(2)
(8)

–
–
–
–
–

(4)
–
–
–
(3)

282
36
178
21
256

Total franchise

758

45

(23)

–

(7)

773

COMPANY-OWNED
Pick n Pay
Hypermarkets
Supermarkets
Clothing
Liquor
Boxer
Supermarkets
Build
Liquor
Punch
Total company-owned

FRANCHISE

ASSOCIATE
TM Supermarkets
Total Group stores

61

3

1 991

139

(49)

–

–

–

9

(9)

64

163

14

(6)

–

–

171

24
9
69
61

2
–
9
3

(4)
–
(2)
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

22
9
76
64

163

14

(6)

–

–

171

11
27
4
36
–
24
61

2
1
–
6
1
1
3

–
–
–
(2)
–
(4)
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

13
28
4
40
1
21
64

2 081

AFRICAN FOOTPRINT
– included in total stores above
Pick n Pay company-owned
Boxer company-owned
Pick n Pay franchise
TM Supermarkets – associate

AFRICAN FOOTPRINT
– by country
Botswana
eSwatini
Lesotho
Namibia
Nigeria
Zambia
Zimbabwe
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REMUNERATION REPORT
The remuneration committee is mandated by the
Board to ensure that the Group’s remuneration
policies and decisions are:
• aligned with the interests of all stakeholders
• closely aligned with the delivery of the Group’s
long-term strategic objectives
• appropriate to incentivise sustainable value
creation over the longer term
• fair and responsible, rewarding both individual and
Group performance
• effective at attracting and retaining talent
The remuneration committee is satisfied that it has
met its responsibilities in terms of its Board charter,
and that the remuneration policies it has applied and
the decisions it has taken have fulfilled the objective
of fair and responsible remuneration.
The Group’s remuneration report is prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act, King IV and the JSE Listings requirements.
As a responsible corporate citizen, we devote the
necessary focus to important issues of employment
equity, gender equity and pay parity. At our heart,
we are a people business and can only win through
our people.
Our commitment to employees:

 
We take deliberate action to achieve
employment equity and gender
targets
 
We are equitable in our recruitment
 
We guarantee equal pay for equal
work
 
Everybody has the opportunity to
progress in the Group
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Navigating the report
The remuneration report is structured as follows:
Section 1: Remuneration Committee
Chair report
Our Chair’s background statement provides
context to the year under review, including:

• The role and responsibility of the remuneration
committee as mandated by the Board

• All key focus areas and decisions taken
• Remuneration voting outcomes at the 2021
•
•

annual general meeting and related shareholder
engagement
Remuneration policy changes during the year
Future focus areas

Section 2: Remuneration Policy
Information on the remuneration policies and
practices of the Group, including:

• The key principles underlying remuneration
policy, including detail on:

» Fair, equitable and responsible remuneration
» Benchmarking of remuneration policies and
outcomes

• Overview of the structure of staff remuneration

packages, including detail on:
» Guaranteed remuneration
» Variable remuneration: short-term and longterm incentives
• Service contracts and termination benefits
• Minimum shareholding requirements
• Malus and claw-back
The Group’s remuneration policy is forward looking
and will be voted on by shareholders at the AGM on
26 July 2022.

Section 3: Implementation of
Remuneration Policy
Information on how the remuneration committee
implemented remuneration policy over the 2022
financial year (FY22), based on Group and individual
performance, including:
• Guaranteed pay, with specific focus on the
salary of the CEO and CFO
• The award of a short-term annual performance
bonus
• The award of long-term performance incentives
under the Group’s CRI and RSP Schemes
• The review of long-term incentives and their
alignment with the Group’s Ekuseni strategy
• Retirement gratuities
• Non-executive director remuneration
The Group’s implementation of remuneration policy
will be voted on by shareholders at the AGM on
26 July 2022.

Section 1

“

The remuneration
committee always seeks to
strike the right balance of
attracting, motivating and
retaining key talent while
delivering a fair return to
all stakeholders.

“

Audrey Mothupi
Chair: Remuneration committee

Remuneration committee Chair
report
On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the FY22
remuneration report for the Group. The remuneration
report provides stakeholders with an overview of our
Group’s overall remuneration philosophy, highlights
key underlying remuneration policies, and sets out how
these policies have been implemented during FY22,
with a specific focus on payments made to executive
and non-executive directors.

The year in review
The Group and its executive management team
looked forward to a more stable year in FY22 –
leaving the challenges of the Covid-19 pandemic
behind, and targeting a solid recovery off the highly
disrupted base of the prior year. The remuneration
committee set strong sales and earnings
performance targets for the executive management
team this year – aligned with the expectations of the
Board – which were initially borne out in the strong
trade momentum delivered over the first quarter of
the financial year. Unfortunately, trade disruptions
became a significant feature of the Group’s second
quarter, with the resumption of stringent Covid-19
trading restrictions in respect of the sale of alcohol,
followed by the severe operational and financial
impact of the July 2021 civil unrest in South Africa.
The FY22 performance targets set by the
remuneration committee became increasingly
unrealistic as the devastating scale of the unrest
became clear. Close to 40% of the Group estate was
closed at the very height of the unrest – including
70% of the Boxer business – and the safety of our
customers and our staff quickly became the Group’s
main priority. The financial impact of the civil unrest
and the Group’s operational recovery has been
a key feature of the remuneration committee’s
deliberations over the course of the year. The Group
has not met the original sales and profit targets set
for the FY22 year. The committee acknowledges
that this was mainly due to the extraordinary
circumstances of the unrest. The committee has
further been struck by the incredible efforts of so
many of its people across the organisation – not
only to rebuild and restore operations so quickly
and effectively – but also in leading humanitarian
efforts to provide essential food and groceries to
the vulnerable communities most affected by the
unrest.
In a year of such disruption and devastation, it has
been exceedingly important for the committee to
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use careful judgement in its reward of management.
The committee will always consider the impact of
unforeseen events on the ability of management to
achieve its targets, and it is never the committee’s
intent to penalise management for circumstances
outside of their control. At the same time, fair and
responsible reward is always balanced with the
interests of all stakeholders. The remuneration
committee remained cognisant of the concern
expressed by shareholders around the level of
discretion it has used in the past – particularly in
FY21 during the Covid-19 pandemic – and sought
to keep shareholder interests at the forefront of its
decision-making this year. I hope that shareholders
agree that the committee has struck a fair and
equitable balance this year with its application of
remuneration policy – and while the reduced award
of short-term bonuses and the forfeit of a portion of
long-term share incentives reflect the challenging
circumstances of the past year, it also acknowledges
the resilient performance of the management team
under the most difficult of circumstances. Please
refer to page 61 for further information.

The Group’s new long-term Ekuseni strategy, as
set out on page 46 of the 2022 Integrated Annual
Report (IAR), has also been a key area of focus
for the remuneration committee this year. The
committee has an important role to play in ensuring
that management is adequately and appropriately
incentivised to deliver on the objectives of Ekuseni
– which includes clear sales, market share and
earnings growth targets over the next four years.

The role and responsibility of the
remuneration committee

Members and attendance at
meetings

The remuneration committee assists the Board to
formulate and administer an effective remuneration
strategy that:

The remuneration committee meets at least twice
a year, is chaired by an independent non-executive
director and comprises only non-executive directors.
The committee operates in terms of a Board-approved
charter, which is reviewed annually by the Board.

• meets all legislative and regulatory requirements
• delivers on the Group’s commitment to fair,
transparent and responsible remuneration
• is balanced in the best short- and long-term
interests of the Group and its stakeholders
• is aligned with the Group’s long-term strategic
objectives
The remuneration committee is mandated by the
Board to ensure that the Group’s remuneration
policy achieves its key objective of sustainable
value creation over the short, medium and long
term. The Group’s remuneration policy incentivises
performance that delivers on the Group’s
strategic plan. Performance is measured against
clear individual and Group performance targets.
Remuneration paid to executive directors and
senior management must be appropriate, fair and
responsible, designed to attract, motivate and retain
a diverse and high-performance team in a manner
that is aligned with the interests of our shareholders.
The committee considers and recommends the
remuneration policy for all levels of staff in the
Group, with specific focus on executive directors,
senior management and non-executive directors.
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The Group anticipates inflationary and other cost
pressures in FY23, alongside the disruption of a
programme of accelerated store refurbishments
and further action to improve efficiency across
the Group’s support functions under Ekuseni.
The Group targets stronger sales and earnings
momentum from the FY24 year as the benefits
of the Ekuseni strategy start to be realised. The
remuneration committee therefore recognises that
the performance targets attached to outstanding
executive share incentive schemes (specifically RSP
2020) may no longer be relevant or appropriate, as the
original targets had been aligned with the objectives
of the Group’s previous long-term plan.

The remuneration committee held three meetings
over the course of and in respect of the FY22
financial year.

Audrey Mothupi (Chair)
Gareth Ackerman
Haroon Bhorat
Aboubakar Jakoet
Jeff van Rooyen

Board tenure
as nonexecutive

Remuneration
committee
meeting
attendance

9 years
32 years
2 years
2 years
15 years

3/3
3/3
3/3
3/3
3/3

Independent external advisors
The remuneration committee ensures that the Group
remains up to date with evolving legislation and
remuneration practices across the retail industry
through ongoing training, research and monitoring.
Independent and objective expert advice is obtained
as required, including in respect of industry
benchmarking and the fair and transparent structure
of variable short-term and long-term benefits in
order to drive performance and achieve retention.
Refer to page 52 for further information.

The remuneration committee acknowledges that
any revision of the performance targets of “inflight” long-term share awards does not reflect best
corporate governance practice and, as such, these
targets remain unchanged. However, any once-off
or extraordinary costs related to the restructure of
Group operations in FY23 under the Ekuseni plan will
be taken into account in the deliberation of the fair
vesting of RSP 2020 in June 2023. The remuneration
committee's objective is clear: the application of
fair and appropriate remuneration policy – closely
aligned with shareholder interests – to ensure that
the senior executive team is incentivised to deliver
against the long-term Ekuseni strategic targets,
in a manner that delivers sustainable value for all
stakeholders. Refer to page 64.
In addition to the material deliberations detailed
above, the committee also addressed the following
key focus areas:
• Engaged with independent specialist
remuneration consultants to undertake a
comprehensive bench-marking review of the
Group’s remuneration policies against best
practice in the market and made relevant
changes where appropriate. Refer to page 52 for
the scope of the review.
• Ensured the award of all CRI and RSP incentive
awards were aligned with the Group’s
employment equity and gender targets. Refer to
page 62 for further information.
• Reviewed detailed statistical data to ensure
the Group maintained race and gender pay
parity across all levels of the business. Refer
to page 51 for further information.
• Reviewed and approved salary increases for
executive and senior management and ensured
fair and responsible increases for staff at lower
income levels. Refer to page 61 for further
information.
• Formulated an appropriate retirement package for
Suzanne Ackerman-Berman who retired early from
the Group on 31 March 2022 and was appointed
as a non-executive director on that date. The
remuneration committee extends its sincere thanks

to Suzanne for her valuable contribution to the
Board over the past 12 years, and specifically for
her leadership of the social and ethics committee.
Suzanne’s boundless generosity and spirit for
community upliftment has been at the very heart
of the Group’s social investment programmes,
including more recently the development of the
impactful Feed the Nation campaign. Refer to page
64 for further information.
• Reviewed the remuneration framework for, and
fees paid to, non-executive directors. Refer to
page 65 for further information.

Shareholder engagement
The Chair of the remuneration committee and
the Chair of the Board met extensively with
shareholders ahead of the 2021 annual general
meeting. Unfortunately, notwithstanding the
constructive nature of the engagements held.
Advisory Vote 1 and Advisory Vote 2 each received
less than 75% of support from shareholders and, in
line with the requirements of King IV and the JSE
Listing requirements, the Board invited further
engagement with shareholders. Two shareholders
requested the opportunity for further engagement
with the Board and remuneration committee after
the AGM, and one-on-one meetings were held with
these shareholders.
Shareholder concern largely centred around the
implementation of remuneration policy, specifically:
• the level of discretion used by the remuneration
committee in the implementation of the Group’s
remuneration policy
• the lack of transparency around the individual
performance targets set for executive directors,
specifically the CEO and CFO
• a request for greater clarity around ESG
targets set for executive management, and
a commitment from the Board to integrate
environmental, social and corporate governance
within performance management and
incentivisation
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AGM voting outcomes
Shareholder voting results at the annual general
meeting held on 28 June 2021:

Advisory vote 1:
Endorsement of the remuneration policy report

74.3%

25.7%

83.2%

16.8%

Shareholder engagements focused
on the following key issues:
Discretion utilised in the revision of short-term
and long-term performance targets, as a result
of the operational and financial impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic:
• Shareholders expressed concern that the
revised STI FY21 stretch target of PBTAE
growth had been set at an achievable level,
which guaranteed a management pay-out

• Shareholders expressed concern that the
FY21

FY20

• For
• Against

• Shareholders noted that the repeated use of

discretion could be alleviated by linking STI
and LTI performance targets to an appropriate
economic measure, for example CPI or GDP
growth

Advisory vote 2:
Endorsement of the remuneration implementation
report
63.2%

revised targets for the outstanding FSP 2019
and RSP 2020 awards were not stretching
enough – considering that the trading
environment was expected to improve as
Covid-19 trading restrictions were eased

36.8%

76.8% 23.2%

Remuneration committee response:
Discretion was appropriate to reward and retain
senior executives under the unprecedented and
challenging conditions of the Covid-19 pandemic:

• Management was appropriately rewarded
FY21

FY20

for exceptional work in maintaining
undisrupted business operations

• The targets were set at a time of strict

lockdown – when the Group had already lost
almost R3.0 billion of sales, and incurred
additional operating costs, with little
direction from government on how or when
restrictions would be eased

•
• Against
For

• The remuneration committee has aligned

Special resolution 1:
Directors fees for the 2022 and 2023 annual
financial periods
80.7%

19.3%

78.4%

FY21

FY20

• For
• Against
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RSP 2021 performance targets with an
economic measure and will do so going
forward. Refer to page 63.

Discretion utilised in the reward of directors on
retirement, specifically:
• The accelerated delivery of outstanding FSP
awards to the outgoing CEO and CISO on their
retirement, with the effective removal of
associated performance targets

• The practice of awarding share awards to

executive directors where planned retirement
is imminent

• Retirement gratuities paid to the CEO and
CISO on their retirement from the Group

• The total value of the annual package paid to

Non-disclosure of variable incentive scheme
performance targets
Shareholders requested disclosure of forward
looking short-term performance targets.
Remuneration committee response:
The committee recognises that best practice
dictates the publication of these targets;
however, due to the commercial sensitivity of
disclosing prospective profit targets, the Group
will continue to disclose profit targets on a
retrospective basis in Section 3 of this report.

the outgoing CEO

Remuneration committee response:
The early delivery of the long-term share
awards and the retirement gratuities were
considered appropriate reward in the context of
the significant contribution from both the CEO
and CISO over their individual tenures with the
Group. The committee agreed that the Board
will no longer award long-term share awards to
executive directors where the term of the award
extends into a planned retirement.

The payment of super-stretch bonuses
Shareholders expressed general concern
around super-stretch targets – seeing this as
a further lever for remuneration committee
discretion, without sufficient disclosure of the
individual targets and the benefits delivered to
shareholders.
Remuneration committee response:
Super-stretch targets are only set under
exceptional circumstances to incentivise and
reward significant out-performance. The CFO
was awarded an additional super-stretch bonus
in FY21 – equivalent to two months’ salary – in
recognition of her exceptional debt and liquidity
management over the Covid-19 pandemic, which
allowed for an uninterrupted, albeit slightly
delayed, dividend cycle in FY21.

The value of the non-executive Chair’s fee
The high value of the non-executive Chair’s fee
relative to other listed companies in South Africa.
Remuneration committee response:
The Chair’s fee reflects the active role the Chair
plays in formulating and steering the Group’s
overarching corporate governance framework,
with a focus on environmental and social
responsibility. Please refer to page 60 for further
information.

The independence of the Group’s longer-serving
directors
Concerns around the independence of the
Group’s longer-serving directors.
Remuneration committee response:
The Board acknowledges that long tenures can
create concerns around director independence.
The Board is confident that it has established
a remuneration committee which has a good
balance between the wisdom and experience of
longstanding directors, and the fresh insights
from more recent appointees. Please refer to
page 90 of the IAR for further information.
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The development of local talent
Shareholders noted the appointment of an
international CEO from outside the Group
and expressed concern that this highlighted
insufficient training and development of skill
within the business, or inadequate succession
planning.
Remuneration committee response:
The Group’s non-executive Board, led by the
nominations committee and assisted by an
independent executive placement agency,
undertook a robust and considered search for
the Group’s new CEO. The Board considered
candidates from within the Group, and the broader
South African and international retail industry.
Pieter Boone was the right candidate to succeed
Richard Brasher in terms of his skill, experience
and character. The due diligence appointment
process identified a number of experienced
and talented executive managers within the
Group, allowing for a strong succession plan. The
development of local and diverse talent remains
an important area of focus for the remuneration
committee.
A number of shareholders acknowledged the
positive steps that had been taken by the committee
to strengthen remuneration governance over the
FY21 year, including:
• The discontinuation of the Group’s share option
scheme
• The deferral of dividend rights under the
executive RSP scheme
• The implementation of a minimum shareholding
requirement for the CEO
• The introduction of a more structured shortterm bonus framework

In summary:
There is little doubt that the past two years have
provided the business with some of the most
challenging circumstances of its history. The
remuneration committee has played a vital role
in striking the right balance between attracting,
motivating and retaining employees in a challenging
market – and aligning remuneration outcomes with
operational performance and stakeholder interests. It
is not always an easy balance to get right, and I hope
that shareholders are able to see the progress we
have made in strengthening our remuneration policies

and disclosures in line with best practice in the market.
I hope too that our commitment to listen carefully to
our shareholder concerns and amend our policies
and our actions where necessary, was evident in the
constructive engagements we held with shareholders
and with our expanded disclosures this year.
The remuneration committee will continue to review
and evolve the Group’s remuneration policies in a
measured and responsible manner that considers
the needs of all stakeholders.

Future focus areas:
A review of Board and remuneration committee
timelines to ensure timely and transparent reporting
to stakeholders.
Ongoing review of the effectiveness of STI and LTI
policy to drive the objectives of Ekuseni.
The development of a specific Ekuseni long-term
incentive award targeting senior executives key to
the delivery of the plan.
We will continue to differentiate reward in
terms of individual performance and address
under-performance through the Group’s formal
performance appraisal process.
Our focus on the development and retention of key
successors will continue, as emphasised by the
CRI scheme which is aimed at the retention and
development of lower and middle-management
employees.
Diversity and skills development among senior
leaderships remains critical, with a focus on gender
and race.
We will continue to ensure fair and equitable
remuneration practices across the Group – including
a focus on improving income disparity at lower levels
of management, and providing a fair wage for our
employees.

Audrey Mothupi
Chair: Remuneration committee
23 June 2022
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1

As required by King IV and the JSE Listings Requirements,
Section 2 and Section 3 of our remuneration report will be
presented separately to our shareholders for non-binding
votes at the AGM on 26 July 2022. In the event that either
the remuneration policy or the implementation report
receives 25% or more dissenting votes, the Group will take
the following steps:

3

Issue a SENS announcement
regarding the outcome of the
AGM voting results

2
Schedule collective and/or individual
shareholder engagements as
appropriate to determine the reasons
for the dissenting votes, and take all
reasonable steps to resolve legitimate
shareholder concerns

4
Provide participating
shareholders with a formal
response, noting all the concerns
raised and providing detailed
responses where changes will be
made to address concerns

Invite our dissenting
shareholders to engage
formally with the Group’s
remuneration committee

The remuneration committee values open and
constructive engagement with shareholders. We
encourage shareholders to engage with management and
the committee on all material remuneration concerns to
ensure that shareholders are fully informed when voting
on the Group’s remuneration policy and the application
thereof. Please direct all comments and queries to our
Company Secretary via email at demuller@pnp.co.za.
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Section 2

Overview of remuneration policy
The Group’s remuneration philosophy is to build a diverse and high-performance team that is fairly rewarded
and incentivised to deliver on the Group’s strategic objectives over the short, medium and long term. The
Group’s framework of remuneration policies is designed to provide our employees with fair, responsible and
balanced reward that recognises the attainment of short-term goals, while incentivising long-term sustainable
value creation.

The interests of our team are aligned with those of our shareholders
through governance practices, which include the following key principles:
Promoting diversity and building talent

Fair and responsible remuneration

•

•

•

To ensure our team adequately reflects the
communities we serve, the Group provides equal
opportunities to people from all walks of life
Remuneration packages are benchmarked at
all levels and are designed to attract, develop,
motivate and retain the retail industry’s most
talented staff

•

Employment equity participation – %
95 98

94 98

82

79

77

FY20

•

54

50

48

96 99

FY21

FY22

The Group provides fair and responsible
remuneration for all staff members to help our
people succeed and thrive in and outside of work
Comprehensive statistical analysis is performed on
an ongoing basis at all levels of staff (with reference
to the scale of each role and the experience and
tenure of each staff member). This enables the
Group to identify and correct any differential pay
rates based on either race or gender, and to ensure
employees are always rewarded fairly in relation
to their peers in adherence to the principle of equal
pay for equal work
The Group is committed to furthering the economic
empowerment and well-being of employees. As such,
the provision of retirement benefits and access to
health care benefits is a key part of our employee
value proposition, alongside opportunities for ongoing
skills development, bursaries and study grants
There is equal opportunity across the Group for
growth and development, and staff members are
recognised and advanced based on merit

• Executive and top management • Senior and middle management
• Professionally qualified junior management • Skilled technical junior management

•

Efficient and productive workforce

Responsible executive remuneration

•

•

•

•

•

The Group is committed to building a highperformance culture that rewards efficiency and
productivity
The Group’s Ekuseni strategy is focused
on building a winning team, and unlocking
productivity and efficiency gains across our
supply chain, store and support operations
Regular reviews are undertaken to ensure
operational efficiency and cost discipline is
achieved through ongoing improvements in
employee structures and scheduling and the
centralisation of support services
Group and individual performance targets
increasingly focus on key measures of employee
efficiency and productivity
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•
•

•

Executive directors are fairly rewarded for
creating and delivering sustainable shareholder
value over the short, medium and longer-term, in
line with the Group’s strategic objectives
The executive team is not unduly rewarded where
performance does not meet expectations
The remuneration committee strives to find a
reasonable balance to retain key executives
and attract quality executives from outside the
business, to ensure delivery against the Group’s
strategic objectives
Long-term share incentive schemes align
executive and shareholder interest and promote a
culture of executive share ownership

Fair and responsible remuneration: non‑management bargaining unit employees (NMBU)
Approximately 70% of our staff belong to a labour union, where wages are governed by labour union
agreements. Negotiations with our labour partners take into account:
• All statutory minimum wage requirements, in South Africa and in the retail sector
• The economic environment, including levels of food and general inflation
• Individual job categories as defined in the SD9 regulation, as well as the Basic Conditions of
Employment Act
• Further benefits provided by the Group for the well-being of our employees, including meals, transport,
uniform allowances, funeral cover, retirement funding, maternity benefits and access to medical aid
• The affordability of the wage settlement – with a particular focus on the projected percentage increase
in like-for-like sales growth relative to the percentage wage increase and the increase in other costs,
to determine whether the wage increase is affordable, or whether it is likely to reduce the overall
competitiveness of the Group, and our capacity to offer greater value to customers through lower prices

Fair and responsible remuneration:
management employees
The Group follows an equal pay for equal work
policy and does not discriminate based on race,
ethnicity or gender. Guaranteed pay and variable
incentives are benchmarked against the market to
ensure our staff are rewarded competitively. The
remuneration committee utilises the Gini index
in its statistical analysis of income distribution
across management grades – it is an effective tool
to identify any evidence of income disparity.

The Gini index is a statistical measure of
distribution and is used as a gauge of economic
inequality, measuring income distribution among a
population. The Gini index ranges from 0 (or 0%) to
1 (or 100%), with 0 representing perfect equality
and 1 representing perfect inequality:
Gini index
Gini index
Gini index
Gini index
Gini index

<0.2
0.2 – 0.3
0.3 – 0.4
0.4 – 0.5
>0.5

Income equality
Relative income equality
Adequate income equality
Big income gap or large disparity
Severe income gap or severe
disparity

The Lorenz curve is a statistical illustration of the underlying income distribution represented by the Gini index:

Income

Income parity across management levels

Employees

Income

Income parity across race groups

Employees

Income

Income parity by gender

The Group’s income equality across its management grades
achieves 0.37 or 37% on the Gini index – an outcome of
adequate income equality. The level of income parity reflects
the remuneration packages paid to our most senior executives
(including the CEO and CFO) compared to entry level management.
All remuneration across all employment grades and roles has
been benchmarked by an independent remuneration specialist
and found to be in line with market norms. The remuneration
committee will continue to award higher annual salary increases
to lower levels of management to narrow this income gap.
The Group’s income equality across race classifications (African,
Coloured, Indian and White) achieves 0.24 or 24% on the Gini index
– an outcome of relative income equality. The Group follows a
principle of equal pay for equal work and does not discriminate
based on race or ethnicity. The income parity across race
groups reflects lower ACI representation at executive and top
management level (currently 54%) and the Group has targets in
place to address this over time, including through its recruitment
policies and training and skills development programme.
The Group’s income equality by gender achieves 0.06 or
6% on the Gini index – an outcome of income equality. The
remuneration committee is gratified with this outcome as it
reflects the Group’s principle of equal pay for equal work without
any discrimination based on gender.

Employees

— Lorenz curve — Perfect equality
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Benchmarking remuneration to the market
Guaranteed pay and variable benefits at each employment grade are benchmarked annually against
industry norms to ensure our staff is rewarded competitively in relation to the broader employment market
and the retail industry specifically. Independent experts assist with remuneration benchmarking to ensure
that decisions are objective and fair. Advisors include PWC, REMchannel and DG Capital. Remuneration is
generally positioned at the market median. Key or scarce skills and high performers are remunerated at the
upper quartile of the market.
Employees below senior executive level
The Group utilises REMchannel national surveys
to annually benchmark remuneration against the
national and retail markets for employees below
senior executive level.

Senior executive benchmarking
The Group annually benchmarks guaranteed and
variable remuneration paid to senior executives to
a comparator group of large JSE-listed companies
to ensure our executives are remunerated fairly
and in line with the market.

Comprehensive independent remuneration
review undertaken in FY22
Following constructive engagement with
shareholders at the AGM in July 2021, the
Group appointed independent remuneration
specialists, DG Capital, to perform a
comprehensive review of the Group’s overall
remuneration framework and remuneration
policies. This review was in addition to our
annual benchmarking, and specifically focused
on the reasonableness of senior executive
remuneration relative to retail industry norms.

The remuneration committee requested DG Capital to
advise on the following key aspects of its remuneration:
• The Group’s guaranteed remuneration and variable
incentive (STI and LTI) compared to the broader retail
market, specifically:
» whether the incentive framework is typical and
appropriate
» whether the incentive policies are internally and
externally fair, considering the interest of all
stakeholders
» whether the value of incentives is fair and
reasonable based on market norms such as
company size metrics, grade multiples and financial
performance
In performing its review, DG Capital analysed the Group’s proposed
remuneration structure and certain remuneration metrics relative
to the Group’s financial performance over the past five years. This
included the total rand value of incentives paid, the pay-out ratio of
variable incentives relative to the various performance metrics and
the equitable distribution of incentives across employee grades.
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Benchmarking to the
median, the Group’s
variable remuneration
policy was measured
against 10 large South
African listed retail
companies:
Clicks
Dis-Chem
Foschini
Massmart
Mr Price
Pepkor
Shoprite
Spar
Truworths
Woolworths

Outcomes of the independent review:

The remuneration committee’s response:

Detailed qualitative and quantitative analysis
highlighted the following:

• The review did not necessitate any changes

• The Group has a sound and traditional
•

•

•
•

•
•

remuneration and incentive model, with STI
and LTI subject to performance targets.
In the context of the Group’s size and its
overall financial performance and financial
metrics, the total value of potential
incentives to be paid to qualifying staff
appeared fair and reasonable for FY22. It
was noted that the total value of variable
incentives paid in FY21 was comparably high
as a result of the discretionary incentives
paid to retiring executives. The planned
FY22 incentives have normalised.
It was noted that the STI and LTI multiples
were based on monthly cash salary, with
most listed companies expressing multiples
based on total guaranteed pay (TGP). As a
result, the STI and LTI multiples for the CEO
and CFO were found to be conservative
relative to the market.
STI multiples for lower management grades
were ahead of market norms, resulting in a
higher distribution ratio at those levels.
It was noted that the STI scheme was
highly leveraged between Target and
Stretch performance and the remuneration
committee could consider moderating the
differential in targets and the associated
pay-outs to ensure more consistent
and regular pay-outs ratios relative to
performance.
It was noted that the historical TGP of the
CFO was below the market median, and this
was corrected in FY22.
It was noted that the remuneration
committee had utilised significant discretion
in recent years. While this is appropriate
under certain circumstances, a pattern
of significant discretionary payments
does negate the effectiveness of the
remuneration policy. However, the revised
remuneration framework and policies
for FY22 were found to be a substantial
improvement and more market related than
the previous policy and if implemented
accordingly will be fair and more balanced
in the interests of all stakeholders.

•

•

•
•

•

•

•

to the remuneration framework, underlying
policies or the methodology used for
determining the value of short-term and
long-term incentives.
The value of short-term and long-term
incentives were revised at target,
threshold and stretch performance levels
where appropriate, to align with market
benchmarks and drive delivery of the
Ekuseni strategy.
The remuneration committee reviewed
the leverage of the STI scheme towards
outperformance, and balanced the STI
multiples accordingly.
The remuneration committee noted that
lower grades of management were well
incentivised, ahead of market norms.
Work is underway to transition the
Group’s “cash plus benefits” guaranteed
remuneration structure to a “total
guaranteed pay” (TGP) structure under
Ekuseni, the Group’s new long-term plan.
The remuneration committee remains
cognisant of the total value of staff
incentives relative to Group earnings and
performance. As such, while the bonus pool
will continue to be built from the bottom
up based on market-related multiples,
the total value of the bonus pool must be
affordable and fair and is therefore capped
at a reasonable percentage of PBT as
determined annually by the remuneration
committee.
The CFO’s base salary was lifted from
R4.2 million in FY21 to R5.1 million in FY22
to align with market norms, and annual
benchmarking reviews would continue.
The point on remuneration committee
discretion was noted, which was a key
theme in discussions with shareholders
this year. The committee will continue to
use careful judgement where discretion
under extenuating circumstances is
warranted – both in revising targets upwards
or downwards – and will ensure that its
communication with shareholders is clear
and transparent.
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Remuneration framework
The Group has an ambition to build the most skilled and talented retail business in Africa.
The Group’s remuneration framework for management employees is designed to develop
and retain a high-performance team – providing fair and balanced reward that recognises
the attainment of short-term goals, while motivating sustainable value creation, strongly
aligned with the Group’s strategy and the long-term interests of shareholders.
Guaranteed pay

Variable pay

Fixed salaries and benefits across the Group
are set at levels that are competitive with the
rest of the market. This enables the Group to
attract, motivate and retain the right calibre
of diverse people to achieve our strategic
business objectives.

Base pay

• Tailored to reflect

•

•

the relative skill,
experience, and
individual role of each
employee
Remuneration is
directly linked to formal
annual performance
assessments
Annual increases
reflect the projected
consumer price index
and comparable
increases in the general
and retail market

Variable incentives are designed to reward
and incentivise performance over one- (STI)
to three-year (LTI) periods. Variable benefits
are closely linked to the achievement
of Group, divisional operating units and
individual performance objectives.

Benefits

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Healthcare benefits
Retirement funding
Leave
Training
Bursaries and study
grants
Vehicle allowances
Long-service
awards

Short-term
incentives (STI)

Long-term
incentives (LTI)

• Annual cash bonus

• Cash retention

•

•

– rewards qualifying
employees based on
the attainment of key
performance targets
Other, more frequent
bonuses are paid to
qualifying staff at
store level

•

scheme (CRI) –
retention and reward
aimed at talented
middle management
Restricted share plan
(RSP) – retention
and reward aimed at
key top and senior
management
Ekuseni LTI –
currently under
review with the
objective of aligning
executive incentives
with the targets of
the Group’s new longterm plan
RSP

The Group benchmarks its guaranteed pay
and benefits against a number of JSE listed
and unlisted comparator companies.

Category
Executive
Top management
Senior and middle management
Junior management
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CRI

The basis for calculating STIs and LTIs is
formulaic in nature. However, participation
in variable incentive schemes is always
at the discretion of the remuneration
committee. The committee may exercise
discretion to award ex gratia payments where
extraordinary value has been created or
elect to withhold incentives where individual
performance does not warrant award.

Remuneration mix
The value of STI and LTI remuneration increases as
targets are met and exceeded, in order to encourage
the attainment of stretch targets. The table below
illustrates the mix of guaranteed and variable
remuneration payable to the Group’s executive
management team.

Remuneration is balanced between guaranteed
remuneration and variable short- and long-term
incentives to align employee and shareholder
interests over the long term. To achieve a highperformance culture, a higher proportion of variable
remuneration is applied to senior management
personnel to drive performance, with a greater
emphasis on total guaranteed pay (TGP) for middle
and junior management. Variable remuneration
consists of short-term incentives (STI) and long-term
incentives (LTI) and is considered “at risk pay” as it is
dependent on the attainment of performance targets,
closely aligned to the Group’s long-term strategic
plan. Performance targets are set within the Group’s
overall risk appetite, with the objective of being
challenging but realistic within the broader context of
the Group’s economic and trading environments.

Remuneration outcome
TGP

STI
award

LTI
vesting

Below threshold

100%

0%

0%

Threshold

100%

80%

40%

Target
Stretch

100%
100%

100%
120%*

70%
100%

*CEO STI at 200% at stretch

The table below presents the potential remuneration mix for the Group’s CEO, CFO and executive and top
management team against agreed performance targets, based on a multiple of basic cash monthly salary:

CEO
Below*

100%

Threshold

R14.9 million

31%

54%

Target

32%

45%

Stretch

15%

45%

32%

R30.1 million

23%

R37.1 million

23%

R52.8 million

CFO
Below*

R5.9 million

100%

Threshold

30%

52%

Target

31%

43%

Stretch

37%

18%

26%

32%

R11.5 million

R13.9 million

R16.3 million

31%

Top management
Below*

100%

Threshold

26%

55%

Target

27%

46%

Stretch

39%

28%

19%

27%

33%

* Assumes the threshold target is not met and no STI cash bonus is awarded and no LTI shares vest.

TGP

STI

LTI
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Variable pay – aligned with the delivery of Group strategy
The Group’s variable remuneration policies are strongly aligned with the Group’s long-term plan – designed to incentivise
the delivery of the Group’s financial and operational objectives over a one- and three-year period. The Group’s Ekuseni
long-term strategy was developed and reported to shareholders this year, and its execution will be measured against
performance indicators within five key strategic focus areas.
Primary targets – sales, profit before tax and exceptional items (PBTAE) and comparable headline earnings per
share – contained within the short-term bonus scheme and long-term executive share plan align management
interests with those of shareholders.
Secondary targets (individual KPIs) drive management performance against a balanced score card of financial,
operational, transformation and good business targets (linked to the business’s long-term environmental, social
and governance objectives), and include:
Our Ekuseni focus areas

1

2

A Refined and
Strengthened
Pick n Pay Customer
Value Proposition

3

Accelerating the
growth of Boxer

Building a strong
and clear customer
value proposition
by developing two
clear Pick n Pay
banners that
meet the needs
of our customers
across the broad
South African
demographic.

4

Building Omnichannel
and Digital leadership

Accelerating the
growth of our Boxer
business – with
200 store openings
over the next three
years - bringing
Boxer’s low prices
and exceptional
value to more
customers across
South Africa.

Decisive action to
expand our offer in
the fast-growing
online food and
grocery market,
including through
a commercial
services agreement
with the Takealot
Group.

5

Project Future –
Funding our Strategic
Ambitions

Winning through
our People

Targeting greater
efficiency in store
productivity, supply
chain and working
capital, commercial
buying, goods
not for resale,
support office
modernisation, and
a more sustainable,
efficient store
estate.

Our intensive
people plan will
build the right
team to execute
the Ekuseni plan,
including initiatives
on recruitment
and retention,
training and skills
development,
effective hybridworking and closer
staff engagement.

Our Ekuseni FY23 – FY26 strategic goals

+20

2x

10%

NPS

Boxer sales

Sales CAGR

3%

8x

R3bn

Online sales

Savings

>3%

Market share gain

PBT margin

ESG and Ekuseni

Our strategy is underpinned by our belief that doing good is good business. In particular, we believe that by
reducing waste we help the environment and reduce our costs. We have several ESG targets that cut across
our Ekuseni strategic pillars.

50%
in food waste
by 2030
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100%

75%

packaging to be recyclable/
reusable by 2025

of all waste diverted
from landfill by 2025

Zero

100%

Carbon by 2050,
-60% by 2040

CO2 refrigeration
by 2040

picknpay.com

20%
reduction in water usage per store 2025

Short-term incentives (STI)
Annual short-term bonus scheme
The annual short-term bonus scheme aims to drive short-term performance in a measured and sustainable way.
The scheme incentivises the achievement of the Group’s financial and non-financial targets as set out in the
Group’s plan for the year to follow, while retaining key skill and talent over the longer term.
The Group follows a formulaic approach to the calculation of the short-term bonus:
• The Group must first attain the threshold target set by the remuneration committee for profit before tax
and exceptional items (PBTAE) before any bonus is payable to the management team. This gatekeeper
PBTAE target is applied at Group or divisional level, as appropriate, and ensures the bonus is affordable.
• The PBTAE target determines the maximum value of the short-term bonus pool based on a formal and
transparent pay-out multiple linked to participants’ basic monthly cash salary.
• The bonus pool increases in a linear manner, as performance hurdles are met with the target pay-out at
100%; with threshold at 80%; and stretch at 120% (CEO 200%).
• The value of the short-term bonus paid to each participant is determined through a balanced score card of
Group performance and individual key performance indicators (KPIs). Performance targets are determined
and communicated to participants annually in advance.

Group or divisional financial
performance weighting

60%

60% of the pay-out multiple is subject
to the attainment of PBTAE and
sales targets as set by the Group’s
remuneration committee on an annual
basis. Focus on both earnings and topline trade performance is important to
ensure that the Group delivers growth
in a sustainable manner.

40%
60%

40%

Individual financial and nonfinancial performance weighting

40% of the pay-out multiple is subject
to each participant achieving two key
performance targets specific to their
role within the Group, as agreed with
their line manager on an annual basis
and monitored through the formal
performance appraisal process. The
executive team are subject to a third
good business key performance
target linked directly to the Group’s
environmental, social or governance
(ESG) objectives, as appropriate.

Weighting:

Weighting:

Group or divisional performance
targets

Individual performance targets

PBTAE

60%

Sales growth

40%

Application of STI methodology:
CEO

Individual KPI

40%

Individual KPI

40%

Relevant ESG KPI

20%

Application of STI methodology:
FY23 STI
at Target

FY23 STI
at Target

CFO

Group performance – 60% of bonus

6 424 200

Group performance – 60% of bonus

2 580 000

PBTAE – 60%
Sales growth – 40%

3 854 520
2 569 680

PBTAE – 60%
Sales growth – 40%

1 548 000
1 032 000

Individual performance – 40% of
bonus

4 282 800

Individual performance – 40% of
bonus

1 720 000

NPS* – 40%
Number of new stores – 40%
Basket of ESG targets – 20%
Bonus payable at target

1 713 120
1 713 120
856 560
10 707 000

Return on capital employed – 40%
Project Future cost savings – 40%
Basket of ESG targets – 20%
Bonus payable at target

688 000
688 000
344 000
4 300 000

* Improvement in Pick n Pay’s net promoter score

Pick n Pay Stores Limited
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The following criteria apply to participation in the short-term bonus scheme:
• Approximately 1 000 management employees are eligible to participate in the short-term bonus scheme
• Employees must have been in the employ of the Group for at least four months of the financial year
measured, with the bonus applied on a pro rata basis
• Employees cannot have resigned prior to the bonus payment date or be completing a resignation notice period
• Employees must have achieved the prescribed minimum performance level on their annual performance
appraisal

Other short-term bonuses
Other, more frequent incentive bonuses are paid to qualifying staff at store level. These incentives are linked
directly to short-term store performance targets, including turnover, stockholdings, shortages and waste.

Long-term incentives (LTI)
The Group maintains a long-term cash retention scheme for middle-management employees and a long-term
share incentive scheme for our senior management team. Long-term incentives are an integral part of the
Group’s remuneration philosophy, to ensure the long-term retention of skilled and promising talent at all levels
of management and to align the interests of senior executives with those of shareholders.

Cash retention incentive scheme (CRI)
The objective of the CRI scheme is the recognition and retention of key talent at senior and middle-management
levels, while advancing the Group’s employment equity and gender equity targets. The cash award is based on a
fixed multiple of each participant’s monthly salary, and vests after a period of three years. Retention in a highly
contested retail environment is the primary objective of the scheme and, as such, no performance conditions
are attached. Vesting is only dependent on the employee remaining in the employ of the Group over the specified
vesting period. If a participant leaves the employ of the Group before the end of the vesting period, all unvested
cash awards will lapse (subject to good leaver provisions). Participants are identified through the Group’s formal
performance appraisal process, and awards are made on an annual basis – allowing for participants to receive
rolling annual awards as they progress through the Group.

Restricted share plan (RSP)
The Group’s RSP plan recognises executive and top management employees who have a significant role to play
in delivering Group strategy and ensuring the growth and sustainability of the Group. Through the attachment
of performance conditions, the RSP incentivises participating employees to deliver long-term earnings growth
in line with the objectives set out in the Group’s long-term strategic plan. An award of shares may also be used
to attract talented prospective employees, and progress the Group’s transformation strategy.

• The remuneration committee awards zero-strike RSP shares to participants.

Eligibility

The value of the award is calculated as a percentage of each participant’s basic
annual cash salary:

» CEO 100%
» CFO 100%
» Top management 50% – 100%

• The value of shares awarded to participants reflects recognised market

benchmarks, each participant’s individual contribution to long-term value
creation, and other relevant retention and attraction considerations

• The shares are held by a Central Securities Depository Participant (CSDP) on

Vesting

behalf of participants over the time of the vesting period (normally three years)

• Participants cannot dispose of the shares before the vesting date
• If a participant leaves the Group before the completion of the vesting period, all
shares and accrued dividends are forfeited (subject to good leaver provisions)
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Performance
conditions

• Performance conditions are linked to the Group’s financial performance, with

compound annual growth in comparable headline earnings per share over three
years, adjusted for exceptional items as appropriate, as the primary performance
measure (linked in growth in CPI from FY22)

• Performance conditions are applied on a linear, rising scale once the threshold

target has been met. This allows for the vesting of an increasing number of
shares as earnings thresholds are met and exceeded. All growth thresholds
are inclusive of the applicable IFRS 2 share-based payment expense, which is
charged to the income statement over the vesting term of the forfeitable shares.
The scheme is therefore self-funding

Gatekeeper clause

• To ensure that the RSP is aligned with the best interests of the Group and
its shareholders, the performance conditions are subject to an overriding
gatekeeper condition:

» ROCE must be greater than WACC (excluding any impact from IFRS 16

liabilities) over the vesting period before any RSP shares can vest. This
ensures that the Group generates a real return for shareholders before
rewarding its management team

Ownership rights

• Participants have full voting rights over the period
• Dividend rights are at the discretion of the remuneration committee, and are

currently deferred until vesting date, and paid in direct proportion to the number
of shares which vest

Legacy share option scheme
The Group’s legacy share option scheme (the 1997 employee share option scheme) was replaced by the cash
retention incentive scheme (CRI) in FY21. All outstanding share options previously awarded under the scheme
will vest in participants under the original terms and conditions of the awards. No further share options will be
awarded under this scheme.

Funding of share incentive schemes
Shareholders have authorised the Board to utilise up to 63.9 million Pick n Pay Stores Limited (PIK) shares to
manage the Group’s employee share option and restricted share schemes, representing 13% of issued share
capital. In respect of the number of new shares that can be issued to cover obligations under the employee
share schemes, the two share schemes are further constrained by an aggregate limit of 5% of the issued share
capital of PIK.

Service contracts and termination benefits
Executive directors and senior management are employed in terms of the Group’s standard contract of
employment. They are only employed under fixed-term contracts under specific circumstances. Senior
management are required to give a reasonable notice period of their intention to terminate their services, which
varies from three to 12 calendar months. The CEO and CFO are required to provide 12 months’ notice.
Employment contracts do not provide for any exceptional benefits or compensation on the termination of
employment. Certain managers who are considered key in carrying out the Group’s strategy are subject to
contractual restraint of trade provisions. Termination, restraint of trade payments, or retirement gratuities may
be made in this regard at the discretion of the remuneration committee.

Minimum shareholding requirement
The CEO is required to retain 50% of the shares delivered under the Group’s share incentive schemes (after the
settlement of tax), while in the employ of the Group.

Pick n Pay Stores Limited
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Malus and claw-back
In the event of a material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group, or of any subsidiary company
within the Group, the Board is entitled to adjust (malus) or recover (claw-back) any performance-related shortterm and long-term incentives previously paid to executives implicated in the misstatement, as a result of their
fraud, dishonesty or negligence.

Non-executive director remuneration
The table below sets out the remuneration policies applied by the Group for the FY22 financial year for nonexecutive directors. These policies are applicable for the FY23 financial year and form the underlying basis
for the directors’ fees tabled for shareholder approval at the AGM to be held on 26 July 2022. Please refer to
page 65 of Section 3 for the proposed fees for FY23.

Non-executive director remuneration framework

Directors’ fees
Chair

• The Chair’s fee reflects the active role the Chair
plays in the corporate governance of the Group
and in formulating overarching strategy

Committee membership
• Non-executive director fees reflect the additional
responsibilities taken through the chairpersonship
and membership of Board committees

Lead independent director and other directors
• Directors’ fees are market-related, based on
relevant benchmarks, commensurate with the
time required for directors to fulfil their duties,
and are approved by the Board and shareholders
on an annual basis
• Annual fees are not subject to attendance at
meetings, as attendance at meetings is generally
very good

Approval
• Proposed fees are based on independently
benchmarked data, including against retail peer
companies in South Africa
• The Company Secretary proposes the fees
to the remuneration committee which in turn
recommends the fees to the Board for final
approval from shareholders
• Fees are paid quarterly in arrears

Consultancy fees
• Should non-executive directors provide
additional consultancy services to the Board
and its committees, the related fees are
determined and approved by the remuneration
committee on an ad hoc basis, considering
the nature and scope of the services rendered

Service contracts
• Non-executive directors do not have service
contracts
• Non-executive directors serve under a formal
letter of appointment from the Board and are
re-elected by shareholders on rotational basis.
Please refer to page 88 of the IAR
• Non-executive director services may be
terminated without liability for compensation

Other
• All travel and accommodation expenses related
to the work of the Board are settled by the
Group

Other benefits

• Non-executive remuneration is not linked to the performance of the Group or to the Group’s share
price performance

• Non-executive directors do not receive performance-related bonuses and are not granted any
share awards
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Section 3

Implementation of remuneration policy
The implementation report details the key focus areas of the remuneration committee this year, including the
important decisions taken to provide fair and balanced remuneration to staff across the business in a year
severely disrupted by the civil unrest and, to a lesser extent, some ongoing Covid-19 trading restrictions in
respect of the sale of liquor in the first half of the year.
The remuneration policies applied are consistent with the prior year. Tables are provided at the close of this
section for a summary of the remuneration packages paid to executive and non-executive directors.

Executive directors and senior management
Benchmarking
The remuneration committee evaluated the overall value and composition of guaranteed pay and variable
incentives in respect of the CEO, CFO and all other executive directors and senior managers. Executive
and senior management remuneration is considered fair and competitive against market benchmarks, and
appropriately reflects the role, experience and performance of each individual member of the Group’s senior
management team.

Executive directors – Total Guaranteed Pay (TGP)
Base Retirement
salary and medical
R’000
R’000
CEO – Pieter Boone
CFO – Lerena Olivier
Suzanne Ackerman-Berman
Jonathan Ackerman

10 707.0
5 070.0
3 024.0
1 512.0

953.6
478.5
281.6
268.9

Other
benefits
R’000

FY22
TGP
R’000

FY21
TGP
R’000

Change
%

3 266.0
336.4
291.5
322.6

14 926.6
5 884.9
3 597.1
2 103.5

n/a
4 895.6
3 590.7
2 061.3

n/a
20.2%
–
2.0%

Pieter Boone was appointed as CEO on 20 April 2021. Lerena Olivier’s total guaranteed package was increased
by 20.2% year-on-year, following the results of a detailed review which concluded that her base salary was
uncompetitive against market benchmarks (specifically in the lower quartile of comparator companies). The
CEO and CFO base salary and all related fixed benefits are considered fair in relation to the market and fairly
reflect the extensive skill and experience that Pieter Boone and Lerena Olivier bring to their roles.

Annual base salary increases
The following factors are considered in determining a fair, equitable and competitive salary increase: Group
performance, affordability, CPI inflation, market benchmarking. The Group continues to provide junior,
entry level and non-management staff with higher salary increases relative to more senior colleagues, in
recognition of the impact the tough economic climate has on many of our employees, and as a mechanism
to narrow the income gap across our management levels. The CEO and CFO, in their leadership of the
Ekuseni strategy, and in support of all the cost savings initiatives to come, chose to forego any salary
increase in the coming year.
Category

FY23 annual
salary % increase

FY22 annual
salary % increase

FY21 annual
salary % increase

–
–
2.3%
4.5%
5.4%
5.4%

n/a
21.9%
4.0%
4.5%
5.5%
5.5%

n/a
–
–
–
5.5%
7.0%

CEO
CFO
Top management
Senior and middle management
Junior management
Entry level and non-management

The average increase for NMBU employees in FY22, as governed by labour union agreements, was
between 5% and 10% (FY21: 7% – 10%).
*

Increase to align CFO salary with market benchmarks.
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Short-term incentive (STI):
FY22 annual short-term performance bonus
The remuneration committee determines annual financial performance targets in advance of the Group’s shortterm incentive bonus scheme for the coming financial year. The remuneration committee set strong sales and
earnings targets for the FY22 financial year, targeting a strong recovery from FY21, which had been highly
disrupted by the Covid-19 pandemic and all related trading restrictions and other health and safety measures.
After a strong first quarter with sales growth up 9.0% and in line with the targets of the remuneration committee,
the Group’s financial performance was once again impacted by severe trade disruptions – first with the
resumption of stringent Covid-19 trade restrictions around the sale of liquor in June 2021, and then by the civil
unrest which unfolded across KwaZulu-Natal and parts of Gauteng in July 2021. The committee acknowledged
that the disruptions were outside of management control and as a result, some careful judgement was required in
the determination of a short-term bonus, including an accurate and detailed assessment of lost sales and earnings
which could be reasonably attributed to the disruption. The Group has estimated that it lost R2.7 billion in lost sales
over the year – with a significant impact on earnings, excluding insurance recoveries received after year-end.

FY22 performance against STI targets:

Sales growth
PBTAE margin

FY21
Prior year
performance

FY22
Target for
maximum
STI pay-out

4.3%
1.7%

9.0%
2.0%

FY22
Actual
performance
5.2%
1.9%
2.0%

excluding insurance recoveries received after year-end
including insurance recoveries received after year-end

After careful consideration, the remuneration committee elected to award a FY22 bonus of approximately 50%
of the Group’s total maximum bonus pool (calculated based on participants’ stretch multiples) – subject to each
participant’s performance against their individual KPIs, as captured in the Group’s formal appraisal process, and
the Group’s performance including insurance recoveries after year-end.
The outcome of the STI deliberation for executive directors was as follows:
FY22

CEO – Pieter Boone
CFO – Lerena Olivier
Suzanne Ackerman-Berman
Jonathan Ackerman

Maximum bonus

Performance

STI bonus

potential

outcome

awarded

R000’s

%

R000’s

21 414.0
5 160.0
2 016.0
1 008.0

49
70
50
50

10 492.9
3 612.0
1 008.0
504.0

As described in Section 2 of this report, the Group’s formal methodology in determining the value of the short-term
bonuses paid to participating executives is based on a balanced score card of Group and individual performance.
Individuals were assessed against their KPIs set at the beginning of the financial year, with consideration given
to the impact the disruptions had on individual employees and roles. The remuneration committee acknowledges
the incredible efforts of its management teams across the country to rebuild and restore operations as rapidly
as possible, including support office staff who have been so integral in formulating and submitting the Group’s
insurance claims and in restoring the Group’s insurance cover wherever possible. CFO Lerena Olivier was awarded
70% of her maximum bonus in recognition of her key role over year, including the careful management of the Group’s
liquidity over the period of the disruption, and her leadership in formulating and submitting the Group’s insurance
claims and the reinstatement of its insurance covers.
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Long-term incentives:
Share option scheme
The Group’s share option scheme was replaced by the more modern and cost-effective CRI scheme in FY21.
No further share options have been awarded. Outstanding share options previously awarded under the scheme
will vest in participants over the next three, five and seven years, under the original terms and conditions of the
scheme.
The future net realisable value of outstanding share options held by employees at 27 February 2022:

Year
Outstanding share options may be taken up during the
following financial years:
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027 and thereafter

Average
grant
price
R

Number of
options
000’s

Net
realisable
value1
Rm

53.73
69.15
64.69
70.06
63.61

12 859.7
1 995.2
1 520.2
1 427.4
764.4

51.7
–
–
–
–

18 566.9

51.7

Total
1

The net realisable value of outstanding share options was calculated using the prevailing market share price at year-end of
R46.44, less the average grant price per award.

Cash retention incentive scheme (CRI)
The remuneration committee introduced a cash retention scheme in FY21, aimed at the retention of key
members of middle management. The remuneration committee approved the 2021 award under the scheme
as follows:
June 2021
June 2024
36 months
204
58%
39%

Award date
Vesting date
Retention period
Number of participants
ACI participation
Female participation

Restricted share plan (RSP) awards
Delivery of executive share awards
Three-year comparable
HEPS growth target
Number of
Shares
Scheme
FSP 2019

Number of

Base

millions participants

year

Threshold

Target

Stretch

date

FY19

(3%)

2%

4%

June 2022

1.7

115

Vesting

The Group did not meet the required three-year HEPS performance target required for the full vesting of FSP
2019, as a result of the lost sales and earnings related to the civil unrest of July 2021. The Group achieved its
threshold target for 30% vesting; however, the remuneration committee assessed that the Group would have
achieved its stretch target for 100% vesting, had it not been for the impact of the unrest. In the interests of
fair and equitable remuneration, and balanced with the interest of stakeholders, the remuneration committee
determined that a 50% vesting of FSP 2019 is reasonable. As such, 846 750 shares are expected to be
delivered to participants on 27 June 2022.

Pick n Pay Stores Limited

63

Remuneration report

Outstanding executive share awards under the Group’s restricted share plan (RSP)
The shares are held by a CSDP on behalf of the participants, and delivery is dependent on the attainment of
performance targets linked to the growth in comparable headline earnings per share (HEPS).

Award date
Vesting date
Retention period
Number of shares

RSP 2021

RSP 2020

June 2021
June 2024
36 months
3.0m

June 2020
June 2023
36 months
3.6m

CPI-linked
targets

Absolute
targets

Three-year comparable HEPS growth targets:
Threshold – 40% vesting
Target – 70 % vesting
Stretch – 100% vesting
Number of participants:
ACI participation
Female participation
Held by executive directors:
CEO – Pieter Boone
CFO – Lerena Olivier
Suzanne Ackerman (refer below)
Jonathan Ackerman
1

CPI

2%

CPI plus 1%
CPI plus 2%

4%
6%

145
38%
30%

145
31%
40%

500 0001
87 000
55 000
27 000

n/a
120 000
60 000
30 000

In accordance with Pieter Boone’s sign-on agreement, with a commitment to award a further 500 000 shares in June 2023.

The remuneration committee acknowledges that the HEPS performance targets set for RSP 2020 may no
longer be appropriate under the Group’s new long-term plan. The committee has elected not to revise these
targets, but will consider any once-off or extraordinary costs in FY23 directly related to the actions of Ekuseni
in its deliberations of a fair and reasonable vesting.
The HEPS performance hurdles for RSP 2021 link the growth targets over three years to growth in CPI over
the same period. The link to an objective economic measure will alleviate the need for remuneration committee
discretion going forward where socio-economic shocks impact the ability of management to deliver on absolute
targets set at award date. The remuneration committee is satisfied that the CPI-linked targets are aligned with
the Ekuseni strategic objectives.

Ekuseni LTI
The remuneration committee is currently developing a separate long-term incentive award, targeted at a small
number of executives directly accountable for the successful execution of the long-term Ekuseni strategy.
The term of the scheme and its performance targets will be directly aligned with the objectives of the plan.
Deliberations are ongoing and will be shared with shareholders in due course.

Executive retirement – Suzanne Ackerman-Berman
Retirement gratuity
Suzanne Ackerman-Berman has graciously elected to take early retirement to provide greater opportunity
for transformation in the Group’s ESG team. Suzanne has played an invaluable role in advancing the Group’s
corporate social investment programmes over her tenure, and more specifically has had an incredible impact on
addressing hunger in vulnerable South African communities through the development of the Feed the Nation
campaign. The remuneration committee has awarded Suzanne Ackerman-Berman an award of R3.0 million on
her early retirement from the Group on 31 March 2022. Suzanne was appointed as a non-executive director on
that date.
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Delivery of outstanding long-term share incentives
Suzanne’s outstanding share incentive awards will be delivered to her in June 2022 on a pro rata basis in line
with the good leaver provisions of the executive share incentive scheme.

Malus and claw-back
No incidents were identified in the FY22 financial year.

Non-executive directors
The remuneration committee reviewed and recommended non-executive director remuneration to the Board,
for shareholder approval at the AGM on 26 July 2022.

Chair of the Board
In setting the Chair’s proposed annual fee of R4.9 million in respect of FY23, the remuneration committee
considered the active role the Chair plays in the corporate governance of the Group and in formulating
overarching strategy for the individual subsidiary companies within the Group. The Chair does not play a dayto-day role in the executive management and administration of the business, but does make himself available
to the executive team in an advisory capacity. Gareth Ackerman is recused from all discussions in respect of his
annual remuneration. Gareth Ackerman waived a fee increase this year in support of the Group’s cost savings
and efficiency goals under Ekuseni.

Non-executive directors
Shareholders approved the FY23 directors’ fees at the AGM held in June 2021, agreeing that the FY22 fees
be increased by no more than CPI for the 2022 annual financial period.
Non-executive director fees (excluding value-added tax) for the current and proposed periods are as follows:

Chair of the Board
Lead independent non-executive director
Non-executive director
Chair of the audit, risk and compliance committee
Member of the audit, risk and compliance committee
Chair of the remuneration committee
Member of the remuneration committee
Member of the nominations and corporate governance committee1
Chair of the social and ethics committee3
Member of the social and ethics committee
Chair of the corporate finance committee 2
Member of the corporate finance committee 2
1

2

3

Proposed
2023
R

Actual
2022
R

%
change

4 893 000
156 250
470 000
405 000
156 250
215 800
101 800
97 150
215 800
101 800
215 800
146 000

4 893 000
152 000
457 000
394 000
152 000
210 000
99 000
94 500
–
99 000
210 000
142 000

–
2.8
2.8
2.8
2.8
2.8
2.8
2.8
–
2.8
2.8
2.8

The nominations and corporate governance committee is chaired by the Chair of the Board, who does not receive an
additional fee for chairing this committee.
The corporate finance committee is an ad hoc committee. The fees payable are determined in relation to the number of
meetings held during the financial period but will not be more than the annual proposed fee.
The Chair of the social and ethics committee – Suzanne Ackerman-Berman – is now a non-executive director and will
receive a fee for this role going forward.

NED Fees have been benchmarked against a comparator group of companies including:
Clicks
Massmart
Spar

Dischem
Mr Price
Truworths

Foschini
Shoprite
Woolworths
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Total remuneration of executive directors and prescribed officer
Retirement
and
medical
Base contrisalary butions
R’000 R’000

Fringe Total fixed
and other
remunebenefits
ration
R’000
R’000

Short-term
performance Retirement
bonus
gratuity3
R’000
R’000

Total
remuneration
R’000

Long-term
Long-term
share
share
awards
awards charges –
charges – accelerated
current
on
year4 retirement
R’000
R’000

FY22
Executive directors
Pieter Boone1
Lerena Olivier
Suzanne Ackerman-Berman2
Jonathan Ackerman
Richard Brasher 1
Richard van Rensburg

10 707.0
5 070.0
3 024.0
1 512.0
1 806.0
420.0

953.6
478.5
281.6
268.9
163.8
36.4

3 266.0
336.4
291.5
322.6
1 522.1
28.6

14 926.6
5 884.9
3 597.1
2 103.5
3 491.9
485.0

10 492.9
3 612.0
1 008.0
504.0
–
–

–
–
3 024.0
–
–
–

25 419.5
9 496.9
7 629.1
2 607.5
3 491.9
485.0

5 798.6
5 577.7
2 153.4
633.3
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–

Total remuneration

22 539.0 2 182.8

5 767.2

30 489.0

15 616.9

3 024.0

49 129.9

14 163.0

–

981.6
398.4
436.5
281.0
270.7

310.9
337.2
327.6
285.7
278.6

12 128.5
4 895.6
5 804.1
3 590.7
2 061.3

20 000.0
4 000.0
3 360.0
2 000.0
1 000.0

5 000.0
–
5 000.0
–
–

37 128.5
8 895.6
14 164.1
5 590.7
3 061.3

74 611.1
4 822.8
5 310.9
1 451.7
759.0

41 251.4
–
5 324.5
–
–

24 572.0 2 368.2

1 540.0

28 480.2

30 360.0

10 000.0

68 840.2

86 955.5

46 575.9

506.5

2 445.5

–

–

2 445.5

–

–

FY21
Executive directors
Richard Brasher 1
10 836.0
Lerena Olivier
4 160.0
Richard van Rensburg
5 040.0
Suzanne Ackerman-Berman 3 024.0
Jonathan Ackerman
1 512.0
Total remuneration
Prescribed officer
Pieter Boone1
1

2

3
4

1 784.5

154.5

Richard Brasher retired as CEO at the end of April 2021 and Pieter Boone was appointed as CEO on 20 April 2021. Pieter
Boone was a prescribed officer up until his date of appointment.
Suzanne Ackerman-Berman retired as an executive director on 31 March 2022, and was appointed as a non-executive
director on that date.
Gratuities were paid on retirement of the directors in recognition of their exemplary service to the Group.
The long-term share awards expense or recoupment is determined in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-Based Payments, and
reflects the current year’s charge recorded in the Group’s statement of comprehensive income and statement of changes in
equity. The fair value of share awards are determined at grant date, and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income and statement of changes in equity over the period during which the employee becomes unconditionally entitled
to the award (the vesting period). Long-term share awards will vest in the future only if all the vesting criteria set out in the
rules of the 1997 Employee Share Options Scheme and the Restricted Share Plan (RSP), previously named Forfeitable Share
Plan (FSP), are met. Dependent on the nature of the vesting criteria, long-term share awards expense may be reversed and
recouped by the Group if the vesting criteria are not met. Vesting criteria in respect of the FSP 2019 awards, due to vest in
June 2022, have not been fully met. As a result, and as directed by the remuneration committee, 50% of the FSP 2019 longterm share awards have been forfeited, and the related expense recouped by the Group in the 2022 financial year.
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Total remuneration of non-executive directors

Director

Directors’
fees
R’000

NominaLead
Audit,
tions and
indepenrisk and Remune- Social and corporate Employee
dent compliance
ration
ethics governance
share
director committee committee committee committee
trust
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000

FY22
Gareth Ackerman
Haroon Bhorat 1
Mariam Cassim1
David Friedland
Hugh Herman2
Aboubakar Jakoet
Audrey Mothupi
David Robins
Annamarie van der Merwe3
Jeff van Rooyen

4 893.0
457.0
457.0
457.0
457.0
457.0
457.0
457.0
457.0
457.0

Total

9 006.0

FY21
Gareth Ackerman
Haroon Bhorat 1
Mariam Cassim1
David Friedland
Hugh Herman2
Aboubakar Jakoet
Alex Mathole 4
Audrey Mothupi
David Robins
Annamarie van der Merwe3
Jeff van Rooyen

4 660.0
362.5
362.5
435.0
435.0
435.0
181.3
435.0
435.0
253.8
435.0

145.0

375.0

94.5

Total

8 430.1

145.0

930.8

538.6

1
2

3
4

152.0
152.0
152.0

99.0

152.0
152.0

394.0

99.0

152.0

1 002.0

507.0

145.0

94.5
94.5

44.0

4 893.0
802.5
609.0
703.5
457.0
699.0
957.5
556.0
650.5
1 240.5

472.5

132.0

11 568.5

94.5
94.5

99.0
210.0

120.8
145.0
145.0

Total
remuneration
R’000

99.0
99.0
99.0
297.0

55.1
200.0
94.5
94.5

94.5

44.0
44.0

52.5
90.0

42.0

4 660.0
470.1
483.3
670.0
822.0
666.0
258.2
806.5
529.5
361.4
1 181.5

412.5

168.0

10 908.5

52.5
90.0
94.5
39.4
94.5
55.1
283.5

37.5
90.0

42.0
42.0
42.0

Haroon Bhorat and Mariam Cassim were appointed during May 2020.
Hugh Herman retired as Chair of the remuneration committee effective 28 February 2021, and Audrey Mothupi was
appointed as Chair of the remuneration committee effective 1 March 2021.
Annamarie van der Merwe was appointed during August 2020.
Alex Mathole retired during August 2020.
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Share awards held by executive directors
Calendar
year
granted

FY22
Pieter Boone
Restricted shares
Lerena Olivier
Share options
Forfeitable shares
Restricted shares

Suzanne Ackerman-Berman1
Forfeitable shares
Restricted shares

Jonathan Ackerman
Forfeitable shares
Restricted shares

1

2

2021

2019
2019
2019
2018
2019
2020
2021

2018
2019
2020
2021

2018
2019
2020
2021

Balance
Award
Balance
Exercise
held at
grant
held at
Granted/
price 27 February
price 28 February
R
2022
R
2021 Forfeits2 (exercised)
Nil

58.05
58.05
58.05
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

–

–

500 000

–

–

500 000

80 000
60 000
60 000
20 000
100 000
120 000
–

–
–
–
(50 000)
–
–

–
–
–
(20 000)
–
–
87 000

440 000

(50 000)

67 000

15 000
15 000
60 000
–

–
(7 500)
–
–

(15 000)
–
–
55 000

90 000

(7 500)

40 000

8 000
8 000
30 000
–

–
(4 000)
–
–

(8 000)
–
–
27 000

46 000

(4 000)

19 000

–

500 000

Available
for take-up
June 2024

500 000
–
–
–
51.71
–
–
–

80 000 September 2022
60 000 September 2024
60 000 September 2026
–
n/a
50 000
June 2022
120 000
June 2023
87 000
June 2024
457 000

51.71
–
–
–

–
7 500
60 000
55 000

n/a
June 2022
June 2023
June 2024

122 500
51.71
–
–
–

–
4 000
30 000
27 000

n/a
June 2022
June 2023
June 2024

61 000

Suzanne Ackerman-Berman retired as an executive director on 31 March 2022, and was appointed as a non-executive director on
that date. Suzanne’s outstanding share awards will be delivered to her in June 2022 on a pro rata basis in line with the good leaver
provisions of the scheme.
As a result of the trade disruptions experienced in the 2022 financial year, the Group did not fully achieve the three-year
headline earnings per share performance target required for the successful delivery of the 2019 FSP award. As a result,
and as directed by the remuneration committee, 50% of the FSP 2019 long-term share awards have been forfeited, and the
related expense recouped by the Group in the 2022 financial year. The remaining shares will be delivered to participants
at the end of June 2022.
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Directors’ interest in ordinary shares
FY22
Gareth Ackerman9

How
held1

Balance
held at
28 February
2021

Additions/
grants

Disposals

direct
indirect
indirect
indirect

309
1 713 106
19 762
101 900

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

1

–

–

–

124 677 237
2 800 000
–
40 500
240 000

–
12 000
500 000
10 800
87 000

–
–
–
–
(20 000)

120 528
90 000

–
55 000

–
(15 000)

–
(7 500)

120 528
122 500

Beneficial
Beneficial

625 069
122 888
46 000

8 100
–
27 000

(100 000)
–
(8 000)

–
–
(4 000)

533 169
122 888
61 000

Beneficial
Beneficial
Beneficial

799 419
2 161
758 764
13 059
51 688
975
90 436
30 000
256

8 000
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
(10 000)
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Ackerman Pick n Pay Foundation3
Ackerman Family Investment
indirect
Holdings Proprietary Limited 4
Ackerman Investment Holdings
5
indirect
Proprietary Limited
Mistral Trust7
indirect
Pieter Boone
direct – RSP
Lerena Olivier
direct
direct –
RSP/FSP
Suzanne Ackerman-Berman8
direct
direct –
RSP/FSP
indirect
Jonathan Ackerman
direct
direct –
RSP/FSP
indirect
indirect
10
Aboubakar Jakoet
direct
indirect
David Friedland
indirect
David Robins
direct
indirect
Hugh Herman
direct
indirect
1
2

3
4

5

6

7

8
9
10

11

Balance
held at
27 February
Forfeits6
2022

Beneficial/
nonbeneficial
interest2

309
Beneficial
Beneficial
1 713 1069
19 762 Non-beneficial
101 900 Non-beneficial
1

Non-beneficial

– 124 677 237 Non-beneficial
–
2 812 0007 Non-beneficial
–
500 000
Beneficial
–
51 300
Beneficial
(50 000)
257 000
Beneficial

807 419
Beneficial
2 161 Non-beneficial
10
758 764
Beneficial
13 059 Non-beneficial
41 688
Beneficial
975
Beneficial
90 436 Non-beneficial
30 000
Beneficial
256
Beneficial

Direct interests represent a holding in the director’s personal capacity. Indirect interests represent a holding by a trust (of
which the director is a trustee), a spouse or minor children of directors.
Beneficial interest represents an interest in shares in which a person is entitled to receive income payable in respect to that
shareholding and obtain any benefit as a result of holding those shares. Non-beneficial interest represents an interest in
shares in which a person will not benefit directly as a result of holding those shares.
The indirect non-beneficial interest in the Ackerman Pick n Pay Foundation represents the holdings of Gareth Ackerman
and Suzanne Ackerman-Berman in their capacities as trustees.
Ackerman Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited changed its name to Ackerman Family Investment Holdings Proprietary
Limited. The indirect non-beneficial interest in Ackerman Family Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited represents a
portion of the holdings of Gareth Ackerman, Suzanne Ackerman-Berman and Jonathan Ackerman.
Newshelf 1321 Proprietary Limited changed its name to Ackerman Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited. The indirect
non-beneficial interest in Ackerman Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited represents a portion of the holdings of Gareth
Ackerman, Suzanne Ackerman-Berman and Jonathan Ackerman.
As a result of the trade disruptions experienced in the 2022 financial year, the Group did not fully achieve the three-year
headline earnings per share performance target required for the successful delivery of the 2019 FSP award. As a result,
and as directed by the remuneration committee, 50% of the FSP 2019 long-term share awards have been forfeited, and the
related expense recouped by the Group in the 2022 financial year. The remaining shares will be delivered to participants at
the end of June 2022.
The indirect non-beneficial interest in Mistral Trust represents a portion of the holdings of Gareth Ackerman, Suzanne
Ackerman-Berman and Jonathan Ackerman in their capacity as trustees and/or potential beneficiaries. Subsequent to
27 February 2022 and before the date of this report, the Mistral Trust purchased 18 000 shares.
Suzanne Ackerman-Berman retired as an executive director on 31 March 2022, and was appointed as a non-executive
director on that date.
Subsequent to 27 February 2022 and before the date of this report, Burrumbuck Investments (Pty) Ltd (an associate of
Gareth Ackerman) purchased 7 300 ordinary shares.
On 24 June 2022 Aboubakar Jakoet effected the following change to his Pick n Pay Stores Limited share portfolio:
Balance
Balance
Beneficial /
Held at
Held at
nonHow
27 February
24 June
beneficial
held:
2022
Movements
2022
interest
direct
758 764
(750 000)
8 764
Beneficial
indirect
–
750 000
750 000
Beneficial
indirect
13 059
–
13 059 Non-beneficial
The restructure is an off-market transaction to a company in which Aboubakar Jakoet retains an indirect beneficial holding
in accordance with the classifications of the JSE Listings Requirements. However, he has only a 10% shareholding in the
company through which these shares are held, cannot exercise control over these shares and receives limited information
regarding these shares.
Other than disclosed in notes 7, 9 and 10 above, there have been no changes in the directors’ interests in ordinary shares
since 27 February 2022, up to the date of the approval of this report.
Pick n Pay Stores Limited
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Directors’ interest in B shares
Balance
held at
28 February
2021

Additions

Disposals

522
3 227 861
39 140

–
–
–

–
–
–

522
3 227 861
39 140

Beneficial
Beneficial
Non-beneficial

Ackerman Investment Holdings Proprietary
Limited3

indirect 246 936 847

–

– 246 936 847

Non-beneficial

Mistral trust4

indirect

5 349 559

–

–

5 349 559

Non-beneficial

Suzanne Ackerman-Berman5

direct
indirect

233 767
926 084

–
–

–
–

233 767
926 084

Beneficial
Beneficial

Jonathan Ackerman

direct
indirect
indirect

243 307
1 135 009
4 280

–
–
–

–
–
–

243 307
1 135 009
4 280

Beneficial
Beneficial
Non-beneficial

David Robins

direct
indirect

1 931
179 118

–
–

–
–

1 931
179 118

Beneficial
Non-beneficial

How held1

FY22
Gareth Ackerman

1

2

3

4

5

6

direct
indirect
indirect

Balance
Beneficial/
held at
27 February non-beneficial
6
interest2
2022

Direct interests represent a holding in the director’s personal capacity. Indirect interests represent a holding by a trust (of
which the director is a trustee), a spouse or minor children of directors.
Beneficial interest represents an interest in shares in which a person is entitled to receive income payable in respect to that
shareholding and obtain any benefit as a result of holding those shares. Non-beneficial interest represents an interest in
shares in which a person will not benefit directly as a result of holding those shares.
Newshelf 1321 Proprietary Limited changed its name to Ackerman Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited. The indirect
non-beneficial interest in Ackerman Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited represents a portion of the holdings of Gareth
Ackerman, Suzanne Ackerman-Berman and Jonathan Ackerman.
The indirect non-beneficial interest in Mistral Trust represents a portion of the holdings of Gareth Ackerman, Suzanne
Ackerman-Berman and Jonathan Ackerman in their capacity as trustees and/or potential beneficiaries.
Suzanne Ackerman-Berman retired as an executive director on 31 March 2022, and was appointed as a non-executive
director from 1 April 2022.
There have been no changes in the directors’ interest in shares since 27 February 2022, up to the date of approval of
this report.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The 54th annual general meeting (AGM) of the
shareholders of Pick n Pay Stores Limited (the
Company, alternatively Stores) for the 2022
annual financial period will be conducted entirely by
electronic communication, with the meeting starting
at 08:30 on Tuesday, 26 July 2022.
The procedure to be followed by shareholders or
their duly appointed proxies (participants) who wish
to participate electronically in the AGM is set out
in detail on page 3 under the heading “Electronic
Participation” and again from page 82.
The Board of directors of the Company has
established that the record date for the purpose of
determining which shareholders of the Company are
entitled to receive notice of the 54th AGM is Friday,
24 June 2022 and the record date for purposes of
determining which shareholders of the Company
are entitled to participate in and vote at the AGM
is Friday, 15 July 2022. Only shareholders who
are registered in the register of members of the
Company on Friday, 15 July 2022 will be entitled to
participate in and vote at the AGM.
Each of the ordinary and special resolutions set out
below may be proposed and passed, with or without
modification or amendment, at the AGM or at any
postponement or adjournment of the AGM.
Ordinary resolutions require the approval of at least
50% of the voting rights plus 1 vote exercised on the
resolution. Special resolutions require the approval
of at least 75% of the voting rights exercised on the
resolutions.
The resolutions are proposed in terms of the
Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008, as amended
(the Companies Act) and the memorandum of
incorporation of the Company (the Memorandum of
Incorporation, alternatively MOI).

1. Presenting the audited Annual
Financial Statements, the
directors’ report, and the
reports of the audit, risk and
compliance committee and the
social and ethics committee
for the 2022 annual financial
period
• The full audited annual financial results and
the Company’s 2022 Integrated Annual
Report are published on the Pick n Pay
website, www.picknpayinvestor.co.za, or can
be requested from the Company Secretary
at demuller@pnp.co.za
• An extract of the audited Annual Financial
Statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries is set out in the financial section
of the Integrated Annual Report
• A summary of the annual financial results
has been distributed together with this
Notice
• The remuneration report has been
distributed together with this Notice
• The director’s report on the Company and its
subsidiaries is set out in the Annual Financial
Statements
• The audit, risk and compliance committee’s
report and the social and ethics committee’s
report of the Company and its subsidiaries
are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report

2. Ordinary resolution number 1
Appointment of external auditors
and designated audit partner
Ernst & Young Inc. are acting as auditors of the
Company, having been appointed as auditors on
27 July 2015. Tina Rookledge was appointed as
the audit partner on 5 August 2020 and will be
entering her third year as audit partner. The audit,
risk and compliance committee has considered
the continued independence of the auditors and
concluded that there is no reason to believe that
the auditors acted with impaired independence
at any time, and that the audit quality for the
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2022 financial year was satisfactory as per the
audit quality indicators recommended by the
King IV Report on Corporate Governance™ for
South Africa, 2016 (King IV™).
The audit, risk and compliance committee has
recommended the re-appointment of Ernst &
Young Inc. as external auditors of the Company
and Tina Rookledge as the designated audit
partner of the Company.

Ordinary resolution number 1
“RESOLVED that Ernst & Young Inc. are
hereby appointed as the external auditors of
the Company and Tina Rookledge is hereby
appointed as the designated audit partner of the
Company.”

3. Ordinary resolution number 2
Re-appointment of directors
Curricula vitae of directors to be elected are
presented from page 84.
David
Friedland,
Aboubakar
Jakoet,
Annamarie van der Merwe, Jeff van Rooyen
and Hugh Herman retire in accordance with
the Company’s MOI. In our 2021 Corporate
Governance
Report
shareholders
were
informed that Hugh Herman, non-executive
director, would be retiring after the 2022 AGM
following 46 years of dedicated service to the
Group. The Company published a JSE Limited
(JSE) Stock Exchange News Service (SENS)
announcement on 24 May 2022 confirming to
shareholders that Hugh Herman will be retiring
on 26 July 2022. Being eligible, David Friedland,
Aboubakar Jakoet, Annamarie van der Merwe
and Jeff van Rooyen offer themselves for
re-election as non-executive directors of the
Company.
On 2 September 2021, the Company published
a JSE SENS announcement informing
shareholders that Suzanne Ackerman-Berman
would be retiring as an executive director on
31 March 2022, on which date she would be
appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company. Being eligible, she offers herself
for election as a non-executive director of the
Company.

The results of a Board evaluation survey
completed by all directors indicates satisfaction
that the Board and each Board committee
functions effectively and that there is an
appropriate mix of knowledge, skill, experience
and diversity with sufficient capacity to execute
duties effectively. Institutional knowledge is
imperative to facilitate appropriate guidance at
Board level and the Board is satisfied that the
long-serving directors strengthen the Board in
its oversight responsibilities. Directors who have
served for less than nine years are presented to
shareholders for election to a three-year term of
office. Directors who have served for more than
nine years are presented to shareholders for
election to an annual term of office.
The nominations and corporate governance
committee also considered the independence
of all non-executive directors categorised as
independent. After consideration of a number
of factors, the committee concluded that
David Friedland, Annamarie van der Merwe
and Jeff van Rooyen’s independence remains
appropriate, and that Aboubakar Jakoet has
attained independence. As a representative of
the controlling shareholder, Suzanne AckermanBerman is not considered to be independent.
Based on the results of the evaluation of
the composition of the Board, and the past
performance and contribution of these directors
and the experience that they bring to the
Board, together with their insights into various
aspects of the business, the Board recommends
the election of David Friedland and Jeff van
Rooyen for one-year terms of office, and
Aboubakar Jakoet, Annamarie van der Merwe
and Suzanne Ackerman-Berman for three-year
terms of office as non-executive directors.
Shareholders are requested to consider and, if
deemed fit, elect David Friedland, Aboubakar
Jakoet, Annamarie van der Merwe, Jeff van
Rooyen and Suzanne Ackerman-Berman by way
of passing the separate ordinary resolutions set
out below:
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Ordinary resolution number 2.1
Re-election of David Friedland
as director
“RESOLVED that David Friedland be and is
hereby elected as a director of the Company.”

Ordinary resolution number 2.2

4. Ordinary resolution number 3
Appointment of audit, risk and
compliance committee members
for the 2023 annual financial
period
Curricula vitae are presented from page 85.

“RESOLVED that Aboubakar Jakoet be and is
hereby elected as a director of the Company.”

Shareholders are requested to consider and,
if deemed fit, elect Aboubakar Jakoet, Jeff
van Rooyen, Audrey Mothupi, David Friedland,
Mariam Cassim and Haroon Bhorat by way of
passing the separate ordinary resolutions set
out below.

Ordinary resolution number 2.3

Ordinary resolution number 3.1

Re-election of Annamarie van der
Merwe as director

Appointment of Aboubakar Jakoet
as a member of the audit, risk and
compliance committee

Re-election of Aboubakar
Jakoet as director

“RESOLVED that Annamarie van der Merwe
be and is hereby elected as a director of the
Company.”

Ordinary resolution number 2.4
Re-election of Jeff van Rooyen
as director
“RESOLVED that Jeff van Rooyen be and is
hereby elected as a director of the Company.”

Ordinary resolution number 2.5
Appointment of Suzanne AckermanBerman as director
“RESOLVED that Suzanne Ackerman-Berman
be and is hereby elected as a director of the
Company.”

“RESOLVED that Aboubakar Jakoet be and is
hereby elected as a member of the audit, risk
and compliance committee of the Company
for the 2023 annual financial period, subject to
his re-election as a director of the Company in
terms of ordinary resolution 2.2.”

Ordinary resolution number 3.2
Appointment of Jeff van
Rooyen as a member of the
audit, risk and compliance
committee
“RESOLVED that Jeff van Rooyen be and is
hereby elected as a member of the audit, risk
and compliance committee of the Company
for the 2023 annual financial period, subject to
his re-election as a director of the Company in
terms of ordinary resolution 2.4.”

Ordinary resolution number 3.3
Appointment of Audrey Mothupi
as a member of the audit, risk
and compliance committee
“RESOLVED that Audrey Mothupi be and is
hereby elected as a member of the audit, risk
and compliance committee of the Company for
the 2023 annual financial period.”
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Ordinary resolution number 3.4

Advisory vote number 1

Appointment of David Friedland
as a member of the audit, risk
and compliance committee

Endorsement of the remuneration
policy

“RESOLVED that David Friedland be and is
hereby elected as a member of the audit, risk
and compliance committee of the Company
for the 2023 annual financial period, subject to
his re-election as a director of the Company in
terms of ordinary resolution 2.1.”

Ordinary resolution number 3.5
Appointment of Mariam Cassim
as a member of the audit, risk
and compliance committee
“RESOLVED that Mariam Cassim be and is
hereby elected as a member of the audit, risk
and compliance committee of the Company for
the 2023 annual financial period.”

Ordinary resolution number 3.6
Appointment of Haroon Bhorat
as a member of the audit, risk
and compliance committee
“RESOLVED that Haroon Bhorat be and is hereby
elected as a member of the audit, risk and
compliance committee of the Company for the
2023 annual financial period.”

5. Advisory votes
Remuneration policy and
implementation for the 2022
annual financial period
The directors table the remuneration report
for the 2022 annual financial period. The
remuneration policy and implementation reports
are set out in the remuneration report in the
Integrated Annual Report, to be found on the
website,
www.picknpayinvestor.co.za.
For
your convenience, the remuneration report is
repeated in this document from page 42.

“RESOLVED that, by way of a non-binding
advisory vote, the remuneration policy of the
Company as outlined in the remuneration report
in the Integrated Annual Report, is endorsed.”
As this is a non-binding advisory vote,
no minimum voting threshold is required.
Nevertheless, for record purposes, in terms
of King IV™ more than 75% of the voting rights
exercised on this resolution must be cast in
favour for it to be adopted. This non-binding
advisory vote allows shareholders to express
their views on the remuneration policy adopted
by the Company. In the event that 25% or more
of the voting rights exercised are cast against
this resolution, the Board will invite dissenting
shareholders to engage with the remuneration
committee on their concerns in line with the
provisions of the JSE Listings Requirements.

Advisory vote number 2
Endorsement of the remuneration
implementation
“RESOLVED that, by way of a non-binding
advisory vote, the remuneration implementation
report of the Company as outlined in the
remuneration report in the Integrated Annual
Report, is endorsed.”
As this is a non-binding advisory vote,
no minimum voting threshold is required.
Nevertheless, for record purposes, in terms
of King IV™ more than 75% of the voting rights
exercised on this resolution must be cast in
favour for it to be adopted. This non-binding
advisory vote allows shareholders to express
their views on the Company’s remuneration
implementation report. In the event that 25% or
more of the voting rights exercised are cast
against this resolution, the Board will invite
dissenting shareholders to engage with the
remuneration committee on their concerns
in line with the provisions of the JSE Listings
Requirements.
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6. Special resolution number 1
Directors’ fees for the 2023 and 2024 annual financial periods
NOTE: notwithstanding a special resolution authorising directors fees to be increased by CPI for the 2023
annual financial period, the Chair has elected to waive an increase, and the directors have elected to receive
a below-CPI increase of 2.8%.
“RESOLVED, as a special resolution, that the directors’ fees, to be paid to the directors in their capacity as
directors only, for the 2023 annual financial period, and to be increased by CPI for the 2024 annual financial
period, be as follows:
FY23
Chair (unchanged):
Lead independent director:
Non-executive directors:
Chair of the audit, risk and compliance committee:
Chair of the remuneration committee:
Chair of the social and ethics committee #:
Chair of the corporate finance committee*:
Member of the audit, risk and compliance committee:
Member of the remuneration committee:
Member of the nominations and corporate governance committee:
Member of the social and ethics committee:
Member of the corporate finance committee*:

R4 893 000
R156 250
R470 000
R405 000
R215 800
R215 800#
R215 800*
R156 250
R101 800
R97 150
R101 800
R146 000*

FY22
previously
R4 893 000
R152 000
R457 000
R394 000
R210 000
–#
R210 000*
R152 000
R99 000
R94 500
R99 000
R142 000*

Where applicable, directors’ fees are exclusive of VAT.”
#

*

The social and ethics committee chair was previously an executive director, and the services rendered as chair were covered
by executive remuneration. As from the 2023 financial period, the chair is a non-executive director and a fee is payable for
services rendered.
The corporate finance committee is an ad hoc committee. In the event that it is convened during the financial period, fees to
be paid shall not exceed the annual fees proposed in special resolution number 1.

Reason for and effect of
special resolution number 1
The reason for special resolution number
1 is to obtain shareholder approval for the
remuneration of each of the directors of the
Company in accordance with section 66(9) of
the Companies Act. The passing of this special
resolution will have the effect of approving the
remuneration of each of the directors of the
Company in accordance with section 66(9) of
the Companies Act.
This authority will be in place for a period of two
years from the date of adoption of this special
resolution number 1 or until superseded by
another special resolution, whichever period is
shorter.
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7. Special resolution number 2
Provision of financial assistance
to related or inter-related
companies and others
The Board undertakes that it shall not adopt any
resolution to authorise financial assistance as
contemplated in special resolutions numbers
2.1 and 2.2 unless the Board of directors of the
Company:
• is satisfied that immediately after providing
such financial assistance, the Company
will satisfy the solvency and liquidity test
as referred to in section 45(3)(b)(i) of the
Companies Act; and
• is satisfied that the terms under which such
financial assistance is proposed to be given
are fair and reasonable to the Company as
contemplated in section 45(3)(b)(ii) of the
Companies Act; and

• has ensured that, to the extent which may
be applicable, any conditions or restrictions
in respect of the granting of financial
assistance set out in the Company’s MOI
have been satisfied as contemplated in
section 45(4) of the Companies Act.

Special resolution number 2.1
Provision of financial
assistance to related or interrelated companies
“RESOLVED, as a special resolution, that the
Board of directors be and is hereby authorised
to the extent required by section 45 of the
Companies Act as a general approval, to
authorise the Company to provide any direct
or indirect financial assistance (“financial
assistance” having the meaning attributed to
such term in section 45(1) of the Companies
Act) that the Board may deem fit to any one
or more related or inter-related companies or
corporations (“related” and “inter-related” having
the meaning attributed to such words in section
2 of the Companies Act), on the terms and
conditions and for the amounts that the Board
of directors may determine.”

Notes on the interpretation of
special resolution number 2.1:
This authority is required in order to grant the
Board of directors the authority to authorise
the Company to provide inter-group loans and
other financial assistance for the purpose of
funding the day-to-day operational decisions of
the Group.

Reason for and effect of
special resolution number 2.1
The reason for and effect of special resolution
number 2.1 is to grant the directors of the
Company the general authority to provide
direct and indirect financial assistance to any
company or corporation forming part of the
Group, by way of loan, guarantee, the provision
of security or otherwise. This authority will be in
place for a period of two years from the date of
adoption of this special resolution number 2.1, or
until superseded by another special resolution,
whichever period is shorter.

Special resolution number 2.2
Provision of financial
assistance to persons
“RESOLVED, as a special resolution, that the
Board of directors be and is hereby authorised
to the extent required by section 45 of the
Companies Act as a general approval, to
authorise the Company to provide any direct
or indirect financial assistance (“financial
assistance” having the meaning attributed to
such term in section 45(1) of the Companies Act)
that the Board may deem fit to an employee of
the Company or its subsidiaries, on the terms
and conditions and for the amounts that the
Board of directors may determine, within the
Company’s existing housing loan policy.”

Notes on the interpretation of
special resolution number 2.2:
This special resolution allows the Company to
continue with its existing policy of providing
financial assistance to employees. The policy will
continue to be limited to housing loans that may
be extended to executives and management
of the Group. In terms of this policy, no loans
are extended to non-executive directors or to
related parties. All loans are secured against the
employee’s retirement funding. All loans bear
interest at varying rates, subject to a maximum
rate of 8% (eight per cent) and have varying
repayment terms. The Company does not intend
to amend this policy in the foreseeable future.
This special resolution does not authorise the
provision of financial assistance to a person
related to an employee of the Company or any
of its subsidiary companies.

Reason for and effect of
special resolution number 2.2
The reason for and effect of special resolution
number 2.2 is to grant the directors of the
Company the general authority to provide
direct and indirect financial assistance to an
employee of the companies in the Group, by way
of loan, guarantee, the provision of security or
otherwise. This authority will be in place for a
period of two years from the date of adoption
of this special resolution number 2.2, or until
superseded by another special resolution,
whichever period is shorter.
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8. Special resolution number 3
Replacement of the Company’s
Memorandum of Incorporation
“RESOLVED, as a special resolution, that the
existing Memorandum of Incorporation of the
Company be and is hereby substituted by the
new Memorandum of Incorporation, which
new Memorandum of Incorporation is tabled
at this meeting and initialled by the Chair for
the purposes of identification in accordance
with the provisions of section 16(1)(c) (read
together with sections 16(5) and 36(2)(a)) of
the Companies Act, in terms of which, among
others, the following amendments are made:
• Clause 17 is amended to confirm the
authority of the Board to change the
financial year of the Company and/or to
deviate from the 4-4-5 Retail Calendar,
subject to the provisions of the Listings
Requirements and the Companies Act
(including any exemptions granted by the
Companies Tribunal)
• Clause 20.2 confirms that the Company
is empowered to pass resolutions by way
of written consent in accordance with the
provisions of section 60 of the Companies
Act, unless the Listings Requirements
require otherwise
• Several changes have been made to update
the Memorandum of Incorporation in line
with best practice
• A number of additional changes have been
made to address typographical and/or textual
matters”

Reason for and effect of
special resolution number 3

The amendments further seek to correct
typographical and/or textual matters in
the document to bring the Memorandum of
Incorporation in line with best practice.
The amended Memorandum of Incorporation
has been approved by the JSE.
A marked-up copy of the amended
Memorandum of Incorporation will be made
available for inspection at our offices at
Pick n Pay Office Park, 101 Rosmead Avenue,
Kenilworth, 7708, Cape Town for the period
between 24 June and 26 July 2022 during
office hours. In addition, the markedup copy will be posted on our website at
www.picknpayinvestor.co.za.

9. Special resolution number 4
General approval to repurchase
Company shares
“RESOLVED, as a special resolution, that
the Company hereby approves, as a general
approval, the acquisition by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries from time to time of
the issued shares of the Company upon such
terms and conditions and in such amounts as
the directors of the Company may from time
to time determine, but subject to the MOI of
the Company, the provisions of the Companies
Act, and the JSE Limited (JSE) Listings
Requirements as presently constituted and
which may be amended from time to time, and
provided that acquisitions by the Company and
its subsidiaries of shares in the capital of the
Company may not, in the aggregate, exceed in
any one financial year 5% (five per cent) of the
Company’s issued share capital of the class of
repurchased shares from the date of the grant
of this general approval.”

The amendment of the Memorandum of
Incorporation seeks principally to confirm the
authority of the Board (subject to subject to
the provisions of the Listings Requirements and
the Companies Act, including any exemptions
granted by the Companies Tribunal), to change
the financial year-end of the Company and/or to
deviate from the 4-4-5 Retail Calendar.

Additional requirements
imposed by the JSE Listings
Requirements

The amendments further seek to confirm that
shareholder resolutions may be passed by
way of written consent in accordance with
the provisions of section 60 of the Companies
Act, unless the Listings Requirements require
otherwise.

• Any such acquisition of shares shall be
effected through the order book operated
by the JSE trading system and done without
any prior understanding or arrangement
between the Company or its subsidiaries
and the counterparty or in any other manner
approved by the JSE;
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It is recorded that the Company or its subsidiaries
may only make a general acquisition of shares if
the following JSE Listings Requirements are met:

• The general approval shall only be valid
until the Company’s next AGM, or for 15
(fifteen) months from the date of passing of
this special resolution, whichever period is
shorter;
• An announcement will be made as soon
as the Company and/or its subsidiaries
has/have acquired shares in terms of this
authority constituting, on a cumulative basis,
3% (three per cent) of the number of shares
of the class of shares acquired in issue at
the time of granting of this general approval
and for each 3% (three per cent) in aggregate
of the initial number of that class of shares
acquired thereafter, which announcement
shall contain full details of such acquisitions
as required by paragraph 11.27 of the JSE
Listings Requirements;
• In determining the price at which shares are
acquired by the Company or its subsidiaries
in terms of this general approval, the
maximum price at which such shares may
be acquired may not be greater than 10%
(ten per cent) above the weighted average of
the market value at which such shares are
traded on the JSE, as determined over the 5
(five) business days immediately preceding
the date of the acquisition of such shares by
the Company or its subsidiaries;
• A resolution by the Board of directors of
the Company that they authorised the
repurchase, that the Company passed the
solvency and liquidity test and that since the
test was done there have been no material
changes to the financial position of the
Group; and
• The Company and/or its subsidiaries may
not repurchase any shares in terms of this
authority during a prohibited period, as
defined in the JSE Listings Requirements,
unless there is in place a repurchase
programme where dates and quantities of
shares to be traded during the prohibited
period are fixed and full details of the
programme have been submitted to the
JSE prior to the commencement of the
prohibited period.

Statement by the Board of
directors of the Company
Pursuant to the JSE Listings Requirements
the Board of directors of the Company hereby
states that:
• the intention of the directors of the
Company is to utilise the general approval
to repurchase shares in the capital of the
Company if at some future date the cash
resources of the Company are in excess
of its requirements or there are other good
grounds for doing so. In this regard, the
directors will take account of, inter alia, an
appropriate capitalisation structure for the
Company, the long-term cash needs of the
Company and the interests of the Company;
• in determining the method by which
the Company intends to repurchase
its securities, the maximum number of
securities to be repurchased and the date
on which such repurchase will take place,
the directors of the Company will only make
repurchases if, at the time of the repurchase,
they are of the opinion that:
» the Company and its subsidiaries will, after
the repurchase, be able to pay their debts
as they become due in the ordinary course
of business for the 12 (twelve) month period
following the date of the repurchase;
» the consolidated assets of the Company
and its subsidiaries, fairly valued and
recognised and measured in accordance with
the accounting policies used in the latest
audited financial statements, will, after the
repurchase, be in excess of the consolidated
liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the 12 (twelve) month period following the
date of the repurchase;
» the issued share capital and reserves of the
Company and its subsidiaries will, after the
repurchase, be adequate for the ordinary
business purposes of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the 12 (twelve) month period
following the date of the repurchase; and
» the working capital available to the Company
and its subsidiaries will, after the repurchase,
be adequate for the ordinary business
purposes of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the 12 (twelve) month period following the
date of the repurchase;

• the repurchase shall only be effected if the
Board of directors has, at the time of the
repurchase, passed a resolution authorising
the repurchase in terms of sections
48 and 46 of the Companies Act and it
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reasonably appears that the Company and
its subsidiaries have satisfied the solvency
and liquidity test and that, since the test
was performed, there have been no material
changes to the financial position of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Directors’ responsibility statement
The directors, whose names appear on page 16
of the 2022 Corporate Governance Report,
collectively and individually accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information
pertaining to this special resolution and certify
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
there are no facts that have been omitted that
would make any statements false or misleading,
and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain
such facts have been made and that this special
resolution contains all information required by
law and the JSE Listings Requirements.

Material changes
Other than the facts and developments reported
on in terms hereof and in the Integrated Annual
Report, there have been no material changes in
the financial or trading position of the Company.

Major shareholders
Shareholders are referred to pages 86 to 87.

Share capital
Shareholders are referred to page 25.

The Board will exercise this resolution to buy
back shares from employees who are exercising
their share options, and to cover share scheme
obligations, including the forfeitable share plan.
Other than as set out above, the Board has no
specific intention, at present, for the Company
to repurchase any of its shares, but considers
that such a general authority should be put in
place should an opportunity present itself to do
so during the year, which the Board deems to
be in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders, taking prevailing market conditions
and other factors into account.

10.Ordinary resolution number 4
Directors’ authority to implement
special and ordinary resolutions
“RESOLVED that each and every director of
the Company be and is hereby authorised to
do all such things and sign all such documents
as may be necessary for, or incidental to, the
implementation of the resolutions passed at
this meeting.”

11. To transact such other
business that may be
transacted at an annual
general meeting.

Reason for and effect of
special resolution number 4

Notes to the notice of annual
general meeting

The reason for special resolution number 4 is
to grant the Company a general authority in
terms of the JSE Listings Requirements for
the acquisition by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries of shares issued by the Company,
which authority shall be valid until the earlier of
the next AGM of the Company or the variation
or revocation of such general authority by
special resolution by any subsequent general
meeting of the Company, provided that the
general authority shall only be valid until
the Company’s next AGM, or for 15 (fifteen)
months from the date of passing of this special
resolution, whichever period is shorter. The
passing of this special resolution will have the
effect of authorising the Company or any of
its subsidiaries to acquire shares issued by the
Company.

A. General instructions and
information
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In addition to the notice and proxy, this
document contains:
• Details of the directors of the Company
on page 16 of the 2022 Corporate
Governance Report;
• The curricula vitae of directors standing
for election from page 84;
• The curricula vitae of directors
nominated for election as members
of the audit, risk and compliance
committee on page 85;
• The remuneration report from page 42;
and
• The directors’ interest in shares from
page 69.

The Integrated Annual Report, and
the Annual Financial Statements, are
published on the Pick n Pay website,
www.picknpayinvestor.co.za, or can be
requested from the Company Secretary at
demuller@pnp.co.za.
There are no material changes to the
Group’s financial or trading position, nor
are there any material legal or arbitration
proceedings (pending or threatened) that
may affect the financial position of the
Group between the 2022 financial period
end and 23 June 2022.
The directors, whose names are given in the
Board of directors’ section in the Integrated
Annual Report, collectively and individually
accept full responsibility for the accuracy
of the information given and certify that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief,
there are no facts that have been omitted
that would make any statement false or
misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries
to ascertain such facts have been made and
that the Integrated Annual Report and this
document contain all information required
by law and the JSE Listings Requirements.
All shareholders are encouraged
participate in and vote at the AGM.

to

B. Entitlement to participate in and
vote at the AGM in person or by
proxy
The Company is pleased to offer
shareholders or their duly appointed proxies
an online voting facility during the AGM via
the Computershare platform.
If you hold certificated shares (i.e. have
not dematerialised your shares in the
Company) or are registered as an own
name dematerialised shareholder (i.e.
have specifically instructed your Central
Securities Depository Participant (CSDP)
to hold your shares in your own name in the
Company subregister) then:
• you may participate in and vote at the
AGM; alternatively
• you may appoint an individual as a proxy
(who need not be a shareholder of the
Company) to participate in and vote in
your place at the AGM by completing the
attached form of proxy. For administrative
purposes, it is recommended that
the proxy form be returned to the
transfer secretaries, Computershare

Investor Services Proprietary Limited
(Computershare), the details of which are
set out on the IBC by no later than close of
business on Friday 22 July 2022. Please
note that your proxy may delegate his/
her authority to act on your behalf to
another person, subject to the restrictions
set out in the attached form of proxy.
Please also note that the attached form
of proxy must be delivered to the transfer
secretaries, Computershare, via email at
proxy@computershare.co.za before the
proxy exercises any shareholder rights at
the AGM.
Unless revoked before then, a signed proxy
form shall remain valid at any adjournment
or postponement of the AGM and the proxy
so appointed shall be entitled to vote,
as indicated on the proxy form, on any
resolution (including any resolution which is
amended or modified) at such AGM or any
adjournment or postponement thereof.
• Please note that:
» any shareholder of the Company that
is a company may authorise a person
to act as proxy at the AGM. Please also
note that section 63(1) of the Companies
Act requires that persons wishing to
participate in the AGM (including a
company’s representative) must provide
reasonably satisfactory identification
before they may participate;
» if you are the owner of dematerialised
shares (i.e. have replaced the paper
share certificates representing the
shares with electronic records of
ownership under the JSE’s electronic
settlement system, Strate) held through
a CSDP or broker (or their nominee) and
are not registered as an “own name
dematerialised shareholder”, then you
are not a registered shareholder, but
your CSDP or broker (or their nominee)
would be. You must provide your CSDP
or broker with your voting instructions
in the manner and time stipulated in
your custody agreement. Alternatively,
if you wish to participate in the AGM in
person you will need to request your
CSDP or broker to provide you with the
necessary authority in terms of your
custody agreement.
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CSDPs, brokers or their nominees recorded
in the Company’s subregister as holders of
dematerialised shares held on behalf of an
investor/beneficial owner in terms of Strate
should, when authorised in terms of their
mandate or instructed to do so by the owner
on behalf of whom they hold dematerialised
shares, vote by either appointing a duly
authorised representative to participate in
and vote at the AGM or by completing the
attached form of proxy in accordance with
the instructions thereon. For administrative
purposes, it is recommended that the
proxy form be returned to the transfer
secretaries, Computershare, the details of
which are set out below under the heading
“Electronic Participation” by no later than
close of business on Friday 22 July 2022.
In order to allow the voting preferences of
all shareholders to be taken into account,
voting will be conducted via poll and
shareholders will have one vote in respect
of each share held.

C. Identification
In terms of section 63(1) of the Companies
Act, all AGM participants are required to
provide identification to the reasonable
satisfaction of the Transfer Secretary, as
follows:
• Participants who register to
participate in the AGM using the online
registration method, by uploading the
relevant documentation via the online
registration portal; or
• Participants who register to participate
in the AGM by submitting the written
application via email by submitting the
relevant documentation by email to
proxy@computershare.co.za.
The Transfer Secretary must be reasonably
satisfied that the right of that person to
participate in and vote at the AGM as a
shareholder or a proxy or representative of
a shareholder has been reasonably verified.
Acceptable forms of identification include
valid South African drivers’ licences, green
barcoded identity documents or barcoded
identification smart cards issued by the
South African Department of Home Affairs,
and passports.
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D. Electronic participation
Shareholders or their duly appointed
proxies who wish to participate in the AGM
via electronic communication (participants)
must follow the instructions for registration,
attendance and participation set out below.
The electronic participation form can be
found as an insert in this Notice of AGM.
a.

Registration to attend the AGM
(i)

Register online by no later than
08:30 on Tuesday 26 July 2022
using the online registration portal at
https://meetnow.global/ZAto,among
other things, allow the Transfer
Secretary
to
arrange
the
participation of the shareholder at
the AGM.

(ii)

Register via email by no later than
08:30 on Tuesday 26 July 2022
by making a written application
to participate either in person or
via electronic communication, by
email to proxy@computershare.co.za
in order for the Transfer Secretary
to, among other things, arrange
such
participation
for
the
shareholder at the AGM.

(iii) Apply to Computershare by
delivering the duly completed
participation form to:
a.

First Floor, Rosebank towers,
15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank
2196; or

b.

Posting it to Private Bag X9000,
Saxonwold, 2132 (at the risk of
the participant);

so as to be received by Computershare
by no later than 08:30 on Tuesday,
26 July 2022.

NOTE:
Shareholders
wishing
to
participate in and/or vote at the AGM
after 08:30 on Tuesday 26 July 2022
may still register after this time provided
however, that for those shareholders to
participate in and/or vote at the AGM,
those shareholders must be verified
and registered (as required in terms of
section 63(1) of the Companies Act)
by uploading their relevant verification
documentation as more fully set out
above under Identification before the
commencement of the AGM.
b.

Computershare will first validate such
requests and confirm the identity of
the shareholder in terms of section
63(1) of the Companies Act. If the
request is validated, further details
will be provided on using the electronic
communication facility to participate
electronically in the AGM.

c.

The Company will, by email, inform
participants
who
duly
notified
Computershare by no later than
08:30 on Tuesday, 26 July 2022
of the relevant details through
which participants can participate
electronically.

d.

The cost of electronic participation
in the AGM is for the expense of the
participant and will be billed separately
by the participant’s own service
provider.

e.

The participant acknowledges that the
electronic communication services
are provided by third parties and
indemnifies the Company against any
loss, injury, damage, penalty or claim
arising in any way from the use of
possession of the electronic services,
whether or not the problem is caused
by any act or omission on the part
of the participant or anyone else. In
particular, but not exclusively, the
participant acknowledges that he/she
will have no claim against the Company,
whether for consequential damages or
otherwise, arising from the use of the
electronic services or any defect in it
or from total or partial failure of the
electronic services and connections
linking the participant via the electronic
services to the AGM.

f.

The Company cannot guarantee
there will not be a break in electronic
communication that is beyond its
control.

By order of the Board
Debra Muller
Company Secretary
Cape Town
23 June 2022
Pick n Pay Stores Limited
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CURRICULA VITAE OF DIRECTORS TO BE ELECTED
Curricula vitae of all directors can be found in
the Board of directors’ section of the Integrated
Annual Report, which is published on the Pick n Pay
website, www.picknpayinvestor.co.za, or which
can be requested from the Company Secretary at
demuller@pnp.co.za.
Curricula vitae of directors to be elected to the Board
of directors, and to the audit, risk and compliance
committee, are set out below.

Board of directors
Appointment of directors
Jeff van Rooyen
BCom, Hons BCompt SA, CA(SA)
Lead independent director
Audit, risk and compliance committee and corporate
finance committee Chair
A chartered accountant with extensive experience
in both the private and public sectors, Jeff is the
founder CEO of Uranus Investment Holdings (Pty)
Ltd. His involvement in the accounting profession
over the years is extensive. Former appointments
include being a Trustee of the IFRS Foundation, Chair
of the Public Accountants and Auditors Board (now
IRBA) and founding President of the Association
for the Advancement of Black Accountants. His
public sector record is equally extensive. Former
appointments include: Chair of the Financial
Reporting Standards Council; Executive Officer
of the Financial Services Board; member of the
Advisory Committee, Faculty of Economics and
Management Sciences of the University of Pretoria,
director of MTN Group Limited and Chair of Exxaro
Resources Limited.

David Friedland
CA(SA)
David was the audit engagement partner and lead/
relationship partner at Arthur Andersen and KPMG
for several listed companies, as well as large ownermanaged companies, principally in the retail sector.
Other listed company directorships: The Foschini
Group Limited, Investec Limited and Investec plc
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Aboubakar (Bakar) Jakoet
CA(SA)
Following his 34-year career in the finance team
of the Group, Bakar retired as CFO and executive
director in September 2019. Given his extensive
experience in retail, strategy, tax and finance,
the Group is privileged to retain his expertise and
experience in his capacity as a non-executive
director. Bakar is the deputy chair of the UCT finance
committee.
Other listed company directorships: Oceana Group
Limited

Annamarie van der Merwe
B Juris, LLB, LLM, EMP
Annamarie is the Executive Chair of the FluidRock
Governance Group, a business that she co-founded
approximately 17 years ago. Annamarie has been
a corporate lawyer and company secretary of
companies in the listed environment for more than
30 years. She was until late 2020 a member of
the King Committee on Corporate Governance for
South Africa and was actively involved in the writing
of King II, III and IV with a particular focus on the
sections dealing with the functioning of boards and
responsibilities of directors. Annamarie serves as a
member of the JSE Advisory Committee. She is a
well-known presenter of workshops on issues such
as board effectiveness, good corporate governance
and statutory duties and liabilities faced by boards
and individual directors. Annamarie acted as a
facilitator for the IoDSA for more than 16 years and
currently chairs the board of the Bureau of Food
and Agricultural Policy NPC (BFAP) as well as the
Vastfontein Community Transformation NPC.

Suzanne Ackerman-Berman
BA, Fellow: Aspen Business Institute;
First Movers
Following broad executive experience in the Group,
Suzanne was appointed Director of Transformation
in 2007. In addition to her executive contribution
to the Group, she was appointed to the Board as
a representative of the controlling shareholder
in March 2010. Suzanne retired as an executive
director on 31 March 2022, on which date she was
appointed to the Board as a non-executive director.

Suzanne remains active in many areas of
philanthropy across different sectors of society.
In particular, she is a passionate proponent of
enterprise development. She formed the Feed the
Nation Foundation in response to the Covid-19
pandemic, is chair of the Ackerman Pick n Pay
Foundation and heads the Pick n Pay Enterprise
Development Division. Suzanne is a trustee of the
SMILE Foundation.

Audit, risk and compliance
committee
Election of audit, risk and
compliance committee members

Mariam Cassim
CA(SA), MBA
Mariam Cassim is the Chief Executive Officer of
Vodacom Financial and Digital Services and a member
of the Vodacom Group’s Executive Committee.
Mariam’s
professional
experience
includes
Corporate Finance and Deal Structuring, Mergers
and Acquisitions, Debt Structuring and Commercial
Evaluation. Her flair for innovation, disruption and new
business development allows Mariam to generate
creative business solutions, which have a strong
purpose element and thereby benefit business as
well as society. Mariam previously served on the
board of Super Group Limited.

Haroon Bhorat

Aboubakar (Bakar) Jakoet

PhD in Economics

Please see curriculum vitae on previous page

Haroon is Professor of Economics and Director
of the Development Policy Research Unit at the
University of Cape Town. He is currently a member of
the Presidential Economic Advisory Council (PEAC),
established in 2019 by President Ramaphosa
to generate new ideas for economic growth, job
creation and addressing poverty in South Africa.
Haroon is the Independent Non-Executive Chair of
Sygnia and is also Chair of the Nimble Group. Haroon
is a Non-Resident Senior Fellow at the Brookings
Institution – the world’s leading global think tank.
He was recently invited to join the UCT College of
Fellows. He is a member of the executive committee
of the International Economic Association. His
career appointments include serving as an economic
advisor to former Minister of Finance Pravin Gordhan
and to former presidents Thabo Mbeki and Kgalema
Motlanthe, formally serving on the Presidential
Economic Advisory Panel.

Jeff van Rooyen
Please see curriculum vitae on previous page

Audrey Mothupi
BA (Hons)
Audrey is the CEO of SystemicLogic Group, a global
financial innovation, data and technology disruptor,
specialising in emergent business models. Audrey’s
extensive knowledge of the African and global
markets spans across various business domains
including group strategy, talent design, marketing
and communication as well as data, technology and
innovation. Prior to SystemicLogic Group, Audrey
was the head of inclusive banking at Standard Bank
Group. She is the Chair of Roedean School (SA) and
was Chair of Orange Babies of South Africa. Audrey
also sits on the boards of Nordic Female Business
Angel Network and the Numeric Board of South
Africa. She is a Fellow of the Africa Leadership
Initiative, a member of the International Women’s
Forum and has been named one of Africa’s 1 000
most powerful women.

Other listed company directorships: Sygnia Asset
Management (Independent Non-Executive Chair)

Other listed company directorships: Life Healthcare
Group Limited, Altona Rare Earths plc (listed on the
Aquis Stock Exchange)

David Friedland
Please see curriculum vitae on previous page
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ANALYSIS OF ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS
Number of
shareholders

%

Number of
shares

%

1 – 1 000 shares
1 001 – 10 000 shares
10 001 – 100 000 shares
100 001 – 1 000 000 shares
1 000 001 shares and over

16 704
4 082
1 033
266
47

75.5
18.4
4.7
1.2
0.2

2 591 946
12 986 536
32 649 201
73 759 465
371 463 173

0.5
2.6
6.6
14.9
75.4

Total

22 132

100.0

493 450 321

100.0

Number of
shareholders

%

Number of
shares

%

17

0.1

145 222 163

29.4

1
1
1
1
1
8
1
1
1
1

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

124 677 237
809 000
7 707 650
172 750
4 535 405
4 305 820
2 812 000
100 400
101 900
1

25.3
0.2
1.5
0.0
0.9
0.9
0.6
0.0
0.0
0.0

SHAREHOLDER SPREAD

PUBLIC/NON-PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS
Non-public shareholders
Ackerman Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited*
Pick n Pay Retailers Proprietary Limited
Shares held on behalf on FSP/RSP participants
Boxer Superstores Proprietary Limited
Pick n Pay Employee Share Purchase Trust
Directors of Pick n Pay Stores Limited
Mistral Trust
Pick n Pay Non Contributory Provident Fund
Ackerman Pick n Pay Foundation
Ackerman Family Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited**
Public shareholders

22 115

99.9

348 228 158

70.6

Total

22 132

100.0

493 450 321

100.0

Number of
shares

%

124 677 237
81 449 655
37 857 599
11 860 508
8 268 678
7 707 650
7 323 225
7 310 398
6 861 095
4 957 879

25.3
16.5
7.7
2.4
1.7
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.4
1.0

BENEFICIAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 1% OR MORE
Ackerman Investment Holdings Pty Ltd*
Government Employees Pension Fund
Fidelity Series Emerging Markets Opportunities Fund
Allan Gray Balanced Fund
Norges Bank Investment Management (NBIM)
Shares held on behalf on FSP/RSP participants
FIAM Group Trust For Employee Benefit Plans
Alexander Forbes Investments Limited
Old Mutual Life Assurance Company SA
Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund (US)

* Ackerman Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited was previously named Newshelf 1321 Proprietary Limited.
** Ackerman Family Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited was previously named Ackerman Investment Holdings
Proprietary Limited.

86

picknpay.com

ANALYSIS OF B SHAREHOLDERS
Number of
shareholders

%

Number of
shares

%

1
7
8
4
5

4.0
28.0
32.0
16.0
20.0

522
43 599
181 479
1 582 276
257 874 993

0.0
0.0
0.1
0.6
99.3

25

100.0

259 682 869

100.0

Number of
shareholders

%

Number of
shares

%

Non-public shareholders

6

24.0

258 277 425

99.4

Ackerman Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited*
Directors of Pick n Pay Stores Limited
Mistral Trust

1
4
1

4.0
16.0
4.0

246 936 847
5 991 019
5 349 559

95.1
2.3
2.0

SHAREHOLDER SPREAD
1 – 1 000 shares
1 001 – 10 000 shares
10 001 – 100 000 shares
100 001 – 1 000 000 shares
1 000 001 shares and over
Total

PUBLIC/NON-PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS

Public shareholders

19

76.0

1 405 444

0.6

Total

25

100.0

259 682 869

100.0

BENEFICIAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 1% OR MORE
Ackerman Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited*
Mistral Trust
Gareth Ackerman (Director of Pick n Pay Stores Limited)
*

Number of
shares

%

246 936 847
5 349 559
3 228 383

95.1
2.1
1.2

Ackerman Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited was previously named Newshelf 1321 Proprietary Limited.

The holders of B shares are entitled to the same voting rights as holders of ordinary shares, but are not entitled
to any rights to distributions by the Company or any other economic benefits. All B shares are stapled to certain
ordinary shares.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
Pick n Pay Stores Limited

JSE Limited sponsor

Registration number: 1968/008034/06
JSE share code: PIK
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Investec Bank Limited
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Customer careline
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Suzanne Ackerman-Berman retired as an executive director on 31 March 2022 and was appointed as a non-executive director
on that date.
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